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The Hospital Authority (HA) is a body corporate in the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. Its functions are stipulated in Section 4
of the Hospital Authority Ordinance (Chapter 113).

BiREER (BER) REARRINTRENEZEER - EREERINEEEM
F1MIE (BREERBEG) £ -

The Hospital Authority is responsible for:
Efr B2 HrEeE -

-
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Managing and controlling public hospitals

EENEE N B

Advising the Government of the needs of the public for hospital services and of the
resources required to meet those needs

ARG R B REN T K MENZEFZRABNER - RBFRHEE

Managing and developing the public hospital system
BIERERAN B RS

Recommending to the Secretary for Food and Health appropriate policies
on fees for the use of hospital services by the public

MARERERRGBNNER  ARVEFERBRE
w5 1a B HER

Establishing public hospitals

A S EG
S AVA/NIVA-1 53

Promoting, assisting and taking part in
the education and training of persons
involved in hospital or related
services

e - B RS2 EIEE R HER K
BRRBOAL



¢ Helping People Stay Healthy

BEREF REZE

e Healthy People * People-centred Care
mRER BLAR%

e Happy Staff * Professional Service
ST EXR/R

e Trusted by the e Committed Staff
Community WL
RBRIEHE e Teamwork

BREN

The corporate vision, mission and values (VMV) of Hospital Authority reflect aspirations
of the Board, the management and staff in fostering a healthy community. Guided by the
mission of “Helping People Stay Healthy”, the Authority collaborates with community
partners to strive for continued success and works towards the vision of “Healthy People,
Happy Staff and Trusted by the Community”.

BERNEERS o kZUEE RRBERAAS EEEBRBEINREREN
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The Hospital Authority aims to achieve its corporate VMV by adopting
six strategic intents as outlined in the HA Annual Plan 2016-2017:

%ﬁé%? #2016-2017 FET/EETEISAEMNAHERKEER 22 LAMNEE

- o REOEE
Better manage Enhance partnership
growing service With patients and
demand community
FENEEQZY hnsR s A ML &
BBHER MR HBER
Allay staff shortage Ensure service
and high turnover quality and safety
FEAFERNBE BREBEEEZRZE
mx
Ensure adequate Enhance corporate
resources for meeting governance
service needs ML EES
BRAGEHEIR
EBUREEE

Under the above strategic intents and 28 strategies, the Authority formulated around 100
corresponding programme targets for 2016-2017, which were all achieved in the year,
save for five slightly deferred. The Head Office and Cluster Reports in Chapter 6 describe
major achievements in these areas.
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MEMBERSHIP OF THE HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
BEr=EE R E

Prof John LEONG
Chi-yan, SBS, JP
REI-HE

Appointed as Chairman of the
Authority on 1 December 2013
Clinician-scientist specialising
in spinal and paediatric
orthopaedics

R2013F 12 A1 REZRER
BREERTIRE
EAEONE RN SR ERHAOER IR

BEEMRER

Ms Anita CHENG
Wai-ching
BESZL

Appointed on 1 April 2014
Chief executive officer of a
marketing, brand building
and event management
company

N20145F4 A1 BEZRE
MHHEE - MR RIER

B IPNDRCES

Mr William CHAN
Fu-keung, BBS
PREREE

¢ Appointed on 1 December 2012

¢ Former human resources
director of a listed public
transportation group

e R2012F 12 A1 AEZE
o IHAKERBEIANER

=
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Ms CHIANG Lai-yuen, JP
BEHmLL

¢ Appointed on 1 April 2011

o Chief executive officer of a
listed company

o K201 F4 A1 REEE
o EAREITHER

Dr Constance CHAN
Hon-yee, JP
FREEELE

Director of Health
HEEER
¢ Appointed on 13 June 2012

e Board Member in capacity as
Director of Health of Hong
Kong Government

e R2012F6 B13BEZRT
s UEBBREEERERSD
HIBREERKE

Ms Quince CHONG
Wai-yan, JP
HERZL

(up to 30.11.2016)
(LEiZ 2016 F 11 H30H)

¢ Appointed on 1 December
2010

¢ Chief corporate development
officer of a listed power supply
company

e« R2010F 12 B 1 HEZ A

o FHENRRIGEEREH

Prof Francis CHAN
Ka-leung, JP
RREHER

¢ Appointed on 1 April 2013

¢ Dean of the Faculty of
Medicine of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong

* R2013F 4 A1 BEEE
. EEFUABRESR &

Mr Ricky FUNG
Choi-cheung, SBS, JP
BEE L

(up to 30.11.2016)
(FEIZ2016 F 11 H30H)

¢ Appointed on 1 December 2010

e Former secretary general of
the Legislative Council

* R2010F 12 A1 AEEE
s EEWERANER



Mr Andrew FUNG
Hau-chung, BBS, JP
BERTE

e Appointed on 1 December 2013

e Chief financial officer of a
listed property developer

* R2013F12 A1 REZE
o LHMERRARERNG

e

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG

Yun-chi

BiFREzt

e Appointed on 1 December
2016

e Deputy chief executive of a
listed bank

o N20164E 12 A1 BEEE
o FTIRTTRIRE,
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Mr HO Wing-yin
AIXKBERE

¢ Appointed on 1 April 2015

¢ Medical laboratory
technologist and Department
Manager (Pathology) of Queen
Elizabeth Hospital

o N2015F4 A1 BEEE

o BILERE L FMDBEE
TRI2 R EPIEIR

Mr Daniel LAM Chun,

SBS, JP

WERE

¢ Appointed on 1 December
2016

¢ Building surveyor and
practising arbitrator

o RA2016F 12 A1 AEET
o EFHSAN LI EME A

Mr Lester Garson

HUANG, JP

BERALE

e Appointed on 1 December
2012

e Solicitor and partner of a
legal firm

o A2012F 12 A1 HEZRT
o REIREMELHAEA

Ms Lisa LAU Man-man,

BBS, MH, JP

Bzt

e Appointed on 1 December
2016

¢ Design consultant

e N2016F 12 A1 BERT

o BRETEAR

Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS
HEXEL

e Appointed on 1 April 2013

e Certified public accountant
and former chief executive
officer of the Financial
Reporting Council

e R2013F4 A1 HEZ(E

o GG - BHHERS
AT R

Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin
THERLE

e Appointed on 1 December 2013

e Accountant and Adjunct
Associate Professor in
the Faculty of Business
Administration of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong

e R2013E 12 A1 AREE
o SEfEINBEEPNASIEER
BT R BRI



MEMBERSHIP OF THE HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
B2 1E B B

Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP
=T HHIR

¢ Appointed on 1 December
2012

¢ Professor of Nursing of the
Nethersole School of Nursing
of the Chinese University of
Hong Kong

o M2012412 51 BREAE

o BRPXREMITRER BN
BEHER

Prof Raymond LIANG
Hin-suen, SBS, JP
REBRHAR

¢ Appointed on 1 April 2013

¢ Specialist in haematology
and haematological
oncology and assistant
medical superintendent of
a private hospital

* R2013F 4 A1 BEEE

o MARRMAFBBNMERELR
RRBERERE

Ms Esther LEUNG
Yuet-yin, JP
RHEL T

Deputy Secretary for Financial
Services and the Treasury

HEEBRERBRNER
(up to 22.9.2016)
(FHZ 2016 F9 A 224 )

¢ Appointed on 2 April 2012
¢ Representing Secretary for

Financial Services and the Treasury

of Hong Kong Government
e R2012F 4 A2 AEZME

o RERBBRFUEEH R
E#RRE

Ir Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok,

SBS, MH, JP

EFREL

¢ Appointed on 1 December
2014

¢ Engineer and Member of
the Legislative Council
(Engineering Functional
Constituency)

e R20145F 12 A1 AEZE
o TREREINIDESFEE (TR

Prof Gabriel Matthew
LEUNG, GBS, JP
REEBEHIR

¢ Appointed on 1 August 2013

¢ Dean of Li Ka Shing Faculty
of Medicine of the University
of Hong Kong

e R2013F8 A1 HEZE
s BEREFEHURD R LR

Ms Winnie NG, JP
hERLZL

(up to 30.11.2016)

(FEIZ2016F 11 H30H)

¢ Appointed on 1 December
2010

¢ Director of a listed public
transportation group and
founder of a listed media
company

e R2010F 12 A1 BEZE

o« EHAKBHRBEER LT
HEBHEAREINA

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP

RREELE

Chief Executive, HA

Bl BB BITIARH

¢ Appointed on 8 November
2010

¢ Board Member in capacity
as Chief Executive of the
Hospital Authority

e N2010F 11 A8 HERFE

. LERERRIRERSH
HEEREERKE

Mr Patrick NIP
Tak-kuen, JP
EEELE

Permanent Secretary for Food

and Health (Health)

RYRFLERFENER (BL)

e Appointed on 6 July 2016

¢ Board Member in capacity
as Permanent Secretary for
Food and Health (Health)
of Hong Kong Government

e R2016 7 A6 HEZTE

o UEBBTRNEELR
EANER (H4) FHHE
BiERRKE



Dr PANG Yiu-kai,
GBS, JP

TREEL

e Appointed on 1 April 2011

¢ Deputy managing director of
a listed company

* R2011F4[1 REEFE
o EHRRENTRAE
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Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang,

BBS

HERE ST E

¢ Appointed on 1 December
2015

¢ Director of a real estate
development company

o A2015F 12 A1 BEZRT
s BEMREARES

Mr WONG Kwai-huen,

BBS, JP

ITHEHESRE

¢ Appointed on 1 December
2012

¢ Solicitor and a law firm
consultant

e R2012F 12 A1 AEZHE
o RRD R RN E TS FRER]

Ms Priscilla WONG

Pui-sze, BBS, JP

Rzt

¢ Appointed on 1 December
2015

e Practising barrister

e RN2015F 12 A1 BEZFE

o HEAEAM

Prof Maurice YAP
Keng-hung, JP

¢ Appointed on 1 April
2011

¢ Dean of the Faculty
of Health and Social
Sciences of the Hong
Kong Polytechnic
University

o R20MF4[1RE
R

o BERIABEER
HER SRR

Mr Jason YEUNG
Chi-wai

o B T

¢ Appointed on
1 December 2015

¢ Group chief
compliance and risk
management officer
of a group of listed
companies

o R20165F 12 A1 R
Zir

o IIRAMEEERR
BB E =B

Mr Charlie YIP
Wing-tong
BXREXE
¢ Appointed on
1 August 2015
¢ Retired social worker
e M2015F8A1H%E
=it
o RIAHTI

Ms Carol YUEN
Siu-wai, JP
=NEZL

Deputy Secretary for
Financial Services and
the Treasury

HEEBRERRENER

¢ Appointed on
7 October 2016

¢ Representing Secretary
for Financial Services
and the Treasury of
Hong Kong Government

e RN2016 £10 A7 HE
E3ES

o RERBEDRIMEE
kEBRER

Mr Richard YUEN
Ming-fai, GBS, JP
RERERE

Permanent Secretary for Food
and Health (Health)
RYRFLERBEENER (FE)
(up to 5.7.2016)

(FEIZ 20167 HA6H)

¢ Appointed on 9 September 2011

¢ Board Member in capacity as
Permanent Secretary for Food
and Health (Health) of Hong
Kong Government

o R2011 9 AOREZF

o UEBBIRYEFELR
PERER (BL) S hE
EREERKE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
BEER

The Hospital Authority (HA) is a statutory body
established under the Hospital Authority Ordinance
(Cap. 113) (the HA Ordinance) in December 1990,
responsible for managing all public hospitals in
Hong Kong. HA is accountable to the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (HKSAR) Government
through the Secretary for Food and Health.

BREER (BER) REZEERE - RE (BREERKA)
F113ER1990F 12 - EEEEFTBNAVLER -
WEBRYMEFERRARATRAFIITHRERFES
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Principles

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for and commitment
to corporate governance principles and recognises that the
Authority’s stakeholders expect the highest standards of
performance, accountability and conduct.

Hospital Authority Board

Under the HA Ordinance, the Chief Executive of the HKSAR
appoints members to the HA Board. Membership of the
Authority comprises 24 non-public officers, three public officers
and one principal officer (the Hospital Authority Chief Executive).
Board Members are not separately remunerated. The 2016-17
Board consisted of 28 members including the Chairman, with
details listed in Appendix 1.

The HA Board meets formally about 12 times a year and
any other times as required. In 2016-17, it met 16 times
and considered over 140 agenda items, covering an array of
important matters in leading and managing HA, including
formulation of policies and strategies, steering and monitoring of
the planning, development and operation of hospital services and
supporting facilities, resource management, risk management
and internal control, contingency preparedness, governance, etc.
In addition, three Board papers covering urgent matters were
circulated for approval between meetings.

Pursuant to the recommendations of the Steering Committee
on Review of HA, the HA Board continued to reinforce its
leading and managing role in HA. In overseeing and steering
the implementation of various enhancements in the HA Review
Action Plan, the HA Board and its functional committees received
regular progress reports from the management and provided
strategic directions on relevant policy matters.

= Al
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Corporate Governance #EER

Corporate governance is an evolving process. Continuous efforts
were made by the HA Board to sustain the momentum on a
spectrum of enhanced practices to ensure accountability and
stewardship of HA's management of resources and services.
Suitable adjustments were made on the terms of reference
of individual functional committees as required to reflect the
latest developments. The secretariat support and practices for
the Board and its functional committees were reviewed and
standardised. The role and participation of functional committees
were strengthened in setting key standards, driving for best
practices and monitoring performance. In pursuit of organisation-
wide risk management, joint endeavour was made across HA to
achieve progress towards a holistic and standardised approach of
risk management. Following established practice, the HA Board
and its functional committees conducted annual self-assessment
to ensure effective operation and for continuous improvement.

During the year, familiarisation programme in the form of sharing
sessions and hospital visits was arranged for new members.
Corporate visits were also conducted to keep members abreast of
the knowledge and skills applicable to public sector operations.

BEBE AR —ETE RENBRE - BER
RERFERTLZIEBLER  BREER

HEEBERERMEEEMEN - RFMEE
BT TENEEZESMBERE - A1)
ARFNEE  IRTNGE—TRKeEkHE
aéﬁamwiiﬁﬁﬁ REIIMNEE

BEZERAFVIZRE  BERREME
%%ﬁﬂm%@ﬂ/A BT EWER
fREIR  BER L TH A MREETHE
NEEREEE - ERER - BERK
ehEBEEZE SRR —ERF  8F#

TR - FERB DUEE R T EIGE

FA- BMLHFRELRED FE RERD
B YRTHRESBLE  EPHME
BRERBEFNRINEMFREE
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Board Committees

For optimal performance of roles and exercise of powers, the
HA Board has established 11 functional committees: Audit and
Risk Committee, Emergency Executive Committee, Executive
Committee, Finance Committee, Human Resources Committee,
Information Technology Services Governing Committee, Main
Tender Board, Medical Services Development Committee,
Public Complaints Committee, Staff Appeals Committee and
Supporting Services Development Committee. Membership of
the committees, terms of reference and focus of work in 2016-17
are outlined in Appendix 3.

Hospital Governing Committees

To enhance community participation and governance of
public hospitals, Hospital Governing Committees (HGCs) were
established in hospitals and institutions in accordance with the
HA Ordinance. Changes in the year included the establishment of
HGC for the new Tin Shui Wai Hospital (TSWH) in June 2016 and
the dissolving of the HGC for the Rehabaid Centre (RC) in April
2016 subsequent to the termination of HA'Ss management of the
RC. A full list of the HGCs is listed in Appendix 4. In 2016-17,
130 meetings were conducted by 32 HGCs. They received regular
management reports from Hospital Chief Executives, monitored
operational and financial performance of the hospitals, provided
policy guidance on hospital management, and participated in
human resources and procurement functions, as well as hospital
and community partnership activities.

HGCs operated in accordance with corporate governance
policies and practices outlined in the Manual on the Operation
of Hospital Governing Committees approved by the HA Board.
The linkage and interactions between the Board and HGCs have
particular significance to the development of HA's corporate
policies and strategies, and their continuous improvement.
Continuous efforts were made to actively engage HGCs in HA's
corporate issues, and ensure follow up actions on feedback
from the committees and communication of relevant outcomes.
HGCs were also invited to participate in strategic planning
involving the hospitals, including matters relating to HA's fees
and charges review, implementation plan for re-delineation of
cluster boundary and capacity-demand gap analysis, and the
development of refined population-based resource allocation
model.

In line with the practice of HA Board and its committees, annual
self-assessment was conducted by each HGC with a view to
identifying opportunities for further enhancements. All HGCs
adopted the standard questionnaire promulgated by the HA
Board.

ARERTWZES
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Regional Advisory Committees

To provide HA with advice on the healthcare needs for specific
regions of Hong Kong and to assist the Authority with better
performance of its functions in relation to the regions, the Authority
has established three Regional Advisory Committees (RACs).
These committees and their respective membership are listed in
Appendix 5. Each RAC meets four times a year.

In 2016-17, the RACs were briefed on the progress of annual
plans and targets of individual clusters, as well as other
programmes such as the re-delineation of boundary in Kowloon
and service commencement of TSWH. Other discussions
included a number of matters, including progress update on the
development of Electronic Health Record programme and HA's
participation as user, progress update on the development of
Integrated Chinese-Western Medicine Pilot Programme, General
Outpatient Clinic Public-Private Partnership (PPP) Programme,
development of a refined population-based resources allocation
model, Colon Assessment PPP Programme, new case booking
with mobile application BookHA, winter surge preparation,
Annual Report on Public Appreciation, Feedback and Complaints
Management 2015-16 and 2015 Patient Experience and
Satisfaction Survey on Inpatient Service, etc.

EBEHAHEES

SRR NUBEREFENER  BE
PR =EAREFAZEENHHEER
EAEZEENEE LB AR ITER -
fieroHBEE-—HMLZEENEKERE -

EREFHAZEEEFARNAEE -

2016-17 FEZE 2T ERNBAENEF
TEFTEIERMET - AR NBERRBAE
FIgER - RKEERIEAREETE -
“HEEHEREZEEeNm T TRSE 8
REERHPBRELRSHEEFRELHET
BMER PABHIELEHEEER
& LEBPIRANEHIETE - BRE
EAARBERNERSRER - BER
BERMLERIERTEl - FHRERERTELD
B TEAIE - £ERBRE S &L
HWIE (RREE  BERRRFEEREF®
2015-16) 2015 FF B im A L5 M AR m
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Executive Management

The executive management team of HA is outlined in Appendix 2(b).
The executives are charged by the HA Board with the
responsibility to manage and administer day-to-day business and
operations of HA. To ensure that the management can discharge
duties in an effective and efficient manner, the HA Board has
set out clear delegated authority, policies and codes of conduct.
The Board approves an annual plan prepared by the executives in
accordance with the Board's direction. Regular executive reports
on the progress of agreed performance indicators and targets are
presented to the Board.

Under the powers stipulated in the HA Ordinance, the Authority
determines the remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment for all its employees. Remuneration packages
of executive directors and other senior managers are devised
to attract, motivate and retain high calibre individuals in a
competitive talent market. Remuneration packages of all senior
executives are considered and endorsed by the HA Board through
the Executive Committee.

THRERE

fig2 (b) HABETHERBERNEE - 817
BABEBERAEEBREEINTER
REBESEHENEE - REREEEAR
RAEMMETERE  KRBRIILET#
N BERRBETER - KeBFHAABTT
BABRBASTTEHIFTEA TS - 17
BABTEMRAASRZHTENRRIER
RIT{ERRERRE -
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BERAETHMAREMH MRS K
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW
EEER

In face of ageing population, nations worldwide are
capitalising on technology advancement to deliver patient
service of better quality. The Hospital Authority (HA) is
no exception. Apart from trusted and diligent healthcare
professionals and supporting teams, technology has

a strategic and vital role to play in the future
development of public hospital service in

Hong Kong.

HHEAOZLEE  BREER (BER)
BERRZE &K SHALENEARAR
HEHFHNRE - RERRER AV ERR
RBERE RT -—MEXRE - 58A
SNEEASNEERD  BETE
EETARRNAE -
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HA has been developing innovative and sustainable approaches
over the past years with the assistance of technology to meet
ever rising demands on public hospital service. Technology-based
solutions are instrumental not only in improving communication
with patients and the public, but also in enhancing the
satisfaction of various stakeholders. Examples include enhanced
modules on Clinical Management System, automated quality
assurance controls systems, clinical mobile apps, as well as
mobile apps for the public on specialist clinic booking, pregnancy
information and location directory.

Last year, HA responded to the Report of the Steering Committee
on Review of Hospital Authority with full dedication. Over
100 measures were implemented in phases with satisfactory
progress. Kwong Wah Hospital, Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital
and Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital were
regrouped into the Kowloon Central Cluster in December 2016
to rationalise cross-cluster service arrangement. Not only does
the initiative balance population and hospital bed distribution
among all clusters, but it also further enhances vertical
integration of services to ensure continuity of patient care. To
enable HA's development in the long run, we are developing a
refined population-based model to support the development
of short, medium and long-term service plans for optimisation
of resource allocation. We have also fostered staff training and
development by strengthening governance on training and
designing structured mechanisms across clusters.

BELF  BEREBOMRAESELRN
MAIFFE 0% - EE TETE I AL B
BEARTS K o AR SR FRIR T RRE
ZHH ARCERABEEERKEZEAY
LB RRBESIRG - RIMIFHES ER
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Fr BPEA - BREME - TEREME
BERERAMATBR - A RITHN
EHRBROMEE

EF B2 H0ECEERBRIEES
BeE) B EER100BEE N -
TEEERIF - 201612 A + BEEEERT -
ENERMEE=TZAUEBRENE S
TNET RGBS BIEEBRE T
FEE AR A D ERIK D MIER - W8
RFSHH S  BRAABSFENE
B o SO0 BABRANBIEAAD BERE
BRAMER @ IBRAB RSB - A
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Looking ahead, HA is actively implementing capital projects
of different scales to enhance patient services. A series of
hospital development projects have commenced as devised in
the $200 billion ten-year blueprint for hospital development
announced in the Government’s 2016 Policy Address. Apart
from service commencement of Tin Shui Wai Hospital in January
2017, the first children hospital in Hong Kong will start service in
phases from 2018 to provide tertiary specialty care for complex
and rare paediatric cases. In addition, redevelopment of some
hospitals established for long years is well underway. They will
provide services with a new look very soon.

I would like to express my gratitude to all members of the HA
Board, Regional Advisory Committees and Hospital Governing
Committees, as well as co-opted members of Functional
Committees. They have provided valuable opinions and support to
HA along the years. We welcome Mrs Ann Kung Yeung Yun-chi,
Mr Daniel Lam Chun, Ms Lisa Lau Man-man, Mr Patrick Nip
Tak-kuen and Ms Carol Yuen Siu-wai, for joining the Board last
year. Their expertise in various industries would bring fresh ideas
to HA. Meanwhile, we thank Ms Quince Chong Wai-yan, Mr
Ricky Fung Choi-cheung, Ms Esther Leung Yuet-yin, Ms Winnie
Ng and Mr Richard Yuen Ming-fai, who have retired from the
Board, for their substantial contribution to HA.
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| also wish to take this opportunity to thank members of BERBE—FRSHKR BEEBEEA
Legislative Council, District Councils, patient groups, and BIEVZEHE RESHE - HmAAH
volunteers for their unfailing support. Last but not least, FIZE TH & HiE o Il » ISR
my sincere gratitude goes to our 74,000 staff members, 35 o 5% - BRI HEEEE 74,0001
including frontline healthcare colleagues, and supporting [Fz= . RS2 GE8BEAS SEASS
and administrative staff. Notwithstanding various challenges, BEREITHRASNZYMALE  BEBAL

HA will strive to materialise the vision of helping people stay DT F BALR  BEF BER

healthy. P TERERETF - REZE] B(EW °
John Leong Chi-yan FE
Chairman RELC
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT
1T BUE S E ¥R

The Hospital Authority (HA) has entered a new era after the
celebration of its silver jubilee in 2015. While we have critically
reviewed our past, we understand that our effort must not
cease so as to fulfil the mission of HA amidst challenges posed
by ageing population, medical technology advancement, the
prevalence of chronic diseases, higher patient expectation and
emerging communicable diseases. With 74,000 professional and
committed staff members, HA will continue to do its utmost
to serve the public with care and

expertise in sustaining a robust

and reliable healthcare system

and formulate long term plans

for the future.

FE2015FENBRELE
BREER (BER)BEHRLT
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The HA Review led by the Government has come at an
opportune time to better prepare us for future challenges.
Steered by the Board, HA has been diligently implementing
the recommendations of the Steering Committee on Review of
HA as pledged in the HA Action Plan. The role of Head Office
in central coordination is strengthened to ensure consistency
in service provision and to coordinate the adoption of new
treatment and highly specialised technology among clusters.
With regard to refining the cluster management structure, the
roles and responsibilities of Cluster Chief Executives (CCEs) and
their involvement in the overall management of HA have been
reviewed to achieve better division of labour and alignment
of service provision at cluster level with organisation goals.
Arrangements have also been made by phases to group two or
more hospitals under the management of one Hospital Chief
Executive (HCE). This can bring the scope of duties of all HCEs
to a comparable level and facilitate job rotation among HCEs
with a view to enhancing cooperation, coordination and role
differentiation of hospitals within the cluster. Better coordination
of services and rationalisation of the organisation structure will
ensure smooth operation of HA and effective delivery of services.

On the service operational front, HA took forward various
initiatives to increase the service capacity in priority areas. Primary
care services were strengthened through the addition of general
outpatient clinic (GOPC) quotas in 2016-17, and an increase of
telephone lines supporting the GOPC Telephone Appointment
System. These measures effectively provide greater convenience
to the public.

B R BT R ) B B B I B et T
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Service demand was better managed through extended
collaborations with community partners, thus alleviating patients’
waiting time. In addition to the existing Public-Private Partnership
(PPP) Programmes, the Colon Assessment PPP Programme was
launched last year. While optimising the use of healthcare resources,
the Programmes enable participating patients to enjoy more choices
and receive appropriate treatment as early as possible.

HA Strategic Plan 2017-2022 was published last year. The plan
sets out HA's overall direction, and strategic integrated planning
of services, facilities and workforce in the coming five years. The
Strategic Plan will be the overarching framework for guiding the
HA Annual Plan for 2017-18 and that beyond.

HA is implementing capital projects of various scales in order to
improve patient services including redevelopment of Kwong Wah
Hospital and Queen Mary Hospital, expansion of United Christian
Hospital, and a new acute hospital in Kai Tak Development
Area. The construction work for Tin Shui Wai Hospital and
re-provisioning of Yaumatei Specialist Clinic at Queen Elizabeth
Hospital, as well as the superstructure works for the new Hong
Kong Children’s Hospital have been already completed. The
above projects are part of the 10-year Hospital Development Plan
which will provide some 5,000 additional public hospital beds
and over 90 new operating theatres upon completion.

Effective human resource management is of paramount
importance to professional development and motivation among
staff, which facilitate delivery of patient-centred services. In
addition to recruitment of healthcare professionals, we continued
to enhance promotion opportunities for Residents to Associate
Consultants, and strengthen training and development through
simulation training for clinical staff, corporate scholarship
programme, mediation skills training, etc. We value staff’s opinions
and conducted the HA-wide staff survey in August 2016 to better
understand their concerns. We will conduct a detailed analysis of
the survey's findings and formulate improvement measures, with a
view to building a more favourable working environment.

In line with the global trend of harnessing technology in the
delivery of healthcare services, HA strives to streamline workflow
and enhance service efficiency with IT solutions, including
Clinical Management System Ill, Inpatient Medication Order Entry
System, Filmless Operating Theatres, etc. We embrace innovation
and technology to provide the public with instant access to
public healthcare services and information at their fingertips —
including delivery of alerts on news of public healthcare services
and activities by HA corporate app HA Touch; a handy specialist
outpatient clinics (SOPC) new case booking platform BookHA;
a one-stop portal of pregnancy information HApi Journey;
useful caring tips with Stoma Care. More mobile apps are being
planned and developed.
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Last year, HA continued to support various Government-led
public healthcare initiatives, including the Electronic Health
Record (eHR) programme, seasonal influenza vaccination
programme, and the organ donation campaign with various
initiatives to promulgate the organ donation messages to the
community at large.

Senior appointments in 2016-17 included Dr Deacons Yeung Tai-
kong as Hospital Chief Executive (HCE) of Pok Oi Hospital and
Tin Shui Wai Hospital; Dr Lo Su-vui as CCE of New Territories East
Cluster; Dr Libby Lee Ha-yun as Director (Strategy and Planning)
at HA Head Office; and Dr Herman Lau as HCE of Shatin
Hospital, Bradbury Hospice and Cheshire Home, Shatin.

| wish to express my deepest gratitude to our passionate and
dedicated staff for their selfless contributions in safeguarding
public health. | must also thank the Government for its
unfaltering support in funding and policy initiatives. With
the concerted effort of all, HA will continue to move ahead
and make impressive strides in maximising the benefit of the
community in public healthcare services.

q

PY Leung
Chief Executive
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MILESTONES OF THE YEAR
REOE

4/2016

Lo Fong Shiu Po Eye Centre,

the ophthalmology service

centre relocated from Queen

Mary Hospital, commenced service at Grantham
Hospital to provide one-stop treatment and service to over
80,000 patients per year in the Hong Kong West Cluster.

EEHBRE/NERMPORARS - AZIBEERMN
FIZ RS - Bt BFAABB \BERARK—EADA
EIE - A ST R RB RS L o

4/2016

Hospital Authority (HA) organised
a territory-wide community roving
exhibition to mark its 25" Anniversary
to showcase a wide range of advanced
medical technologies introduced in public
hospitals to enhance patient services, and
also take the opportunity to pay tribute
to the healthcare professionals for their
dedicated services.

BEER(BER) BEMMKIL25 FEF
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5/2016

, A ceremony entitled “Our Tribute to
Kwong Wah Hospital in the 1960s” was
held before the commencement of the
redevelopment project of Kwong Wah
Hospital to commemorate the building and
pay tribute to the hospital staff.

FEEBRAEEETIREMRMNET [REERR
60FREZERE] FE - HEEFEEREL
YRR RIEREEABEE
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6/2016

Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern
Hospital and Tung Wah Eastern

Hospital successfully completed the
periodic review in Hospital Accreditation.

REBELERAIIT ZBEB L RERF A
il [ Bl RRE T8 ] FE BeET -

7/12016

The expansion project of Haven of Hope
Hospital marked an important milestone of
the development of the hospital. The project
targets to be completed in 2021.

EEBREERIRIENNER  WERITEF
BESBREENEZER TREME:
2021 F5EHK ©
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8/2016

Queen Elizabeth Hospital was accredited by
Baby Friendly Hospital Initiative Hong Kong
Association as the first baby friendly hospital
in Hong Kong. A Baby-friendly Hospital
Designation Ceremony was held in August
2016 as sharing on its efforts in promoting
and supporting breastfeeding over the years.

FRDIEE BERESHERE
Wﬁ%/aéﬁﬁrz%%ﬁmy I 72016 F
BABITT [BERERTRMAE]  HERS
ZELEREH R IFTIEBATIE -

10/2016

The construction of the Ambulatory Care Centre
(Extension) at Queen Elizabeth Hospital was completed.
Clinical services provided by Yaumatei Specialist Clinic
have been relocated to the Extension Block in phases
starting from December 2016.

FRDAER A BB RSO GIR) ZAK - H i
B2 RHENBERFHRF 12 AR EEEBE
HE o

9/2016

Prince of Wales Hospital implemented the
Operating Theatre Patient Location Update
System (OTPLUS) to provide family members
with real-time status update of patients who
are undergoing operations.
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11/2016

The strategy of integrating medical
and social support for elderly through
system and technology enabled
service innovations has won the
International Hospital Federation (IHF)
Grand Award at the 40" IHF World
Hospital Congress.

EERETARERARBLGAMNER
TR — BEEREBEETREHOR
B - EF40/E BB B S g (IHF) it
RERL AR IHF K42 -

11/2016

HA and Shanghai Hospital Development
Centre renewed a collaboration agreement
to enhance collaboration on exchanges
and visits, training, research and service
development.

BERRLBRRBRERTOVDEREE
Wik - (REE T EIORNIAT - Bah - AT
Al FEFT - ARBRFE R TERIA1E ©

11/2016

HA won accolade for “Award for
Website Corporate Governance
Information” in Best Corporate
Governance Awards 2016 organised
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, in recognition

of its corporate website in terms of

high transparency, and variety of

languages for the convenience of

ethnic minorities.

BERNEBBSTMASRERN20165F
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12/2016

HA launched the Colon Assessment Public-
Private Partnership Programme to provide
subsidy to eligible patients to receive
services from private specialists, offering
more choices for participating patients.

BERELBBEREANL S HIFTE - &

EjJAﬁT%fﬁ_)\Tifo*EEkT B AR 75 -
RRARBEZERE -

12/2016

The Accident and Emergency Training
Centre of Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin
Hospitals was granted Silver Award by
American Heart Association in recognition
of its exemplary resuscitation and
emergency care training programmes.

R B0R MBS ER B B 1Y SOIE B I AR R
Lo BB e REBIRE - RIH%
FOMBEEATIRREE

12/2016

Administrative arrangements on the re-delineation
between Kowloon Central Cluster and Kowloon
West Cluster were implemented on 1 December
in response to the recommendations of the
Steering Committee on the Review of HA, with
an aim to reduce cross-cluster consultation and
facilitating convenience for patients.

NEFHEENEOBBEENTHRZHEN
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12/2016

Celebrating its 55" Anniversary, Castle Peak Hospital
organised an open day with exhibitions on the
hospital’s services, as well as seminars and game
booths to enhance public understanding of mental
illness.

ﬁ@%fl\@@rﬁlﬁk HH ﬁiﬁﬁ;ﬁfh&%ﬁu S jJD
SR RETEAREHR B AR o

12/2016

Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern
Hospital was the first hospital in
Hong Kong in the manufacturing and
implanting of a replica of a talus with
3D printing technology for a patient.

RE B ANEEMEBKIER 3D
TENEA - B— R BEERELEAK
AMEERE  ERAREEBRES

12/2016

HA commenced providing information on
waiting time of Accident and Emergency (A&E)
departments to the public on various platforms,
including electronic TV screens in all A&E

departments, HA corporate website and HA Touch
mobile app.
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2/2017

The Minimal Invasive Surgery Centre,

comprising three theatre suites namely
Endo-Lap Theatre, Robotic Theatre
and Interventional Radiology / Hybrid
Theatre, was established in Princess
Margaret Hospital.

BRABEAIMAIF MO AR
RAENBERTME  BMAFMERNT
AR EFME -

1/2017

Landfill gas was first used to generate

electricity through installation of a combined
heat and power plant in Alice Ho Miu Ling
Nethersole Hospital as the first hospital
in Hong Kong adopting such system. The
system also supplies steam and hot water
for various hospital facilities.

BERAEERREAARNERI DR
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2/2017

HA launched an obstetric mobile app HApi Journey,
providing a one-stop portal of health information
and useful tip for pregnant women to facilitate
their pregnancy journey and be well prepared for the
newborn.
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2/2017

Queen Mary Hospital (QMH)
kicked off the celebration of its
80" Anniversary at the Hong Kong
West Cluster Spring Banquet cum
QMH 80" Anniversary Dinner which
was attended by over 1,700 staff
and guests.

BEERAEEARALDTRE
IBEER 80 EAFEMME ] 580 FF
ERUEEITEER - 81,7008
ITREELRF -

3/2017

Tin Shui Wai Hospital commenced service in
phases from January 2017 to enhance medical
support for the Tin Shui Wai Community. At the
initial stage, services cover specialist outpatient
clinic, community nursing, renal dialysis, diagnostic
radiology and pharmacy, while daytime A&E service
commenced in March 2017.

KKEEBRNR2017F1 A DB ERIEARE © 11
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3/2017

HA was granted the Gold Award in

Public Sector in the first IT Governance

Achievement Award by the Information

Systems Audit and Control Association
China Hong Kong Chapter in recognition
of its outstanding achievement in IT
governance.

BERNBERESERRETHETEHRATED
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ENGAGEMENT AND TEAMWORK
RBENE BREN

The Hospital Authority (HA) Head Office and staff
representatives maintained constant direct communication
through Six Staff Group Consultative Committees and the
Central Consultative Committee.

ZRANEBEHBEESERPRIHBEES  BREEER (BER)
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The HA Chief Executive paid regular visits to hospitals to
exchange views with hospital frontline staff. Other channels
including staff newsletter HASLink, HA Facebook Page and HA
YouTube Channel also facilitated timely communication with staff
on updates in the organisation. At cluster and hospital levels,
Cluster Chief Executives (CCE) and Hospital Chief Executives
(HCE) engaged frontline staff through regular meetings,
newsletters, blog, online letterbox and staff hotline. The
HR App was launched by phases in March 2016, subsequently
rolled out to all HA staff by the end of March 2017, with seven
modules implemented in the first year, namely “myWorkDay",
“myBenefit”, “myHealth”, “myOpportunities”, “myView",
“myPay” and “mylearning”, all providing easy and instant
access to essential information via mobile devices.

HA believes that staff opinions are essential to supporting the
management in developing key measures in engaging employee
and creating a better work environment. The HA Staff Survey
was conducted in August 2016 and the survey results showed
that HA colleagues took pride in their quality and patient-centred
service and were loyal to the organisation. On the other hand,
HA should strengthen staff communication and recognition.
Valuable findings of the survey will help HA formulate
specific action plans at corporate and cluster levels for future
improvement.
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To bring more convenience to staff, electronic booking for staff
clinic has been introduced through mobile app “Staff Health
Record” (mSHR) since November 2016 in addition to telephone
appointment. Utilisation data of the two booking systems of
telephone and app also provided useful reference for future
service planning on HA staff clinics.

HA attaches great importance to staff safety. As a measure of
continuous improvement in Occupational Safety and Health (OSH)
management, a consultancy study was conducted to review the
overall OSH management. Recommendations on strengthening
governance, enhancing management structure, building staff
competence and fostering safety culture will be implemented by
phases.

HA organised a wide variety of recreational, sports and family
activities throughout the year to promote a balanced and healthy
lifestyle. Apart from HA Family Day and HA Family Night, family
members of staff were welcome to participate in selected
sports activities, such as the HA New Year Run, Dragon Boat
Competition cum Fun Day and Sports Meet. The 2017 HA New
Year Run continued to be one of the most popular events. It had
an enrollment of over 5,700 staff and family members and over
$1 million was raised for HA Charitable Foundation to support
services for the benefit of patients.

To recognise staff's dedication and loyalty, long service awards
and retirement souvenirs are presented every year. Individuals
and teams with outstanding achievements received accolades
through HA Outstanding Staff and Teams Award Ceremony held
at the Hospital Authority Convention. For 2017, five staff and
seven teams won the awards, while another four staff and three
teams were granted Merit Awards.
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Outstanding Teams:

¢ Baby-friendly Hospital Initiative Team
Queen Elizabeth Hospital (Kowloon Central Cluster)

¢ Chai Wan Laundry
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
(Hong Kong East Cluster)

o Critical Incident Support Teams (CISTs)
Hospital Authority

¢ Hospital Authority Eye Bank
Hong Kong Eye Hospital (Kowloon Central Cluster)

e Kowloon East and New Territories East Cross-cluster
Comprehensive Ear Reconstruction and Hearing
Rehabilitation Team
Kowloon East Cluster and New Territories East Cluster

¢ Paediatric Nephrology Team
Princess Margaret Hospital (Kowloon West Cluster)

¢ Pharmacy Express Services Team
Head Office Chief Pharmacist's Office and Information
Technology and Health Informatics Division, Prince of Wales
Hospital and Queen Elizabeth Hospital (Hospital Authority Head
Office, New Territories East Cluster and Kowloon Central Cluster)

Merit Teams:

¢ Occupational Health Centre
Hong Kong East Cluster

¢ Orthopaedic Rehabilitation Team
Tuen Mun Hospital (New Territories West Cluster)

e Patient Relations and Engagement Team
Tuen Mun Hospital and Pok Oi Hospital
(New Territories West Cluster)
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HEAD OFFICE AND
CLUSTER REPORTS
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The Hospital Authority (HA) provides public healthcare services to the
people of Hong Kong through the Head Office and seven hospital clusters.

Head Office and Cluster Reports present an overview of the performance of
HA Head Office and Clusters under six corporate strategic intents and also
achievements in contributing to a friendly environment.
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Hong Kong East Cluster Kowloon West Cluster
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Hong Kong West Cluster New Territories East Cluster
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Kowloon Central Cluster New Territories West Cluster
FUBE R B4R SR PR AR

Kowloon East Cluster

NURE R4






HEAD OFFICE AND CLUSTER REPORTS
RIMEE N B TFER

HA Head Office (HAHO) aligns corporate values and directions.
It plays a strategic role in leading corporate development and
supporting hospital clusters through interactive collaboration
of seven divisions, namely Cluster Services, Corporate Services,
Finance, Human Resources, Information Technology and Health
Informatics, Quality & Safety, and Strategy & Planning. HAHO
initiated around 100 programme targets in 2016-17 under six
strategic intents outlined in the HA Annual Plan.
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Strategic intent:
Allay staff shortage and high turnover

A series of measures were unveiled to alleviate manpower
shortfall and high turnover, including recruitment of more than
460 doctors, 1,750 nurses and 580 allied health professionals.
As at March 2017, there were 15 non-local doctors working as
Service Residents under Limited Registration in HA.

To encourage and retain well-qualified staff, additional promotion
opportunities were offered under the Additional Associate
Consultant Promotion Mechanism. Besides, an annual progression
exercise introduced in 2015-16 was continued to retain Patient
Care Assistants of inpatient services on 24 hours shift.

HA strives to strengthen its workforce for service provision. In view
of the lack of local training for podiatrists, overseas scholarship
was offered to eight selected podiatrist students to study a
three-year degree course in the United Kingdom. Midwifery
training programmes were provided in an attempt to address
growing demand for maternity services in public hospitals.
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With the $300 million Government designated training fund in
place, various training programmes were rolled out in 2016-17
for both clinical and non-clinical staff for supporting service
development, professional development and operational needs.
To enhance management capabilities of senior clinical leaders
and executives, more e-modules of Healthcare Service Training
Management were released. Training programmes on people
skills and team leadership, as well as vocational training to
strengthen technical competencies of patient care assistants
were also provided.

With an aim to promote career development, preceptorship
programmes were provided to newly recruited nurse graduates.
There were overseas training scholarships for doctors, nurses,
allied health staff and pharmacists, and training subsidies were
offered to healthcare professionals. Territory-wide simulation
training programmes were developed for doctors and nurses in
major specialties to enhance career development opportunities
and professional capabilities. Mediation skills training was also
organised for frontline staff to enhance their competency in
patient engagement and conflict resolution.
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Strategic intent:
Better manage growing service demand

As recommended by the Steering Committee on the Review of
HA, re-delineation of cluster boundary between Kowloon Central
Cluster (KCC) and Kowloon West Cluster (KWC) took place in
phases with a view to further enhancing vertical integration of
services, strengthen the continuity of care for patients and reduce
cross-cluster consultations. Three hospitals namely Kwong Wah
Hospital, Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital and TWGHs Wong Tai
Sin Hospital, and the services units were regrouped from KWC
to KCC with effect from 1 December 2016. Refining the cluster
boundary will promote a better balance in the service demand
among the three Kowloon clusters. Reorganisation of clinical
services will proceed by phases after 1 April 2017 upon readiness
of supporting functions and infrastructure.

Task Force on Winter Surge regularly reviews the strategy
and response plan for winter surge, and coordinates step-up
measures in order to cope with the anticipated increase in service
demand. In 2016-17, around 18,000 additional service quotas
of GOPCs were provided during the winter surge period. Around
5,000 service quotas of GOPCs were further added during
Christmas, Chinese New Year and Easter holidays. Appeals were
also made to the public for appropriate use of Accident and
Emergency (A&E) services.
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Tremendous effort has been made by HA to reduce waiting
time in various patient services. At A&E Departments, the A&E
Department Support Session Programme continued in 17 A&E
Departments of HA to handle Triage IV (semi-urgent) and
V (non-urgent) cases. The fifth joint replacement centre in HA
was set up in Hong Kong West Cluster to provide additional
surgeries to alleviate the waiting time for joint replacement
surgery.

Services of high demand on life threatening diseases were
strengthened. Grantham Hospital and TWGHs Wong Tai Sin
Hospital provided designated beds to offer centralised care for
chronic ventilator-dependent patients. Multi-disciplinary care was
provided for additional Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)
new cases, and Highly Active Antiretroviral Therapy (HAART)
was offered to eligible patients in Queen Elizabeth Hospital
and Princess Margaret Hospital. Support to Hospital Authority
Infectious Disease Centre was strengthened by recruiting
additional medical manpower in Queen Elizabeth Hospital and
Princess Margaret Hospital to provide rapid response at the first
stage of the emerging major outbreaks of infectious diseases in
Hong Kong.

The Transient Ischaemic Attack (TIA) service in New Territories
West Cluster (NTWC) was reinforced together with the
preparation for further enhancement of thrombolysis service.
Patients can thus receive early treatment and proper diagnosis,
reducing disability and likelihood of future stroke events. For
renal services, the provision of haemodialysis (HD) service was
expanded with additional hospitals HD, nocturnal home HD, and
automated peritoneal dialysis added, while the HD Public-Private
Partnership (PPP) programme continued.

Apart from HD PPP, the PPP programmes of cataract surgeries,
primary care service and radiological investigation service
continued. On top of the three piloting districts of Kwun Tong,
Wong Tai Sin and Tuen Mun, the GOPC PPP programme was
rolled out to nine more districts (Eastern, Southern, Wan Chai,
Kowloon City, Sham Shui Po, Kwai Tsing, Sai Kung, Sha Tin and
Yuen Long), offering convenience for patients seeking primary
healthcare services and relieving the pressure on public general
outpatient service. Provision of infirmary care services by an
non-governmental organisation commissioned via PPP
commenced at Wong Chuk Hang Hospital in September 2016,
with full operation from December 2016 onwards.
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Strategic intent:
Ensure service quality and safety

HA continued to adopt modern technology and new treatment
options, including the use of new biomarkers to improve the
accuracy of prostate cancer detection. We also built up service
capacity of In-vitro Fertilisation (IVF) by adding IVF cycles in
Queen Mary Hospital. For prevention of hepatitis B reactivation
for cancer patients, additional hepatitis B virus DNA tests were
provided for target patients.

The scope of HA Drug Formulary was widened to cover more
drugs with accumulated scientific evidence on clinical efficacy. Two
classes of self-financed drugs for secondary stroke management
and osteoporosis treatment were repositioned as special drugs
in the HA Drug Formulary, while the clinical applications of
three special drug classes were expanded for management of
diabetes mellitus, secondary prevention of osteoporotic fracture
and breast cancer treatment. As a proactive measure to enhance
the transparency on the Drug Formulary, the HA Drug Formulary
Management Manual (“the Manual”) was published, with
particular emphasis on the governance, principles, operating
procedures, consultation and engagement of stakeholders in HA's
drug formulary management. HA promulgated the Manual to its
stakeholders to enhance their understanding and confidence in
HA's drug formulary management system.
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A breastfeeding support team was established in Pamela Youde
Nethersole Eastern Hospital and Tuen Mun Hospital respectively
in support of HA's policy of promoting breastfeeding for newborn
babies in HA hospitals. Other initiatives included enhancement
of the custom print informed consent system to support
workflow of both surgeons and anaesthetists, and recruitment of
additional manpower to assist in planning and implementation
of comparative audit as prioritised by Coordinating Committees
(Neurosurgery) to monitor the outcomes of neurosurgery.

Through the funding support from the Government to the
Capital Block Vote as well as the Designated Fund of HA, medical
equipment items were installed as additions or replacements in
public hospitals at the total cost of approximately $782 million in
the year.

New Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) reflecting capacity-
demand gap and service efficiency have been developed for key
pressure areas, including specialist outpatient services, operating
theatre (OT) services and access block monitoring. The KPIs on
specialist outpatient services and OT utilisation provided direction
for capacity building and resource allocation. The access block
indicator could facilitate hospitals to review their situation and
take actions in a timely manner.
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Strategic intent:
Enhance partnership with patients and
community

HA strives to enhance community support for children with
special-care needs in special schools. Case managers were
recruited in Caritas Medical Centre, Kwong Wah Hospital,
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital and Queen Elizabeth
Hospital to provide integrated care.

To promote chronic disease management, the implementation of
the Patient Empowerment Programme with non-governmental
organisations continued to provide patients with disease specific
education and self-care skills.

Positive results were revealed in the Report of Patient Experience
and Satisfaction Survey on Inpatient Service (the Survey) last
year. With the findings of the Survey, HA can better understand
the needs and expectations of patients for continuous quality
improvement.

To foster close partnership with patients and the community, a
planning workshop on Patient Resources Centre (PRC) services
was conducted with key stakeholders in 2016-17 to formulate
strategies and priority actions on patient empowerment and
volunteer service development. We also launched nine pilot
collaborative projects involving patient groups, clinical teams
and PRCs in hospitals to enhance peer support and disease
management for chronic disease patients. In addition, the 4" batch
of Patient Partnership in Action (PPIA) training programme was
conducted in the year to train up patient leaders. The Smart
Patient Website has also been enhanced with the launch of a new
webpage and eight languages for the ethnic minorities.
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To strengthen interaction and reach out to different sectors of the
community, web-based platforms and social media are adopted for
information dissemination. In addition to the corporate website,
HA Facebook page and YouTube Channel published a total of
more than 560 posts and 30 videos in 2016-17 respectively.

HA has leveraged on advanced technology to strengthen
communication with the public and improve services for patients.
With push natification function in HA corporate mobile application
HA Touch, users will be able to stay up-to-date with important
news on public healthcare services and health activities. In addition
to gynaecology, the coverage of BookHA was further extended
to cardiothoracic surgery, ear, nose and throat, eye, medicine,
neurosurgery, orthopaedics and traumatology, and surgery,
bringing greater convenience to the public in making specialist
outpatient clinic (SOPC) new case appointments. Another mobile
app HApi Journey was launched in February 2017, providing
useful information for pregnant women.

A proactive approach is adopted to maintain rapport and
communicate with the media and community stakeholders to
keep them abreast of the latest development in HA policies
and services. During the year, about 180 media activities were
organised, 420 press releases were issued and 340 articles
were contributed to various media platforms. About 2,570
media enquiries and 220 community enquiries were handled.
Furthermore, more than 20 meetings with Legislative Councillors
and community stakeholders were arranged or attended, while
more than 100 District Council meetings and related activities
were handled.
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Strategic intent:
Ensure adequate resources for meeting
service needs

The Government continued its commitment to public healthcare
through providing subvention to HA, which reached $53 billion in
2016-17. HA would continue to adopt prudent financial measures
to ensure public resources are used properly and efficiently.

Through HA's annual planning exercise, resource requirement
of individual clusters was identified and considered against the
total amount of resources available to HA, so as to maintain
existing levels of services, to train and build up Hong Kong’s
future healthcare workforce by recruiting new graduates, and
to provide pragmatic service growth in meeting the pressing
demand for public hospital services. To facilitate the delivery
of value-for-money services, HA regularly monitors a set of
performance indicators covering service output, performance
and resources.

In 2016-17, HA recruited additional manpower to sustain the
level of service provision to cater the rising healthcare needs
of the community. Given no additional recurrent Government
subvention in 2016-17 under the Government-wide expenditure
control measures, HA had to operate under a deficit budget
in 2016-17 and recorded an operating deficit of $1.5 billion,
which was funded by HA's one-off revenue reserve as an interim
measure. Since service provision will bring recurrent financial
implication, the deployment of one-off savings to maintain daily
operation will not be sustainable in long term. HA will continue
to perform medium-term financial projection to assess possible
financial outlooks under different scenarios and reflect its
financial position and funding needs to the Government.
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With an aim to minimise the non-clinical duties of clinical
staff and to better control and monitor ward stock of non-
drugs supplies, the enhanced central coordinated refill service
has been rolled out in hospitals by phases since 2013-14.
Full implementation was achieved after the final phase of
implementation in 16 hospitals of five clusters in 2016-17.

HA continued to embrace technology-based solutions to deliver
efficient healthcare services. 12 new or enhanced modules under
Clinical Management System Ill Phase Two project in 2016-17
were completed. Nine clinical mobile apps were developed to
help clinical staff to provide better bedside care. The deployment
of advanced digital imaging technology in operating theatres of
major hospitals was continued to improve surgical services. With
the implementation of Inpatient Medication Order Entry system
in five hospitals in 2016-17 including Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole
Hospital, Caritas Medical Centre, North District Hospital, Pamela
Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital and Pok Oi Hospital, the risk
of prescription errors was further reduced.

IT Infrastructure and systems were implemented to support
service operation of new hospitals and hospital blocks, including
Tin Shui Wai Hospital and relocation of Yaumatei Specialist
Outpatient Clinic to Queen Elizabeth Hospital.

The Enterprise Resource Planning Asset Management System
for both IT assets and medical equipment was successfully
implemented. A number of enhancements were planned to
streamline operational workflows.

Through the adoption of automation tools, HA enhanced
its level of quality assurance controls and internal IT systems
development processes to minimise code errors and reduce
system vulnerabilities. With the ongoing project-based review
and annual enterprise IT risk management processes, IT system
availability and accuracy of data will continue to be improved.

HA attaches great importance to patient data privacy. Sustained
effort were made to strengthen privacy controls, identify
emerging cybersecurity risks, and respond to incidents in a
timely manner. In-house developed training programmes on
privacy and IT security were made available to all staff to enrich
their knowledge in these areas. These programmes will be
updated regularly. Hospital privacy compliance checks, forums
and inspections additionally contributed to the heightening
of staff awareness in patient privacy protection. HA continued
to participate in the Privacy Management Programme led by
the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data, adopting the best
practices, technical infrastructure and operational processes
throughout its clusters, hospitals and clinics.
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HA played dual roles in the Government’s Electronic Health
Record (eHR) programme — both as a technical agency to assist
the Food and Health Bureau in the development of Electronic
Health Record Sharing System (eHRSS), and as one of the major
healthcare providers (HCPs) to share patients’ health data
through the eHRSS. The first stage of eHRSS has been operating
smoothly since its launch in March 2016. Separately, HA also
continued to provide technical services to the Department of
Health for the Elderly Healthcare Voucher Scheme, Vaccination
Schemes, Primary Care Directory System, Communicable
Disease Information System, Laboratory Information System and
Colorectal Cancer Screening Programme System and all systems
have been operating smoothly.

HA collaborated with the tripartite Chinese Medicine Centres for
Training and Research to implement the disease-based Integrated
Chinese-Western Medicine (ICWM) Pilot Programme for eligible
HA inpatients in designated hospitals in two phases.
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Strategic Intent:
Enhance corporate governance

Sustained efforts were made by the HA Board to implement a
spectrum of enhanced practices to ensure accountability and
stewardship of HA's resources and management of services.
The HA Board is committed to good corporate governance
and will continue to reinforce its leading and managing role
on HA, as recommended in the HA Review. The Board has set
out overarching policies to guide and provide scope for the
Executive Management who were responsible for implementing
the approved plans and managing HA's operation. The roles
of functional committees in long-term strategy planning and
risk management were strengthened, as set out in their revised
terms of reference. The Board has adopted an integrated
approach in risk management to ensure the integrity of
different organisational functions and avoid potential risks from
happening. In 2016-17, familiarisation programme in the form
of sharing sessions and corporate visits continued, keeping
members abreast of the knowledge and skills applicable to the
public sector operations.

The Manual on the Operation of Hospital Governing Committees
(HGCs) encompassing various corporate governance policies and
practices adopted by the Board and HGCs over the years, provides
guidance to HGC members in discharging their responsibilities.
Much effort has been made to enhance the communication
between the Board and HGCs, as well as between HGCs and the
management at cluster and hospital level and frontline staff, which
in turn facilitated the effective management of hospitals under
HA's overall policies and strategies.
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Contributing to a green environment

HA is committed to the health of the community, and contributing
to a sustainable living environment is one of the keys.

A wide range of energy efficient features and renewable energy
technologies were applied to air-conditioning, lighting, steam and
hot water installations in new hospital construction projects as
well as improvement works of existing hospitals. HA continued
to replace aged air-cooled air-conditioning chillers in various HA
venues with energy-efficient oil-free air-cooled chillers in 2016-17.

In November 2016, a Combined Heat and Power plant
commenced operation in Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital
as the first hospital in Hong Kong in adopting such system.
Incorporating the concept of practising waste-to-energy, the
system generates electricity from landfill gas, and at the same
time supplies steam and hot water for hospital by reclaiming
waste heat from the generator’s cooling and exhaust system.

The application of energy efficient technologies, together with
good operation and housekeeping practices, helps HA offset the
rising trend of energy consumption due to increasing hospital
activities. Hospitals and institutions continued to proactively
participate in waste reduction and recycling programmes
organised by different organisations in support of environmental
protection. Besides, food waste reduction programmes, such as
promotion of waste reduction at source and adoption of low
carbon menu, continued in hospitals.
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KOWLOON WEST CLUSTER (KWC)
NEE BB (NLEEREEAR)

In 2016-17, KWC implemented a number of initiatives to meet
the growing service demand and uphold service quality and
patient safety.

To allay staff turnover and retain talents, KWC provided
additional promotion opportunities for Residents to Associate
Consultants. Besides, the Cluster continued the annual
progression exercise for Patient Care Assistants working in
wards with 24 hours services.

On improving service capacity, percutaneous coronary
intervention in PMH was strengthened; designated beds
were assigned in YCH and WTSH to support the chronic
ventilator-dependent patients; capacity of the Cluster on
renal replacement therapy for patients with end-stage renal
disease was enhanced; cancer care was extended to CMC

Hospitals E&PBz nﬁlé‘g;ﬁ#ﬂ#
Nu\mber of general outpatient clinics 23
EBENMDYEE

Throughput [RISE

Number of beds JHRE B 6,652
Patient discharges* HBzHmA BB * 402,432
A&E attendances SREZERZ AR 631,235
SpecialistLoutpatient attendances (clinical) 1761.030
ENMRRP AR (RRRE) o
Sée;%%a;ﬂ%;;;;:er;;attendances 1,716,077
Full-time equivalent staff 16,332

ZRZMASHA

* Total inpatient, day patient discharges and deaths

* fEBE K B A B RSt T 488K

with chemotherapy service rolled out. To enhance accessibility
of health services, the integrated neurological rehabilitation
service in PMH was strengthened. Medical and Geriatric day
ward service was extended. Additional sessions per week were
added for day surgery, minor procedures and audiology services
in CMC to further shorten the waiting time for patients.

The capacity of mental health service was further strengthened
by increasing the psychiatric learning disabilities outreach
attendances in KCH. Besides, the support to children with

North Lantau Hospital (NLTH)

b AU 1Ly BB
HKEC HKWC Kcc#
BB REHWN B E TN NAEREE
12 6 6

3,112 3,142 3,596
190,701 212,733 224,668
227,465 129,674 194,648
827,500 891,261 1,035,508
607,799 395,348 579,645

8,078 8,137 9,998

# Wong Tai Sin District and Mong Kok area have been re-delineated from KWC to KCC since 1 December 2016. The service units in the
concerned communities have therefore been re-delineated from KWC to KCC to support the new KCC catchment districts with effect from
the same date. As a transitional arrangement, reports on services / manpower statistics and financial information continued to be based on
the previous clustering arrangement (i.e. concerned service units still under KWC) until 31 March 2017. Reports in accordance with the new
clustering arrangement (i.e. concerned service units grouped under KCC) start from 1 April 2017.

# RERNEABENEAIREAR - 2502016F12 8 1 B IEX S| AL BT EAE - MR RIS B AL IFE RO R B A AL BEHR Bk -
IASZ iR B AN AR B R M RSB EHE - (EABEIEREE - BRIRSG / AFLat 8o R &R A0 E RS B R R R R ST a0 R 43
(BNEBERRTS B A0 NLBE PRI RIKER - EE2017F3 A31 B AL - T H 201754 A1 B RIRBE e B A% (BN HE RS

B MASBERERA) B -

A HA has ceased the management and operation of the Rehabaid Centre with effect from 8 April 2016.
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special-care needs in special schools was enhanced by
recruitment of additional case managers in KWH and CMC. The
primary care service was enhanced with additional attendances
in the Family Medicine Triage Clinics to reduce the waiting time
for specialist outpatient clinics. The access to target population
groups was further improved by providing additional evening
sessions in North Kwai Chung General Outpatient Clinic.

To improve medication safety, Inpatient Medication Order Entry
system was extended to CMC.

With an aim to strengthen the emergency preparedness during
major outbreaks of infectious diseases in Hong Kong, additional
manpower was recruited in PMH to provide rapid response at
the first stage of disease emergence.

REPRBEABME 2016-17 S HEFT — R OIFE e AT ¥ B2 B R IE W
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REBATFEREBEAT @ BEEELRIBERE LR -
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ORRTS - WK AR RE AR BBERE RS - &7 RGN ERE
€ - AR BEIENAEFM - BINMNAFMRIENERGEE
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HONG KONG EAST CLUSTER (HKEC)
EBEREMREE CEEREN)

HKEC has been optimising service capacity, improving
service accessibility and retaining talents against the growing
demand and manpower shortage. Our people are the
key to deliver quality patient services. Staff training and
development remained one of the main focuses of HKEC.
RTSKH Accident and Emergency Training Centre (AETC) was
granted Silver Award by the American Heart Association in
recognition of its exemplary resuscitation and emergency
care training programmes in December 2016 and has taken
over the Post-Basic Simulation Training for HA nurses in June
2016.

Despite escalating service demand, HKEC is committed
to high standard service quality and patient safety.
PYNEH and TWEH completed the Periodic Review of
Hospital Accreditation in June 2016. The Cluster Catering
Department strived to ensure food safety and achieved
the ISO 22000:2005 — Food Safety Management System
certification in April 2016. RTSKH renovated its Special
Accommodation Ward in January 2017, incorporating
elderly-friendly design and facilities.

Services in pressure areas were strengthened through
enhancing capacity in acute surgical beds and operating
theatre sessions per week in PYNEH in October 2016.
TWEH was awarded the “Social Capital Builders Awards”
in 2016 by the Labour and Welfare Bureau for its
excellent support to the carers of chronically ill patients.
HKEC adopts advanced technologies to modernise patient
service. A new upper limb robotic device “Hand of Hope”
was installed in December 2016 in Tseng Cheng Tseng
Pei Integrated Community Rehabilitation Centre in TWEH
to facilitate patients’ hand rehabilitation. Department of
Orthopaedics and Traumatology in PYNEH was the first
in Hong Kong to successfully manufacture and implant
a replica of a talus with 3D printing technology for a
patient.

St John Hospital (SJH)
RINEERR

BERBEEREFIIEMMATFRROBERLT - #H#LHT —F
BT RGE - IR ERERBEAS - BT EREAIEMH
BEEERBOERE - Bt BE-—E T HOERE THEIIA
R - R REER B AN IISRB LR 2016 F 12 A
EXB O & R IREE - ARG PO A SR IARRIE -
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EXBIERRIRFLEE -
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Yan Chai Hospital (YCH)

(e Kwai Chung Hospital (KCH)

SEREsR

Hong Kong Red Cross Blood
Transfusion Service (BTS)
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Princess Margaret

Hospital (PMH)

BRI
Caritas Medical Centre (CMC)
HEER

Tsan Yuk Hospital (TYH)

HEEE ————
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals

Fung Yiu King Hospital (FYKH) — ]
RE=[RIBEWERR

The Duchess of Kent Children’s
Hospital at Sandy Bay (DKCH)

L ” _ RORBEABRAARESER
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MacLehose Medical
Rehabilitation Centre (MMRC)
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Hong Kong Buddhist
Hospital (HKBH)

BERBHBER
Kowloon Hospital (KH)

NEEER —\

Kwong Wah
Hospital (KWH)
EEEK

Queen Elizabeth Hospital (QEH)
FRDEER (FBR)

Tung Wah Hospital (TWH)
RERKR

Queen Mary Hospital (QMH)
BEEKR

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
Wong Tai Sin Hospital (WTSH)
RE=REALEERR

Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital (OLMH)
B

Hong Kong Eye Hospital (HKEH)
EERBER

Rehabaid Centre (RO)"
EEENERERHP LN

Tung Wah Eastern Hospital

KOWLOON CENTRAL CLUSTER (KCC)

NEREB A (NLEETER)

Re-delineation of the cluster boundary took effect from 1 December 2016 in
regard to administrative arrangements. Hospitals including KWH, OLMH and
WTSH, and services units were re-grouped from Kowloon West Cluster to new
KCC catchment areas. Upon the cut-over for non-clinical support services and
transfer of budget and manpower on 1 April 2017, KCC has started to develop
strategic plan to align the provision of clinical services having regard to the
recommendation of the Steering Committee on Review of HA.

To cope with the high demand for A&E and inpatient services,
addressing waiting time and capacity issues was of high priority
of KCC. Rapid Assessment and

Treatment Team was piloted in

;WEE;)F QEH to support Triage lll patients

7 Pamela Youde Nethersole and additional support sessions

Iii?ste;[\;c;s&pial (;Y%EH)F’ were provided to handle Triage

Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals (RTSKH) (igé%) RIRER IV-and V cases. To enhance

FEHCAR B EREERR |npalt|.ent service capaoty in KCC,

Wong Chuk Hang Hospital (WCHH) additional orthopaedic acute
e Al las beds were opened in QEH.

EATHEER were opened in Q

Grantham Hospital (GH)

EEMER EWAZRKEERR

Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok (CCH)

In addition, QEH enhanced
structural heart diseases
programme, HIV services for
eligible patients and renal
replacement therapy for patients
with end-stage renal diseases.
Additional operating theatre

HONG KONG WEST CLUSTER (HKWC)
EEHERERE CEERAEER)

Over the years, HKWC has been fostering a close partnership with
Li Ka Shing Faculty of Medicine of the University of Hong Kong in
support of undergraduate and postgraduate medical and nursing
education, training and research, as well as development in healthcare
technology and services. The commencement of redevelopment of
QMH is one step further to enhance future partnership.

Manpower shortage and high turnover in particular among the
supporting care colleagues is a major concern to HKWC. To allay
the issue, HKWC has not only stepped up recruitment and retention
initiatives for Patient Care Assistants (PCAs) but also continued with
the annual progression exercise for PCAs working in wards with

24 hours services.

Continuous efforts have been made to increase service
capacity. These included enhancing the capacity
of renal replacement therapy for patients with
end-stage renal disease by providing additional
home automated peritoneal dialysis treatment

and home haemodialysis treatment. The service
hours of radiotherapy services in QMH was also
extended to cater for escalating needs. Designated
beds in GH with multi-disciplinary support were
provided for chronic ventilator-dependent patients.
The Joint Replacement Centre in DKCH was set up to
provide additional sessions of operation for patients
on Hong Kong Island. A Pain Clinic was set up in

MMRC to implement pain management programme
and provide multi-disciplinary care for patients.
The child and adolescent psychiatric outpatient
services were enhanced by providing additional
new case consultations to curtail the waiting

time due to growing service demand.

Patients’ accessibility to radiological imaging

services was enhanced through the introduction

of densitometry service at QMH. To cover more
Residential Care Homes for the Elderly in HKWC,
the Community Geriatric Assessment Team service was
strengthened with additional outreach attendances.

The Chemotherapy and Radiotherapy nurse clinic was established
in QMH to ensure safe and effective oncology services. Through
the establishment of the Sterile Service Department in HKWC, six
reprocessing sites in QMH were supported and sterilisation service
was provided to GH. The service capacity of In-vitro Fertilisation (IVF)
was further enhanced by the provision of additional IVF cycles in QMH
to cope with the growing service demand.

The central coordinated refill service for medical consumables and
linen items was implemented in hospital wards of QMH and TYH
to strengthen business support services. Additional resources were
provided for the first stage of Phase One QMH Redevelopment Project
to ensure smooth transition and continuous provision of clinical
services in the planning process.

sessions and outside-theatre sessions for anaesthetic procedures
were introduced. KCC Oncology service was strengthened by the
extension of radiotherapy service hours and additional hepatitis B
virus DNA tests were introduced to cancer patients.

HKEH strengthened the manpower to review and approach
additional cases in order to identify suitable tissues and increase the
supply of transplantable corneas for treatment of corneal blindness.
BTS continued to scale up territory-wide blood transfusion service
through increasing production and supply of leucodepleted red cells
and platelet concentrates.

The clinical services provided at Yau Ma Tei Specialist Clinic were
relocated to new Ambulatory Care Centre (Extension) in QEH which
commenced operation in December 2016. The planning of the new
acute general hospital in Kai Tak Development Area

has also been in progress.
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NEW TERRITORIES WEST CLUSTER (NTWC)

Expansion of service capacity is one of the key strategies adopted by
NTWC to address escalating service demand from the community.
With TSWH commencing its services in phases in early 2017, the
provision of public medical services in Tin Shui Wai community,
in particular the support of emergency service has enhanced
significantly. TSWH will continue to expand its services in coming
years to meet the demand of the residents in the district. Apart from
this new service point in Tin Shui Wai, the Cluster also opened more
than 100 additional beds in different hospitals in 2016-17 to cope
with the increasing demand arising from the growing population
and aging problem of the community.

To strengthen its surgical facilities and service capacity, TMH
commenced the works of Operating Theatre Block Extension Project
in 2016-17. Upon completion of the project, additional operating
theatres, an expanded Accident and Emergency and Radiology
Department, as well as more clinical space will be available in TMH.

Another key strategy deployed by NTWC is enhancement in service
quality. Various measures were taken forward in 2016-17, such as
implementation of the Inpatient Medication Order Entry system to
ensure medication safety; creating additional Associate Consultant
posts and training additional nurses to retain experienced clinical
staff, enhancing acute stroke, haemodialysis, peritoneal dialysis,
operating theatre and endoscopy services for treatment of better
quality.

In future, NTWC will continue to strive for enhancement in service
capacity and quality, and invest in adding new facilities to manage
service demand of the patients in Tuen Mun and Yuen Long
districts.

TR AR (R R A EER)

Siu Lam Hospital (SLH)
NMEEERR

Castle Peak Hospital (CPH)
Bk

Tuen Mun Hospital (TMH)
BB

RIAMGERTAOB A EREFTIIERNER R 2 — -
e RKE BN 2017 F D BERARSE - ZRHOAEE
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North District Hospital (NDH)

L EERR
Tin Shui Wai Hospital (TSWH)
PNE - 15
Pok Oi Hospital (POH)
HE R
AT L FREBE  WRRBE  ANRES
Number of general outpatient clinics ZERIFIZ P &R 8 10 8
Throughput fRIEE
Number of beds jEKRE H 4,368 4,713 2,543
Patient discharges* Hfzim A BB * 230,372 302,427 197,087
A&E attendances ZIEZEFP AKX 346,668 385,432 316,829
Specialist outpatient attendances (clinical) ERIFIZ P2 AR (BRKIRTE) 1,018,293 1,197,841 869,710
General outpatient attendances ZERIFIZRZ AKX 851,943 972,454 997,733
Full-time equivalent staff ZEZ2MASH A 10,480 11,822 7,835

* Total inpatient, day patient discharges and deaths
* (BT K B R A LB RIE T B

NEW TERRITORIES EAST CLUSTER (NTEC)
S REP A (RS RER)

In 2016-17, NTEC spared no effort to optimise the management of
demand and improve service quality and safety.

Access block resulting from immense service demand due to population
growth, in particular the aged population, continued to be a problem in
NTEC. The pressure was more acute during winter surge period.

The Cluster has implemented the bed management enhancement
programme since November 2016. In addition to daily morning
meeting to monitor the hospital bed situation, staff are designated
on-site at all times to take charge of overall bed coordination, early
bed arrangement and escalation of support whenever the need arises.
The programme proved to be effective in alleviating the problem.
Promising results were observed in the percentage of access block
=12 hours dropping to zero, while that of =4 hours also declined in
AHNH, NDH and PWH. Apart from tackling the admission problem,
NTEC also continued the initiative of discharge lounge during the

winter surge as a downstream measure to facilitate early discharge.
Patients ready for discharge are transferred to the discharge lounge
and looked after by nurses, while beds in wards can then be vacated
for admission of other patients.

During the year, the implementation of “Express Queue Dispensing” in
PWH successfully shortened the overall waiting time for medications.
It was a collaborative endeavour of PWH frontline colleagues with
the support of Head Office Chief Pharmacist’s Office and Information
Technology and Health Informatics Division. Since the introduction
of the system, the average waiting time for drug dispensing has
significantly reduced. The initiative won HA Outstanding Team Award
in 2017.

Seasonal influenza vaccination achieved improved uptake rate among
patients and staff in 2016-17. NTEC will keep up vigilance against
influenza.

Tai Po Hospital (TPH)
RIFERRT

Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole
Hospital (AHNH)

HRB KA ER T =B

Cheshire Home, Shatin (SCH)
PDHEKEER

Bradbury Hospice (BBH)
AEEEERO
Prince of Wales Hospital (PWH)
R HTH £ BBt

Shatin Hospital (SH)
WHER

Haven of Hope Hospital (HHH)
EEER

United Christian Hospital (UCH)
EERHEER
(BEE)

Tseung Kwan O Hospital (TKOH)
S E R
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KOWLOON EAST CLUSTER (KEC)
NEREBBA (FLEERBR)

In 2016-17, KEC continued to face escalating healthcare
demand coupled with increasing disease complexity and an
ageing population. With limited bed capacity and physical
space constraint, the Cluster has strived to cope with service
pressure areas through rationalisation and prioritisation, and
boosted the service volume through enhanced productivity.
KEC opened more medical day beds in UCH as well as more
surgical day beds and coronary care beds in TKOH. In addition,
the service capacity was augmented by establishing a new
peritoneal dialysis service centre, and providing additional
endoscopic sessions in TKOH. The Cluster also streamlined
multi-disciplinary team support for patients with common
mental disorder in specialist outpatient clinics and recruited a
peer support worker to support patients with severe mental
illness in the community.

KEC valued our staff effort in delivering professional and
dedicated services to the public. To align with the corporate
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direction, the Cluster allayed high turnover by continuing
the annual progression exercise for Patient Care Assistants
working in wards with 24 hours services and additional
promotion opportunities for Residents.

KEC adopted modern technology with a view to improving
service quality as well as managing risks. The laboratory
service was enhanced by providing additional hepatitis B virus
DNA tests to cancer patients for prevention of hepatitis B
reactivation.

To enhance partnership with patients and the community, KEC
recruited additional allied health professionals and supporting
staff to enhance rehabilitation service and training for patients’
caregivers in HHH.

In addressing the long-term pressure on physical space, the
embarkation of UCH and HHH expansion projects epitomised a
milestone for KEC. It is envisaged that the projects will not only
elevate the overall service capacity, but also
the resources for clinical and supporting
services will be further synergised and
aligned to augment service efficiency

and quality.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To The Members of the Hospital Authority

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of the Hospital Authority (“HA") and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 68 to 122, which
comprise:

¢ the consolidated and HA balance sheets as at 31 March 2017;

¢ the consolidated statement of income and expenditure for the year then
ended;

¢ the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

¢ the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

¢ the consolidated statement of changes in net assets for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of HA and the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2017, and of the Group’s consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Members of the Hospital Authority
(Continued)

Other Information

HA is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of HA and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

HA is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as HA determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, HA is responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless there are events or conditions that have caused
or may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Members of the Hospital Authority
(Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 10 of the Hospital Authority Ordinance
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
HA.
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Independent Auditor’s Report B B

To The Members of the Hospital Authority BEREERKE (&)

(Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the BB BT R M BEHRER

Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) EENEE )

e Conclude on the appropriateness of HA's use of the going concern basis ~ ® iTEA)%%ﬁﬁii“”i“<%§E+ﬁ Bta g HEED
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a i o RIBFTERNEANRE  BEREFE
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast HRIAS BN A AV E AT L - 4T Al Ak
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. BHHESENFECSRNEESARE °
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to MREMBRFESATHEEN  AIBKERE
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the ZEAHE R RBERAETELES M BHRETP
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, MEERE BEABOEETE - AIRME
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence EHERIEBEREER - ﬁszﬁfﬂ’]%aﬁ%%ﬁ\?%ﬁ
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events Rk & B IEFTEVSH B ET/RE © A - RKFE
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going BB PR S BB S B TR FHE R o
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the  ® &f“i? P RERERTIHRE RN - SEMA
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and B BREEE  UKGEPERRESHTRER
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying M2 HHMEIE -

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial ?fﬁ%‘%lWﬁﬁfiiﬁ%%@ﬁ’]ﬁﬂ%%%%ﬁ%ﬁ

information of the entities or business activities within the Group to EOERE  ARHGRa W HRKE
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are % =3 ﬁ BMAEEEEETHAM - BEEM
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group AT - BRI REAERAERIRE

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among E%E‘rﬂl%léﬂl\ C BMEEREER T AEINETE
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant - IR HE - EXEAERE - BFRMES
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that EPE%%)DJ'JHi B2 Il B (R EE R IRRPE o

we identify during our audit.

/p@.:m_%/,v @@Lu»@/ﬂ

PricewaterhouseCoopers EERKERTT SR
Certified Public Accountants MESETRD
Hong Kong, 28 September 2017 BS ZE—tFNAZ+N\H
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

At 31 March 2017 At 31 March 2016

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FtaE 20173 H31H 201643 A31H
BT T BT
Non-Current Assets 3£ 81 & E
Property, plant and equipment #73£ - #28 & 5% 45 5 5,565,993 5,083,108
Intangible assets & & 6 250,587 233,802
Loans receivable fEU{ETR 7 1,836 3,020
Placements with the Exchange Fund SMNEFE & 1F 70 8 23,300,000 13,300,000
Fixed income instruments EE A B LA 9 250,000 1,840,000
29,368,416 20,459,930
Current Assets R E1EE
Inventories 17 & 10 1,296,482 1,267,360
Loans receivable FEUSE L 7 827 947
Accounts receivable FEUBE X 11 326,238 316,406
Other receivables E b & YT BRZX 12 297,625 177,123
Deposits and prepayments %4 K 7815 78 13 323,605 321,972
Placements with the Exchange Fund ZNEXE S 1FR 8 2,367,339 1,667,266
Fixed income instruments &E A ST E 9 1,890,000 250,000
Cash and bank balances 31 £ R iR1 74564 14 17,326,021 29,781,697
23,828,137 33,782,771
Current Liabilities i@&®
Balance with Samaritan Fund #35F|gp 54 454 15 1,221,289 999,630
Creditors and accrued charges &4 A & &~ 2 16 10,488,845 10,108,179
Deposits received 2 Wik & 17 297,734 241,059
12,007,868 11,348,868
Net Current Assets R B &&= FE 11,820,269 22,433,903
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities & ER R E & & 41,188,685 42,893,833
Non-Current Liabilities FJER B & &
Balance with Samaritan Fund #5725 5 & 45 64 15 6,000,000 6,000,000
Death and disability liabilities 56T & S54@ M & (£ 18 253,418 238,782
Deferred income EEW ZE 19 11,782,280 12,503,367
Public-Private Partnership Endowment Fund AFA & EB AR E S 20 10,000,000 10,000,000
28,035,698 28,742,149
Net Assets & EEE 13,152,987 14,151,684
Capital subventions and capital donations & 2<% B [ & Z< 15 i 21 5,816,580 5,316,910
Designated fund I5E&E & 22 5,077,369 5,077,369
Revenue reserve W A fZ#& 2,259,038 3,757,405
Total Funds E£ 4% 13,152,987 14,151,684
WA g
—— F——
Dr Kam Pok Man, BBS Hi&3iE+ Dr Leung Pak Yin, JP 215884+
Chairman Chief Executive
Finance Committee 1T AR
ML EEER

The notes on pages 74 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated % 74 £ 122 BRI R AR & IS HREN—5 5 -
financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

EESER

At 31 March 2017 At 31 March 2016

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ez 20174%3H31H 201643 A 31H
BT T BT
Non-Current Assets JER 81 & E
Property, plant and equipment #% - #22 & & & 5 5,565,993 5,083,108
Intangible assets iz & & 6 250,587 233,802
Loans receivable fEUETX 7 1,836 3,020
Placements with the Exchange Fund 4MNEXZ & 777X 8 23,300,000 13,300,000
Fixed income instruments EE A BT A 9 250,000 1,840,000
29,368,416 20,459,930
Current Assets RENEE
Inventories 17 & 10 1,296,482 1,267,360
Loans receivable fEU &K 7 827 947
Accounts receivable f&UYBR X 11 326,238 316,406
Other receivables Eth FEUBR R 12 297,625 177,123
Deposits and prepayments 124 & B 58 13 323,522 321,889
Placements with the Exchange Fund 4NEE & 1770 8 2,367,339 1,667,266
Fixed income instruments EE A BT E 9 1,890,000 250,000
Cash and bank balances 38 & & $R1T45 65 14 17,326,021 29,781,697
23,828,054 33,782,688
Current Liabilities 7B & &
Balance with Samaritan Fund #3565 F| 25 E 5 464 15 1,221,289 999,630
Creditors and accrued charges f&# A & fE{H & FH 16 10,488,768 10,108,102
Deposits received 2 Wik 4 17 297,734 241,059
12,007,791 11,348,791
Net Current Assets 7 B & E R {E 11,820,263 22,433,897
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities & &R R B & & 41,188,679 42,893,827
Non-Current Liabilities JE 71 & &
Balance with Samaritan Fund 35 51|25 E & 4564 15 6,000,000 6,000,000
Death and disability liabilities 6.1 & 5 5E@H & (£ 18 253,418 238,782
Deferred income #RIEUW 25 19 11,782,280 12,503,367
Public-Private Partnership Endowment Fund 2 FL & 7 1ERB ARE S 20 10,000,000 10,000,000
28,035,698 28,742,149
Net Assets EE FE 13,152,981 14,151,678
Capital subventions and capital donations & 2% B |z & < 15 i 21 5,816,580 5,316,910
Designated fund I EE £ 22 5,077,369 5,077,369
Revenue reserve A {4 2,259,032 3,757,399
Total Funds E &£ 4% 13,152,981 14,151,678
V L]
—— z:‘;-_—ﬁ-‘-——
Dr Kam Pok Man, BBS HiBX{#+ Dr Leung Pak Yin, JP Ri5EELE
Chairman Chief Executive
Finance Committee TR,
ML EEER
The notes on pages 74 to 122 are an integral part of these financial FET7AF 122 BRI FRAMEIRZA—FD ©
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Income and Expenditure

mERXEER

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
BfeE BZE20174F BZE 2016 F
3B31ALEE 3A3NHLLFE
BT T BT
Income WA
Recurrent Government subvention 48 & 14 T # Bf 52,368,730 50,538,379
Capital Government subvention for building projects 1,259,367 1,143,406
BETROEREBTHEBD
Hospital/clinic fees and charges 28fz / 2 & Pl & 23 3,817,718 3,597,986
Donations 1B H% 40 64
Transfers from &3 5
Designated donation fund #5E B E S 19 171,110 145,645
Minor Works Projects Fund /N T2 TH B &4 19 1,103,964 1,066,209
Public-Private Partnership Fund AFL & {EE 4 19 181,712 -
Capital subventions & 7@ B 21 814,305 1,024,384
Capital donations & A8 21 161,806 113,686
Investment income % & Yz 24 208,867 188,185
Other income E bz 726,912 826,561
60,814,531 58,644,505
Expenditure £
Staff costs B T 25 (43,083,902) (40,298,679)
Drugs &4 (6,156,112) (5,710,382)
Medical supplies and equipment &&= 5 & 2% 45 (2,690,534) (2,558,198)
Utilities charges A FARI (1,180,882) (1,174,165)
Repairs and maintenance #1{& R {RE (1,989,457) (1,894,103)
Building projects funded by the Government 2 (g) (ii) (2,363,331) (2,209,615)
A BUF R R T2 to = (v)
Operating lease expenses & &Iz (158,893) (160,342)
Depreciation and amortisation HT 8 & # 5& & 6 (964,804) (1,108,886)
Other operating expenses £ th &8 5 5% 26 (3,745,175) (3,379,795)
(62,333,090) (58,494,165)

(Deficit)/surplus for the year £ & (E18) / B84

(1,518,559)

150,340

The notes on pages 74 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
MEXERBER

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FiiaE HBE2017 & HE 20164
3A31ALEE SA3ALLFE
BT T BT T
(Deficit)/surplus for the year £ & (E18) / Btk (1,518,559) 150,340
Other comprehensive income Hfth 2z
[tems that will be reclassified subsequently to income or
expenditure:
Hig@s o BARARZ HMNIEAR :
— Additions to capital subventions and capital donations 21 1,453,623 1,284,623
BB R B AN TB RIS N
— Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund 21 22,158 17,155
ERE/ETEBEERES
— Transfers to consolidated statement of income and expenditure 21 (976,111) (1,138,070)

ERERa M EER

[tem that will not be reclassified to income or expenditure:

TEEFHERWASZHIER :

— Remeasurement of death liability 18 20,192 21,137
ST RNEEERE

Total comprehensive income for the year £ A2 E K H A5 (998,697) 335,185

The notes on pages 74 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated %74 E 122 B&IMiE = AN 4R & MISHREH —HH °
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRB|RK

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

e BZ 20174 HE20164F

3A3BLEE 3A3ABLLFE

BT T BT

Net cash used in operating activities 29 (2,659,321) (818,911)

sEESMARSFE
Investing activities ¥4 /& E)

Investment income received 2 YR &Y= 205,151 227,758

Purchases of property, plant and equipment 5 (1,349,462) (1,182,441)

BEWE  WENRB

Purchases of intangible assets B & 2 & & 6 (126,319) (119,337)

Net decrease / (increase) in bank deposits with original maturity 2,551,052 (131,767)

over three months

JRPREIHA B i E = 8 A eV ERITF R EDF R D / (350)

Increase in fixed income instruments & E A S T B A0 (50,000) (440,000)
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 1,230,422 (1,645,787)
wERBAE/ (PIA)ReFE .
Net cash outflow before financing activities gi& R 2 I8 & 558 7 (1,428,899) (2,464,698)
Financing activities B&E®

Interest earned for Minor Works Projects Fund 56,159 72,200

NEVTR2IE B E S FTER S

Interest earned for Public-Private Partnership Fund 14,493 -

DIE R ERE S PTERLE

Capital subventions & 74 B 21 1,265,842 1,187,599

Capital donations & 745 4 21 187,781 97,024
Net cash generated from financing activities 1,524,275 1,356,823
mESBAGCReFE
Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 95,376 (1,107,875)
ReMReFEZ2EM/ CFD)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,958,325 3,066,200
FzH e kReEE

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14 2,053,701 1,958,325
FRZBEERREEE

Notes: R

(1) The interest on the placements with the Exchange Fund on behalf
of the Samaritan Fund was netted off with the outstanding balance
with the Samaritan Fund and the detailed arrangement is disclosed in
note 15.

(2) The cash flow for HK$10,000,000,000 bank deposits designated for
Public-Private Partnership (“PPP") Endowment Fund was netted off with
the HK$10,000,000,000 placement with the Exchange Fund for the
year ended 31 March 2017 and the detailed arrangement is disclosed in
note 2(r) and note 20.

The notes on pages 74 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets

REFEERBRK

Capital
subventions
and capital
donations
[Note 21]
HK$'000 Designated Revenue
BB Fund Reserve Total
REARBE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[FiEE211 EEE® ONE 1] 5t
BT T BT T BT T BT T
At 1 April 2015 R—Z—A%MA—H 5,153,202 5,077,369 3,585,928 13,816,499
Total comprehensive income for the year 163,708 - 171,477 335,185
FREAEWELREE
At 31 March 2016 R=—Z—"F=HA=+—H 5,316,910 5,077,369 3,757,405 14,151,684
Total comprehensive income for the year 499,670 - (1,498,367) (998,697)
FAEEK =L
At 31 March 2017 R=—ZE—t&=A=+—H 5,816,580 5,077,369 2,259,038 13,152,987

The notes on pages 74 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(a)

The Hospital Authority

Background

The Hospital Authority (“HA") and its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as the “Group” in the consolidated financial
statements. HA is a statutory body established in Hong Kong on
1 December 1990 under the Hospital Authority Ordinance
(Cap.113). The Hospital Authority Ordinance provides HA with
the powers to manage and control the delivery of public hospital
services in Hong Kong. Under the Hospital Authority Ordinance,
HA is responsible amongst other matters for the following:

e advising the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “Government”) of the needs of the
public for hospital services and of the resources required to
meet those needs;

e managing and developing the public hospital system;

e recommending to the Secretary for Food and Health
appropriate policies on fees for the use of hospital services by
the public;

e establishing public hospitals; and

e promoting, assisting and taking part in education and training
of persons involved or to be involved in hospital services or
other services relevant to the health of the public, and research
relating to hospital services.

Pursuant to Section 5(a) of the Hospital Authority Ordinance, an
agreement was entered into between the Government and HA
on 3 June 2011 (“Agreement”), under which the Government
and HA agreed that HA shall be responsible for managing and
controlling the government lands and the hospitals, clinics,
facilities, buildings and premises established thereon (as set out
in Annex A of the Agreement and referred to as “Properties”),
as well as the facilities and amenities (as set out in Annex B
of the Agreement) that may be provided on the Properties.
The ownership of the Properties continues to be held by the
Government.

HA has also entered into agreements with the individual governing
bodies of the ex-subvented hospitals which allowed HA to assume
ownership of some operating assets as at 1 December 1991 and
to manage and control other assets, the ownership of which
remains with the individual governing bodies.

As a result, HA has assumed responsibility for the management
of the public hospital operations since 1 December 1991. Also, all
operating and capital commitments outstanding as at 1 December
1991 were assumed by HA, except for the capital works projects
funded under the Capital Works Reserve Fund of the Government.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
1. The Hospital Authority (continued)

(a) Background (Continued)

As part of the Government's healthcare reform plan, HA has taken
over the management and operation of all general outpatient
clinics (“GOPCs") from the Department of Health by July 2003.
Under the arrangement, the title and ownership in respect of
the related operating assets of the GOPCs were retrospectively
transferred to HA in July 2003 after receiving formal approval from
the Government in June 2006. These assets were transferred at nil

value.

In order to promote the development and research of Chinese
medicine in Hong Kong, HA's subsidiary, HACM Limited entered
into agreements with 10 non-governmental organisations
("NGOs") in collaboration with certain universities in Hong
Kong to operate 18 Chinese Medicine Centres for Training and
Research (“CMCTRs"”). Under the agreements with the NGOs,
HACM Limited has provided an annual subvention to the NGOs
for operating CMCTRs in Hong Kong. These NGO clinics have
provided Chinese medicine outpatient services including the
prescription of Chinese herbal medicine and related services.
HACM Limited has also provided funding to six tripartite CMCTRs
for provision of Chinese medicine services to HA patients under
the Integrated Chinese-Western Medicine (“ICWM") Pilot
Programme which have been implemented at seven hospitals for

three disease areas.

In order to support the Government-led electronic health record
(“eHR") programme, which is an essential part of the healthcare
reform, HA has been engaged to serve as the technical agency
to the Government, leveraging its experience and know-how in
the Clinical Management System (“CMS"). With this role, HA
undertakes multiple streams of eHR related projects, which are
funded by the recurrent subvention and other designated funding
from the Government. During the financial year ended 31 March
2017, HA recognised HK$279,790,000 (2016: HK$261,809,000)
as other income to match with the expenditure incurred in relation

to the eHR related projects.

On 19 October 2011, HA set up a subsidiary, eHR HK Limited, to
act as a custodian to hold, maintain and license the intellectual

property rights and assets related to the eHR programme.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(b)

The Hospital Authority (continued)

Hospitals and other institutions

At 31 March 2017, HA had under its management and control the
following hospitals, charitable trusts and institutions:

Hospitals:

Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital
Bradbury Hospice

Caritas Medical Centre

Castle Peak Hospital

Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok
Cheshire Home, Shatin

The Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital at Sandy Bay
Grantham Hospital

Haven of Hope Hospital

Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital

Hong Kong Eye Hospital

Kowloon Hospital

Kwai Chung Hospital

Kwong Wah Hospital

MaclLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre
North District Hospital

North Lantau Hospital

Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital

Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
Pok Oi Hospital

Prince of Wales Hospital

Princess Margaret Hospital

Queen Elizabeth Hospital

Queen Mary Hospital

Ruttonjee Hospital

Shatin Hospital

Siu Lam Hospital

St. John Hospital

Tai Po Hospital

Tang Shiu Kin Hospital

Tin Shui Wai Hospital

Tsan Yuk Hospital

Tseung Kwan O Hospital

Tuen Mun Hospital

Tung Wah Eastern Hospital

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King Hospital
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital
Tung Wah Hospital

United Christian Hospital

Wong Chuk Hang Hospital

Yan Chai Hospital
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1.

(b)

(@

(@)

The Hospital Authority (continued)

Hospitals and other institutions (Continued)

Charitable Trusts:

North District Hospital Charitable Foundation

Prince of Wales Hospital Charitable Foundation

The Hospital Authority Charitable Foundation

The Hospital Authority New Territories West Cluster Hospitals
Charitable Trust

The Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital Charitable Trust

The Princess Margaret Hospital Charitable Trust

The Queen Elizabeth Hospital Charitable Trust

Other Institutions:

eHR HK Limited

HACM Limited

Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service
Specialist outpatient clinics

General outpatient clinics

Other clinics and associated units

Principal office

The address of the principal office of HA is Hospital Authority
Building, 147B Argyle Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™) as appropriate to Government subvented and not-for-
profit organisations. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain financial
assets which are stated at fair value.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis as HA's ability to continue as a going concern relies primarily
on Government funding.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying HA's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(b)

(@
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B RS ERAR MY RE

Principal accounting policies (continued) 2. FEEFHEHER®
Basis of consolidation (b) #RERIZEE
The financial statements of the Group include the income SENUBBREEBE_ZT—LF=1
and expenditure of the Head Office, subsidiaries, all Hospitals, =+ HZHBRFEAREEEREENR
Charitable Trusts, Specialist Outpatient Clinics, General Outpatient MER - MBS PTERR  ZEETE
Clinics and other institutions under its management and control © - BRI - @B 2 R R
made up to 31 March 2017. B AR SZ o
The financial statements reflect the recorded book values of those RIS TRR R B TR 2 B E R TR R
assets owned and the liabilities assumed by the Group. ZBENALEREE
Subsidiaries (c) MEHE
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The MEBRESEEEEEREENMEER - &
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has SERERHSEEREEMAREREZRE
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity BRI 2D ERIEN - WEEIEREE
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to NESEEBNEEMPEZEQ®R - K
direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated REBEREERE EEEEENEREZ
from the date that control is transferred to the Group. They are B MEBRERKSENYBEERSFRE 2
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases. P BEEYMEEEOEERRL 1
BIEGRE 25 -
Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on SEAKEZHNRS  BHRERBRIR
transactions within the Group have been eliminated on SWas - FEERA 2R ERE - RERZE
consolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the BIREIRER - BRIER ZRE iRt AMEE R
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the assets BEAME - HBREN ST BERREER
transferred. The accounting policies of the subsidiaries are RS R -
consistent with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.
At 31 March 2017, the principal subsidiaries of HA comprise: E-_Z—tF=A=+—H EBEERNFEE
MEHER
Effective percentage
Place of directly held by the
incorporation/ Group
Name Principal activities operation EEBEEEaW
= EEEK SR/ EERY  ARGE
HACM Limited To steer the development and delivery  Hong Kong 100
(limited by guarantee) of Chinese medicine services it
BB R EERERARAR  HEREERGM R AGE
(FERERDF)
eHR HK Limited To act as a custodian to hold, maintain ~ Hong Kong 100
(limited by guarantee) and license the intellectual property i

rights and assets related to eHR
programme

(FERBRAR])

ERREA - B8  RERFTER
BT RRCER BB R B AR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(d)

(e)

Principal accounting policies (continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs, including
interpretations, amendments or improvements to the existing
standards, which become effective in the current period. The
following amendments to standards which are effective for the
Group's financial year beginning 1 April 2016 are relevant to the
Group:

Annual Improvements to HKFRS 2012-2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 16 and 38, Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The adoption of these revised HKFRSs has no significant impact on
the results and financial position of the Group.

The HKICPA has also issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs
which are effective for accounting period beginning on or after
1 April 2017. The Group has not early adopted these new/
revised HKFRSs in the financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 March 2017. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment but is not yet in a position to conclude the impact of
these new/revised HKFRSs on its results of operations and financial
position.

Recognition of income

Subventions for recurrent expenditure are recognised on an
accruals basis, except for those subventions for designated
programmes or capital items that are recognised when the related
expenditure is incurred as set out in note 2(r).

Hospital/clinic fees and charges are recognised when services are
provided.

Transfers from the designated donation fund and capital donations
are recognised as set out in note 2(f).

Transfers from the capital subventions, Minor Works Projects Fund
and PPP Fund are recognised as set out in note 2(r).

Investment income from fixed income instruments is recognised as
set out in note 2(k).

Investment income from bank deposits is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Principal accounting policies (continued)

(f) Donations

(i)

(ii)

Donated assets

Properties, computer software and systems donated to the
Group each with a value below HK$250,000 and other
donated assets each with a value below HK$100,000 are
recorded as income and expenditure in the year of receipt of
the assets.

Properties, computer software and systems donated to the
Group each with a value of HK$250,000 or above and other
donated assets each with a value of HK$100,000 or above
are capitalised on receipt of assets according to the policy set
out in note 2(g)(i) and note 2(i). The amount of the donated
assets is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in total funds under capital donations. Each year,
an amount equal to the depreciation or amortisation charge
for these assets and the net book value of assets disposed
of is transferred from capital donations to the statement of
income and expenditure.

Cash donations

Cash donations for specific use as prescribed by the donor
are accounted for in the designated donation fund. When
the fund is utilised and spent for expenditure not meeting the
capitalisation policy as set out in note 2(g)(i) or note 2(i), they
are accounted for as expenditure of the designated donation
fund. Cash donations that are spent on property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets as set out in note 2(g)(v) and
note 2(i) respectively are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in total funds under capital
donations, and the corresponding amounts are capitalised
as property, plant and equipment or intangible assets
respectively. Each year, an amount equal to the depreciation
or amortisation charge for these assets and the net book value
of assets disposed of is transferred from capital donations to
the statement of income and expenditure.

Non-designated donations for general operating purposes
are recorded as donations in the statement of income and
expenditure upon receipt of cash.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Principal accounting policies (continued)

(g) Capitalisation of property, plant and equipment

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Effective from 1 December 1991, the following categories
of assets which give rise to economic benefits have been
capitalised:

Building projects costing HK$250,000 or more; and

All other assets costing HK$100,000 or more on an individual
basis.

The accounting policy for depreciation of property, plant and
equipment is set out in note 2(h).

For properties which are funded by the Government through
HA but are owned by the Government (including those
under entrustment arrangement with the Government), the
associated expenditure is charged to the statement of income
and expenditure in the year as incurred.

For properties which are funded by the Government through
HA but are owned by an ex-subvented governing body,
the associated expenditure is charged to the statement
of income and expenditure in the year as incurred. Under
the agreements with ex-subvented governing bodies, the
ownership of building projects, although funded by the
Government through HA, is vested with the governing bodies.

For expenditure on subsequent improvement to properties
the ownership of which has not been vested with HA, the
amount spent is capitalised only if the improvement does not
form part of the properties and can be re-used by HA when
re-located. Otherwise, the expenditure is charged to the
statement of income and expenditure in the year as incurred.

Expenditure on furniture, fixtures, equipment, motor
vehicles and computer hardware is capitalised (subject to the
minimum expenditure limits set out in note 2(g)(i) above)
and the corresponding amounts are recognised under capital
subventions and capital donations for capital expenditure
funded by the Government and donations respectively.

Property, plant and equipment transferred from the hospitals
to HA at 1 December 1991 was recorded at nil value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(h)

B RS ERAR MY RE

Principal accounting policies (continued) 2. FESTBE®

Depreciation (h) T8

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less any W - WEES KR TR A ANE R R RAEST
accumulated depreciation and impairment. Additions represent BEXOREAR » FAISINRRIEIREE RN
new or replacement of specific components of an asset. An asset’s g EHRAN - BEENREEESNMEE
carrying value is written down immediately to its recoverable AREEE  EEmEESIRRERRTK
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated EEE -

recoverable amount.

The historical cost of assets acquired and the value of donated SEA-NN—F+ZA—BEMIRENE
assets received by the Group since 1 December 1991 are ENREXNAKBEEENEE  BREE
depreciated using the straight-line method over the expected RITERTAI(E A F BB AATEIENT
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the life of the lease to which the improvement relates

REMEEE RIEHE 2 55

Buildings 20 - 50 years &

Y

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10 years &

RE - BIERER&E

Motor vehicles 5 - 7 years &
E

Computer equipment 3 - 6 years &
B

The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset
is determined as the difference between the proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of
income and expenditure.

Capital expenditure in progress is not depreciated until the asset is
placed into commission.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(i)

()

(k)

Principal accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets

Computer software and systems including related development
costs costing HK$250,000 or more each, which give rise to
economic benefits are capitalised as intangible assets. Intangible
assets are stated at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
impairment and are amortised on a straight line basis over the
estimated useful lives of one to three years.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

HA has designated the placements with the Exchange Fund
as “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”. HA
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition, and such classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value
and transaction costs are expensed to the statement of income
and expenditure. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows have expired or have been transferred
and HA has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value.

Fixed income instruments

Fixed income instruments are classified as held-to-maturity
investments on the basis that the Group has the positive intention
and ability to hold the investments to maturity.

Fixed income instruments are recognised on a trade-date basis
and stated at amortised cost, less any impairment loss recognised
to reflect irrecoverable amounts. The annual amortisation of
any discount or premium on the acquisition of fixed income
instruments is aggregated with other investment income
receivable over the term of the instrument using the effective
interest method.

The Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that fixed
income instruments are impaired at each reporting date. The
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the fixed income instruments and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the fixed income
instruments is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the statement of income and expenditure.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(0

(m)

(n)

Principal accounting policies (continued)

Inventories

Inventories, which comprise drugs, other medical and general
consumable stores, are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Where applicable, provision is made for obsolete and
slow-moving items. Inventories are stated net of such provision
in the balance sheet. Net realisable value is determined with
reference to the replacement cost.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of accounts receivable is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the
debtor will default or delinquency in payments are considered
as indicators that the receivable is impaired. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the carrying amount of the
accounts receivable and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the accounts receivable is reduced through
the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss
is recognised as an expense in the statement of income and
expenditure. Decrease in the previously recognised impairment
loss shall be reversed by adjusting the allowance account. When
an accounts receivable is uncollectible and eventually written
off, the respective uncollectible amount is offset against the
allowance account for accounts receivable. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the current
year's expenses in the statement of income and expenditure.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, and bank deposits with original maturity within three
months.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(o)

(p)

Principal accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote. A contingent liability is a
possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Principal accounting policies (continued)

(q) Employee benefits

(i) Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Group's defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are charged as expenses as they fall due. Payments
made to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are dealt
with as payments to defined contribution plans where the
Group’s obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those
arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan. The
retirement benefit costs charged in the statement of income and
expenditure represent the contributions payable in respect of
the current year to the Group’s defined contribution retirement
benefit plan and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme.

(i) Termination benefits costs

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’s
employment is terminated before the normal retirement age
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits costs when there is an obligation to
make such payments without possibility of withdrawal.

(iii) Death and disability benefits costs

The cost of the Group’s obligations in respect of death and
disability benefits provided to employees is recognised as
staff costs in the statement of income and expenditure with
reference to annual actuarial valuations performed by an

independent qualified actuary.

The death benefits for eligible employees are accounted for as
post employment defined benefits. Remeasurement of death
liability arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised immediately in other

comprehensive income.

The disability benefits are accounted for as other long-term
employee benefits. Remeasurement of disability liability
arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised immediately in the statement of

income and expenditure.

Further details of the death and disability liabilities are set out

in note 18.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(a)

(r)

Principal accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iv) Other employee benefits costs

Other employee benefits such as annual leave and contract
gratuity are accounted for as they accrue.

Government subvention

Subvention grants approved for the year other than the following
are classified as recurrent subvention income.

Government grants for building projects are classified and
recognised as capital subvention income when the amount is
spent on expenditure which does not meet the capitalisation
policy of property, plant and equipment as set out in notes 2(g)(i)
to (iv).

The one-off grant received from the Government for minor
works projects (under Subhead 8083MM) together with the
related investment income are recognised as deferred income —
Minor Works Projects Fund. Each year, the amount spent on the
minor works projects is transferred from deferred income to the
statement of income and expenditure or other comprehensive
income as appropriate. Further details of the deferred income —
Minor Works Projects Fund are set out in note 19(b).

The Government allocated HK$10,000,000,000 to HA to establish
an endowment fund for PPP initiatives. The investment returns of
the PPP Endowment Fund, together with the remaining balance of
the one-off designated funding for HA's PPP programmes as at 31
March 2016 are recognised as deferred income — PPP Fund. Each
year, the amount spent on the PPP programmes is transferred from
deferred income to the statement of income and expenditure or
other comprehensive income as appropriate. Further details of the
PPP Fund are set out in note 19(c).

Government subventions that are spent on property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets as set out in note 2(g)(v) and note
2(i) respectively are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in total funds under capital subventions, and
the corresponding amounts are capitalised as property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets respectively. This includes capital
expenditure on furniture, fixtures, equipment, motor vehicles,
computer hardware, software and systems. Each year, an amount
equal to the depreciation or amortisation charge for these assets
and net book value of assets disposed of is transferred from
capital subventions to the statement of income and expenditure.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(s)

(t)

(u)

Principal accounting policies (continued)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as expenses in
the statement of income and expenditure on a straight line basis
over the period of the lease.

Translation of foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of the Group are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Group operates (“the functional currency”). The
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is
the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the
reporting date. Exchange gains and losses are dealt with in the
statement of income and expenditure except for Minor Works
Projects Fund, which are recognised as deferred income.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party has
the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial and
operating decisions, or vice versa. Related parties also include key
management personnel having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group.

For the purpose of these financial statements, transactions
between the Group and Government departments, agencies or
Government controlled entities, other than those transactions that
arise in the normal dealings between the Government and the
Group, are considered to be related party transactions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.

Financial risk management

(@) Financial risk factors

The Group's activities of providing healthcare services to patients,
the administration of drugs, the employment of a large workforce
and the investment activities are primary areas of financial risks
being mitigated by the Group’s financial risk management process.
The Group’s underlying principles of financial risk management
are to transfer the cost of financial risks of significant level
through insurance with a diversity of insurers, to self insure for
the operational risks and to comply with regulatory insurance
requirements as an employer and owner of a motor fleet.

With regard to investments, in accordance with the Group’s
policies and guidelines, the primary objectives are to meet liquidity
requirements, to protect capital and to provide a reasonable
return. The investment portfolio (“Portfolio”) as at 31 March
2017 consisted of bank deposits, fixed income instruments
and placements with the Exchange Fund. Based on the risk
control measures as summarised below, the risk of default by
the counterparties is considered minimal and the Portfolio has
no significant concentration of credit risk. Besides, the Group
has no significant currency risk because substantially all assets
and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollar, the Group’s
functional and presentation currency. The Group manages its cash
flow requirements and risk as disclosed in note 3(c).

(i) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is the risk that counterparties may
default on its bank deposits, fixed income instruments and
placements with the Exchange Fund.

Bank deposits are placed with the Group’s approved banks
which are of investment grade as determined by Moody's or
Standard and Poor’s. For bank deposits, banks must meet
the minimum credit rating not lower than Moody’s Baa3 or
equivalent.

All transactions in fixed income instruments are settled or paid
for upon delivery through approved banks and safe kept by
the approved custodian with high credit ranking. The credit
risks of the issuers are assessed based on the credit rating
determined by Moody’s or Standard and Poor’s. Investments
in fixed income instruments (i.e. certificates of deposits) are
with issuers of credit rating not lower than Moody’s A3 or
equivalent. Where the maturity is over three years, the credit
rating is not lower than Moody’s Aa3 or equivalent at the
time of investment.

The placements with the Exchange Fund are entered into
between HA and the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
("HKMA") and it is expected that the HKMA can fulfill its
contractual obligations to HA in respect of the placements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

The Portfolio’s interest rate risk arises from interest bearing
cash at bank, bank deposits and fixed income instruments.
Cash at bank, which earns interest at variable rates, gives rise
to cash flow interest rate risk. Fixed rate bank deposits and
fixed income instruments expose the Portfolio to fair value
interest rate risk. Sensitivity analyses have been performed
by the Group with regard to interest rate risk as at 31 March
2017. If interest rates had been increased or decreased by
50 basis points, which represent management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in those rates, and all other
variables were held constant, the effect on the Group’s deficit
and net assets is insignificant.

Price risk

Fixed income instruments are subject to the price risk caused
by the changes in the perceived credit risks of the issuers and
market interest rates as disclosed in note 3(a)(i) and note 3(a)(ii)
respectively.

Currency risk

The Group’s financial assets and liabilities are substantially
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, the Group’s functional
and presentation currency, and hence will not be exposed to
significant currency risk.

(b) Fair values estimation

(i)

Financial assets carried at fair values

The Group’s financial instruments that are measured at fair
value are categorised by level of the following fair value
measurement hierarchy:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices).

Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Fair values estimation (Continued)

(i

Financial assets carried at fair values (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. These instruments are included in
level 1. None of the instruments of the Group is included in
level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
None of the instruments of the Group is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

— Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments.

— The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange rates at the reporting
date, with the resulting value discounted back to present
value.

— Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining
financial instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ISR R M T

3. Financial risk management (continued) 3. HBEERER@®
(b) Fair values estimation (Continued) (b) DAEEME @
(i) Financial assets carried at fair values (Continued) (i) BARBEIERMNGTEEE (&)
The placements with the Exchange Fund are included in NEESHERBRE=E- TRZE%
level 3. The following table presents the changes in level 3 HE_Z—t+tF=A=+—HIK
instruments for the financial years ended 31 March 2017 and —E-RE=A=+T—HIEFEE=E
31 March 2016: THNES :
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BE2017F HZE2016F
3A31BLEE 3A3MAILFE
BT BT
At the beginning of the year R4 14,967,266 14,262,359
Addition [note 20] 340 [ fif7E 201 10,000,000 -
Interest F & 700,073 704,907
At the end of the year [note 8] PA4E4X [t 8] 25,667,339 14,967,266
(i) Financial assets not reported at fair values (i) IEARRBEEIINTEEE
The fair values of fixed income instruments (i.e. certificates of BEAERTEBIEFERE)EREAN
deposits) at the reporting date are provided by the approved AR BEBZERE AR BRI
custodian. These instruments are summarised below: LU
The Group and HA
SEREBER
Carrying Value Fair Value
REEE AREE
At 31 March 2017 At 31 March 2016 At 31 March 2017 At 31 March 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2017%3H31H 201643 A31H 20173 H31H 201643 A31H
BT T PR T BT T BT IT
Fixed income instruments 2,140,000 2,090,000 2,145,364 2,103,181
EEASETE
(iii) The carrying values of other financial assets and liabilities (iit) 5 EE R B BNR S RRITHE
such as cash and bank balances, loans receivable, accounts B BUER  BRERERRENE SR
receivable and trade payables approximate their fair values FNEmEEREARBEMESE  KE
and accordingly, no disclosure of fair values for these items is LIER AR BEREZS -
presented.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.

Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Capital management

Under the Hospital Authority Ordinance, the resources of the
Group consist of the following:

(i) All money paid by the Government to HA and appropriated
for that purpose by the Legislative Council and otherwise
provided to HA by the Government; and

(i) All other money and property, including gifts, donations, fees,
rent, interest and accumulations of income received by HA.

In this regard, the capital of the Group comprises revenue reserve,
designated fund, capital subventions, capital donations and
deferred income as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. At
31 March 2017, the capital of the Group was HK$24,935,267,000
(2016: HK$26,655,051,000).

The Group’s objective for managing capital is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern to ensure
sustainability of the public healthcare system. The Group has
always been prudent in financial management so as to ensure
proper and effective use of public resources. Through the annual
planning exercise, resource requirements of individual hospital
clusters are identified and considered against the total amount
of funding available to the Group, with a view to meet the rising
service demand for public hospital services and build up Hong
Kong's future healthcare workforce with recruitment of new
graduates. The Group also continuously strives for enhancement
of efficiency in use of its resources. To facilitate the delivery of
value-for-money services, the Group regularly monitors a set of
performance indicators covering performance in clinical service,
human resources management and financial management.
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Tk WEBHFEXEEEEERRNE®
AT - KETTEHHANREABERERNK
x o BRERHAFRERGENRE - KEE
HER-—ERAEBERE  ANBEREER
MBERERNKRERER
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4,

(a)

(b)

Critical accounting estimates and
judgments

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to
exercise significant judgments in the selection and application of
accounting policies, including making estimates and assumptions.
The following is a review of the more significant accounting
policies that are impacted by judgments and uncertainties and for
which different amounts may be reported under a different set of
conditions or using different assumptions.

Provision for medical malpractice claims

The Group co-insures and retains a designated sum for each
medical malpractice claim. For those professional liability claims
in excess of the retained sum, the claims will be borne by the
insurer. In view of the complex nature and long development
period of the claims, a Claims Review Panel consisting of the
participating medical malpractice insurers, the external panel law
firms appointed by the insurers and HA's in-house experts review
the status of potential and active claims semi-annually and assess
the provision required on each significant case. An independent
qualified actuary also assists the Group on the assessment of the
exposure of other reported cases based on historical development
trend of the claims settlement. With reference to the assessments
and the analysis by the Claims Review Panel and the external
actuarial consultant respectively, management reviews the
claims exposure and determines the provision required to cover
the Group’s exposure at each reporting date. Such provision is
included in accrued charges and other payables in note 16.

Death and disability liabilities

The Group engages an independent qualified actuary to assess
the present value of obligations for its death and disability scheme
at each year end date. Major actuarial assumptions include the
discount rate and salary inflation rate which are set out in note
18. The present value of the Group’s obligations is discounted
with reference to market yields on Hong Kong Government
Bonds, which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of
the related obligations. The long-term salary inflation is generally
based on the market’s long-term expectation of price inflation.

B RS ERAR MY RE

4.

(a)

(b)

B E Tt &

I SR - IR B S STHERAH
BREATHFZZERERHE - S1FED
BET RRER - U TSI —LFEERER
HE RS T RERRFENBRERG K
R WIERTRE - KEATRARE - AT
BISH TR 2 HREE -

BRARPRRME

SERBERARFRRAABRRS - LA
BERBEARARAEREENE - BHRAZ
FENBEXREIHRR - FRERBRIFIAE -
BN FRRNEMEE B RER - — @
HARBRARETNRBR AR - RERAA
PRAERINARETT NERBERNERA
REVBRRRTZES  §FLFiRBER
BAERRARNBER - UHEBRERER
B REME - RERBUBEM IS RIES
EERRMENERBS - BOHEEFGHEMD
ERERNFRER - EEEGLEHRM
A &R B g MIMNUSEER D BT ER RS
o R ERMER  YRBREREER
AR BB H TR A - tIRBYETIA
MiFE 1680 [N B AR EMARK] -

T RERBANEE

EEZRRET AEBRNBIIEEMN HE BT
BT RBEA BIRMNEENRE - FERA
MEZBEBRREEMT 18R EX
NEHFEBRE - RERAAMiEFEERR
B ERIEEGEEEFHEENEERT
BFH TSR RILAIREETE - MRENH
TERE —REATHEANREERBR
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5. Property, plant and equipment

b e
5 Y% - #BEREE

The Group &

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
Building and HK$'000 Motor Computer
improvements EJ=IN vehicles equipment Total
HK$'000 BEERS HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BEYRESE & RE B A M5t
BT T BT ABETR BT BEYTT
Cost AR
At 1 April 2016 74201664 A1 H 1,081,681 10,479,844 253,878 675,911 12,491,314
Reclassifications E#75 48 - 300 - (338) (38)
Additions & il 25,397 1,224,834 32,643 66,588 1,349,462
Disposals & (15,353) (741,160) (14,454) (224,143) (995,110)
At 31 March 2017 1A 201763 A 31 H 1,091,725 10,963,818 272,067 518,018 12,845,628
Accumulated depreciation Z2ETE
At 1 April 2016 20164 A1 H 411,331 6,315,148 197,688 484,039 7,408,206
Reclassifications E#7 48 > 50 = (88) (38)
Charge for the year ZK4F & 2 #7 8 26,336 732,262 27,940 68,732 855,270
Disposals & (13,926) (735,417) (14,454) (220,006) (983,803)
At 31 March 2017 201793 A31 B 423,741 6,312,043 211,174 332,677 7,279,635
Net book value BREFE
At 31 March 2017 KR 201743 A31 H 667,984 4,651,775 60,893 185,341 5,565,993

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
Building and HK$'000 Motor  Computer
improvements EJ=I vehicles equipment Total
HK$'000 Exs®  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000
BEEY R EE &S] RE BB st
BT T BT T BETT BT BEYTT
Cost 2
At 1 April 2016 ® 20164 A 1 H 1,081,681 10,479,844 253,878 673,274 12,488,677
Reclassifications E¥7 48 - 300 - (338) (38)
Additions & 25,397 1,224,834 32,643 66,588 1,349,462
Disposals & (15,353) (741,160) (14,454) (221,506)  (992,473)
At 31 March 2017 %2 20174 3 A 31 H 1,091,725 10,963,818 272,067 518,018 12,845,628
Accumulated depreciation 2EITE
At 1 April 2016 74201644 A1 H 411,331 6,315,148 197,688 481,402 7,405,569
Reclassifications & 215 %8 - 50 - (88) (38)
Charge for the year N fE 2 #T & 26,336 732,262 27,940 68,732 855,270
Disposals & (13,926) (735,417) (14,454) (217,369) (981,166)
At31 March 2017 201743 H31H ¢ 4 7273177{17 6,312,043 211,174 332,677 7,279,635
Net book value JREF{E
At 31 March 2017 20173 A31H 667,984 4,651,775 60,893 185,341 5,565,993
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5. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 5. ¥ - HBRRE®

The Group £

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
Building and HK$’000 Motor Computer
improvements EJ=IN vehicles equipment Total
HK$’000 ERE HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BEYRES & RE EMRE et
BT T B¥TT B¥%Tr B¥TT BT
Cost A
At 1 April 2015 A 201564 818 1,064,751 9,802,334 253,687 732,635 11,853,407
Reclassifications B 748 39 25,675 - (35,601) (9,887)
Additions &0 16,891 1,080,666 5,771 79,113 1,182,441
Disposals H% - (428,831) (5,580) (100,236)  (534,647)
At 31 March 2016 720163 A 31 H 1,081,681 10,479,844 253,878 675,911 12,491,314
Accumulated depreciation Z2ETE
At 1 April 2015 201544 A1H 385,569 6,132,723 176,611 519,966 7,214,869
Reclassifications E #1548 31 5,383 - (12,620) (7,206)
Charge for the year NG [E Z & 25,731 599,820 26,657 75,938 728,146
Disposals & - (422,778) (5,580) (99,245)  (527,603)
At 31 March 2016 72201643 A 31 H 411,331 6,315,148 197,688 484,039 7,408,206
Net book value JRE EE
At 31 March 2016 201643 A 31 H 670,350 4,164,696 56,190 191,872 5,083,108

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
Building and HK$'000 Motor  Computer
improvements EJ=I vehicles equipment Total
HK$'000 BERE HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BEYREE &S RE BB et
BT T BET T BET T BT HBETT
Cost {2
At 1 April 2015 74201544 A1 H 1,064,751 9,802,334 253,687 729,998 11,850,770
Reclassifications E# D48 39 25,675 - (35,601) (9,887)
Additions &0 16,891 1,080,666 5,771 79,113 1,182,441
Disposals H & - (428,831) (5,580) (100,236)  (534,647)
At 31 March 2016 71X 20164 3 A 31 H 7"7"],707871167871 77777 1 70747797§44 253,878 673,274 12,488,677
Accumulated depreciation 2&ITE
At 1 April 2015 74201594 A1 H 385,569 6,132,723 176,611 517,329 7,212,232
Reclassifications B 748 31 5,383 - (12,620) (7,206)
Charge for the year N5 fE 2 #T & 25,731 599,820 26,657 75,938 728,146
Disposals % - (422,778) (5,580) (99,245)  (527,603)
At31March 2016 X 20163 A31 8 ¢ 4 71711373717 - 767371757]{1%} - 1?27653% - fl?] ,7470727 B 777,f19§,7576797
Net book value JRE F{E
At 31 March 2016 20163 A 31 H 670,350 4,164,696 56,190 191,872 5,083,108
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6. Intangible assets 6. BILEE
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE2017F HE2016F
3A31HIEFEE 3A31BILFE
BT T BT T
Cost {2
At the beginning of the year R4 1,268,860 1,164,129
Reclassifications E#1 548 38 9,887
Additions 0 126,319 119,337
Disposals & (131,781) (24,493)
At the end of the year ARG 1,263,436 1,268,860
Accumulated amortisation Zi&# 8
At the beginning of the year FA4E 4] 1,035,058 649,465
Reclassifications E#7 548 38 7,206
Charge for the year N5 [ 2 8k $H 109,534 380,740
Disposals & (131,781) (2,353)
At the end of the year R4 1,012,849 1,035,058
Net book value BRIEFE
At the end of the year IRF4R 250,587 233,802

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
BZE2017F HE2016F
3H3MBLEE 3R BIEFE
BT BETT
Cost 2
At the beginning of the year FA 4] 1,258,876 1,154,145
Reclassifications E# D48 38 9,887
Additions 30 126,319 119,337
Disposals & (127,720) (24,493)
At the end of the year PRF#X 1,257,513 1,258,876
Accumulated amortisation 2i&# 8
At the beginning of the year A4 4] 1,025,074 641,427
Reclassifications E# 548 38 7,206
Charge for the year N[ 2 854 109,534 378,794
Disposals & (127,720) (2,353)
At the end of the year AF4& 1,006,926 1,025,074
Net book value BRI FE
At the end of the year A4 250,587 233,802
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7.

Loans receivable

Certain eligible employees under the Home Loan Interest Subsidy
Scheme were offered downpayment loans for the purchase of
their residential properties (“Downpayment Loan Scheme”). The
repayment period of the loans is the shorter of the mortgage
life and 20 years. Interest charged on the downpayment loans is
determined by the Group from time to time and is set at 1.282%
as at 31 March 2017 (2016: 1.282%). Downpayment Loan
Scheme has been suspended since April 2002.

At 31 March 2017, the downpayment loans advanced to eligible
staff which are fully secured by charges over the properties are as
follows:

The Group and HA

SERBER

B RS AR BT AL

7.

At 31 March 2017

FEURfE =R

EERETNEEERFEEMFET -
— S EREENRSENERABEREM
(TEHEXKEED - BEHERNERR Y
EIRBEHH20F 0 UREEAE - HH
ERNEERBERTRIIE N2 —+t
FEZRA=+—HRAE1282% (ZF—"F:
1.282%) - B ERGTEIE =TT _FWA
REELE -

E_ZT—tF=HA=1t—"H E#HNKHRA]
RESNEHERLBYEETRERMNT

At 31 March 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

201793 HA31H 20163 A31H

BT T BT

Repayable within one year —fER{EE 827 947
Repayable beyond one year #8:@—F{E3E 1,836 3,020
2,663 3,967

The loans receivable is neither past due nor impaired. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of the receivable mentioned above. According
to the terms and conditions of the scheme, the monthly
principal repayment and payment of interest in respect of the
downpayment loans are deducted from the employees’ wages
and that any benefits to which an employee will be entitled to
receive under the HA Provident Fund Scheme shall stand charged
with repayment of downpayment loan and interest thereon if such
debt has not been paid by the employee upon resignation or on
an agreed date. On this basis, the receivable balance is considered
to be fully recoverable.

Placements with the Exchange Fund

HA has designated the placements with the Exchange Fund as
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”. The valuation
technique and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair
value measurements are the discounted cash flow and discount
rate respectively. The placements are denominated in Hong Kong
dollar. Their fair values are determined with reference to the
estimated rates of investment return for future years.

FEYER I BB SR E - EIRE B RAN
SRRk R LAEROEEEE - RIEFTS
R R G BERERNE AR RS
BREHERENFT R - BRENBERE
HEE B HAREEEEREREOSHE -
AlESRE [ B BB NTESE | &N
Efaikas - REFRELRK - Bt - &
WiEF SRR AT AT 2 Y

MEESTFR

BERBFRNINEESHRBINR [RA
AREBEINERERSEE M BEE] &
DA BEEMRNGERNREXRATE
RBA - DRIRBAREREIEIRE - FR
FIENETREMN - EARBERBEARKF
BHEFHIREMBREE -
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8.

Placements with the Exchange Fund (continued)

The interest on the placements is at a fixed rate determined
annually in January and payable annually in arrears on
31 December. Currently, the rate of return is calculated on the
basis of the average annual rate of return on certain investment
portfolio of the Exchange Fund over the past six years or the
average annual yield of three-year government bond in the
previous year (subject to a minimum of zero percent), whichever
is the higher. This rate of return has been fixed at 3.3% and
2.8% per annum for January to December 2016 and January to
December 2017, respectively. HA did not withdraw the interest
earned up to 31 December 2016 which would continue to accrue
interest at the same rate payable for the principal amount.

The placements with the Exchange Fund are analysed as follows:

B ER TR FI
8. HEELER®@

EEFRNBXREE  GEF—AETE I
REBEFE+_A=1+—BXff - BHEE - BHRE
RIZINEE SR EBESBAENFHNFHERE
B E  =FHBNEFBE—FHFE
HEEREEFE (REAW%) URSE
RE - _E—RFE—RE+-AK=Z—+
F—RAE+TZANESFEBRES B A3.3%
K28% - BERBBIBMEE_S—~F
TZA=+—HRIWNAE - ELERIBEEIR
NE A ZBRIGEEFFE -

SNEESTFROFTMT

The Group and HA
SEREER

Custodian for
Samaritan Fund

Minor Works

PPP Fund and PPP
Endowment Fund

[Note 15] Projects Fund [Notes 19(c) and 20]
EEHBANTES [Note 19(b)] DPAEBEES R
NREA NETREEES DLEHEBRRES Total
[HaE15] [HfaE19(b)] [HEE19(c) & 20] st
At 31 March At31March At31March At31March At31March At31March At31March At31 March
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20175 2016 2017 & 2016 F 2017 5 20164 2017 & 2016
3A31H 3A31H 3H31H 3A31H 3A31H 3A31H 3H31H 3A31H
BETT AT BT AT BETT AT BETT AT
Principal amount ZA 4 6,000,000 6,000,000 7,300,000 7,300,000 10,000,000 23,300,000 13,300,000
Interest earned but not withdrawn 1,171,774 942,666 863,586 602,794 155,984 2,191,344 1,545,460
at the reporting date
WERMERZERIEFERA
Accrued interest fE=tFIE 49,515 56,964 56,362 64,842 70,118 175,995 121,806
7,221,289 6,999,630 8,219,948 7,967,636 10,226,102 25,667,339 14,967,266
Less: non-current portion (6,000,000) (6,000,000) (7,300,000) (7,300,000) (10,000,000) (23,300,000) (13,300,000)
B IEREE D
Current portion R B)E5 7 1,221,289 999,630 919,948 667,636 226,102 2,367,339 1,667,266

Fixed income instruments

The fixed income instruments represent Hong Kong dollar
certificates of deposits with maturity periods within five years from
the date of purchase. The investment yield for the year ended
31 March 2017 is between 1.47% and 2.55%.

9. BIEARIA

BEABTEREAREE BB AFAL
B TERE  —E—+tF=A=+—H
IEFEIREWESE1.47% £ 2.55% 2 °
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9. Fixed income instruments (Continued)

At 31 March 2017, the fixed income instruments held by the
Group and HA are as follows:

B RS AR BT AL

9. EEAEIAWW

R-ZB—tF=A=+—8 EEKEBER
FANBEASTANAT

The Group and HA
SEREER

At 31 March 2017

At 31 March 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

201738318 201643 A 31 B

BT T BT

Maturing within one year — & A EI| 8§ 1,890,000 250,000
Maturing between one and five years —Z F1 5 (A 51| Ef 250,000 1,840,000
2,140,000 2,090,000

The above financial assets are neither past due nor impaired. The
credit quality of these assets is disclosed in note 3(a) while the
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair
value of these assets as stated in note 3(b)(ii). The Group does not
hold any collateral as security.

10. Inventories

The Group and HA

PR BEEL LB BMIRE BLE
ENEEERRERMFES(a) - ERER -
RANEERBRENRES (b)) AIIELE
ENAREE - KBRS A EMERmRE

o

10. &

SERBER

At 31 March 2017

At 31 March 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

2017438 31H 20163 A 311

BT T BT

Drugs %4 1,073,311 1,053,654
Medical consumables Z& &5 @ 195,139 183,227
General consumables —f&HFE 28,032 30,479
1,296,482 1,267,360

11. Accounts receivable

The Group and HA

11. BWERRX

SERBER

At 31 March 2017

At 31 March 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000
2017 €3 4318 201643 A31H

BB T T BT
Bills receivable [note 11(a)] FE4BREE [F{F7E 11 (a)] 361,952 362,968
Accrued income FEFTURA 28,235 11,597

390,187 374,565
Less: Provision for impairment [note 11(b)] (63,949) (58,159)
B RER [HTE11 (b))

326,238 316,406
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Notes to the Financial Statements

11. Accounts receivable (continued)

(@)  Aging analysis of bills receivable is set out below: (a) RBUSREHRESTHT

The Group and HA
EEREER

At 31 March 2017 At 31 March 2016

HK$'000 HK$°000

201743 H31H 20163 H31H

BT BT

Below 30 days 30 HEAR 155,765 151,965
Between 31 and 60 days 31 £ 60 H 75,277 98,877
Between 61 and 90 days 61 Z= 90 H 78,645 48,550
Over 90 days #2890 H 52,265 63,576
361,952 362,968

The Group’s policy in respect of patient billing is as follows:

(iv)

Patients attending outpatient and accident and emergency
services are required to pay fees before services are
performed.

Private patients and non-eligible persons are required to pay
deposit on admission to hospital.

Interim bills are sent to patients during hospitalisation. Final
bills are sent if the outstanding amounts have not been
settled on discharge.

Administrative charge is imposed on late payments of medical
fees and charges for medical services provided on or after
1 July 2007. The administrative charge is imposed at 5% of
the outstanding fees past due for 60 days from issuance of
the bills, subject to a maximum charge of HK$1,000 for each
bill. An additional 10% of the outstanding fees are imposed
if the bills remain outstanding 90 days from issuance of the
bills, subject to a maximum additional charge of HK$10,000
for each bill.

Legal action will be instituted for outstanding bills where
appropriate. Patients who have financial difficulties may be
considered for waiver of fees charged.

SEEMRARENRRENT

hol3]

(i) WARIFIRRARSEERDARES
LIRS ER -

(i) FLRBARIEGA EIGA L ABE AL
T4 -

(i

~

Bl EFmAZ L RS - &R
BATELRBERANHRNER @ Bz
RN RRRERA -

(v) =TTt F A — Bk 2 BATRER
BEERY BRI NERASHITR
o MERERNEZOB MR EHE
B & BIMIURRFRE% 1EATTHRE
FIEEREE FIR A 1,0007T : A0
BHHEBMABHUER @ A& R
BURRZ10% (ERTHRE - BIEIRE +
fR A 7H 10,000 7T ©

(v) EEEREROBRIZERBERRIVE
R1I78 - ARERHEOBA  EEEE
BTRERRR
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11. Accounts receivable (continued)

102

An aging analysis of receivables that are past due but not impaired
is as follows:

The Group and HA

B RS AR BT AL

11.

FEWBRRR (40)
B BB 3% 75 360 128 0 B UK B B8 0 B 8 ) AT

T

EEEEER

At 31 March 2017 At 31 March 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
20173 A31H 20163 A 31H
BT T BETIT

Past due by ¥BHf :
Below 30 days 30 FLLA T 123,297 110,812
Between 31 and 60 days 31 260 H 59,933 84,285
Between 61 and 90 days 612 90 H 67,247 37,998
Over 90 days #8890 H 7,036 18,134
257,513 251,229
Receivables that are past due but not impaired include BEES B REN ERER BB

outstanding debts to be settled by government departments,
charitable organisations or other institutions for whom the credit
risk associated with these receivables is relatively low. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

At 31 March 2017, bills receivable of HK$104,439,000
(2016: HK$111,739,000) were impaired by HK$63,949,000
(2016: HK$58,159,000) of which HK$39,309,000 (2016:
HK$32,558,000) related to receivables individually determined
to be impaired. These mainly related to non-eligible persons,
the recoverability of which are considered to be low after taking
all possible debt recovery actions. Remaining allowance for
impairment of HK$24,640,000 (2016: HK$25,601,000) was
made by reference to historical past due recovery patterns. It
was assessed that a portion of the receivables is expected to be
recovered. The aging analysis of these receivables is as follows:

REBRBIEMEBREENRZK LR
WERSS R EERRBAHAE - KEXR
R AR R R -

R—ZZE—ttFE=ZA=Z+—H B
104,439,000T(= & — N F: B %
111,739,000 7T ) H) FE 4 BR & R (B B %
63,949,000 (= & — X F: & &
58,159,000 7T) - HA#E# 39,309,000 7T
(ZZ—J"4F : B¥ 32,558,000 71 ) E2{E Bl
RERBENEKEESHE  E2PRIIERTE
B ALT  BADEREETE A gE1TE AIfib
FHEBUURE - BRI E#E R K - £2
ZARNBIRAREBRERE  EmED
T A #24,640,000 L (ZF —NF : B
25,601,000 7T ) R FERVE R - e E 0 AR
SREATIRIE o 55 L R UK BR B8 Y BRIR D AT 20 T

The Group and HA
EEREBER

At 31 March 2017

At 31 March 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

2017%3A31H 2016 £ 3 A31H

BT T BETIT

Below 30 days 30 HLA 32,468 41,153
Between 31 and 60 days 31 260 H 15,344 14,592
Between 61 and 90 days 61 2 90 H 11,398 10,552
Over 90 days #8390 H 45,229 45,442
104,439 111,739
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11.

12.

Accounts receivable (continued)

Movements in the provision for impairment of accounts receivable
are as follows:

B ER TR FI
1. BEWERR (@)

FEUBR TR ER BB T

The Group and HA
SEREER

For the year ended

For the year ended
31 March 2016

31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

BZE20174 EHZ= 20164

3H31HILEE BA31HLFE

BEET T BT

At the beginning of the year A& 4] 58,159 46,404
Additional provision B &1Z N 60,976 58,126
Uncollectible amounts written off % #5HY A Uk [0l 7158 (55,186) (46,371)
At the end of the year FRAEF#R 63,949 58,159

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
fair value of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not
hold any collateral as security.

Other receivables

EHER  HAREERRZE Ll EKRERR
R EE - B AREFA E AR RE
Ao

12. EAbEYARTR

The Group and HA
FERBER

At 31 March 2017 At 31 March 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

20173 HA31H 20163 A 31H

BT T BT

Donations receivable fEU 85k 127,509 59,703

Interest receivable f&UZFI S 71,737 76,334

Receivable from the Government for reimbursement or refund of 57,018 739

expenditure incurred on capital projects

BT ESGREE AR T2IE B FTP 5 S FFE W GIE

Others HAth 41,361 40,347

297,625 177,123

Other receivables do not contain impaired assets. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of
each class of receivables mentioned above. The Group does not
hold any collateral as security.

Hi W FORL MBERE - ARER -
RHEERRE DS REKFIRN AR
B SEYARFAEAERRERR -

g 350
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13. Deposits and prepayments

B % ER TR BT
13. BERFEFNFIE

The Group £

At 31 March 2017

At 31 March 2016

HK$'000 HK$’'000

20173 HA31H 20163 A31H

BT T BETIT

Utility and other deposits /A Pl 283 & E fhi% & 23,145 23,150

Prepayments to Government departments 124,969 101,795

RIBUTEBFI TR BRI

Maintenance contracts and other prepayments 175,491 197,027
RESH RAMIBR IR

323,605 321,972

At 31 March 2017

At 31 March 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

20173 A31H 20163 A31H

BT T BETIT

Utility and other deposits A fi % % & H A1z & 23,062 23,067

Prepayments to Government departments 124,969 101,795

A R B PIFE A B0 58

Maintenance contracts and other prepayments 175,491 197,027
RES L REMIERNFIR

323,522 321,889
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14. Cash and bank balances 14. BERBITHEER
The Group and HA
SEREER
At 31 March 2017 At 31 March 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
201793 A31H 201643 A31H
BT T BT
Cash at bank and in hand $R7TER R FHHRS 388,222 555,403
Bank deposits with original maturity within three months 1,665,479 1,402,922
JRARENER B N B A = 8 B HRIT1FK
Cash and cash equivalents 38 & MR &5 E 2,053,701 1,958,325
Bank deposits designated for PPP Endowment Fund [note 20] - 10,000,000
RILEIEB AR SIS E RITIER [MiFE20]
Bank deposits with original maturity over three months 15,272,320 17,823,372
JRARENER B RB =1 A MR TE K
17,326,021 29,781,697
The cash and bank balances included bank deposits designated for RERBITERDFNETRBEBERES R
Minor Works Projects Fund and PPP Fund of HK$1,639,280,000 NILERERERSMIBETERITER PRl A
(2016: HK$2,858,121,000) and HK$299,063,000 (2016: 75 #61,639,280,000 T (= — /1 F : B
HK$441,960,000) respectively. The effective interest rate on short 2,858,121,000 7T ) K ## 299,063,000 7T
term bank deposits is between 0.01% and 1.27% (2016: 0.01% (ZZ—7%F : B% 441,960,000 7T) ° 288
and 0.83%). These deposits have an average maturity of 53 days BITFERANERFEE0.01% £1.27% 2
(2016: 52 days). M(ZZ—7NF :001% £0.83% 2 )
EHIFREFHEERRS3R (ZE—RF:
52K) e
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15. Balance with Samaritan Fund

During the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Government
injected HK$10,000,000,000 to support the operation of the
Samaritan Fund, which was established in 1950 by resolution
of the Legislative Council for the purpose of providing financial
assistance to needy patients. As instructed by the Government,
HK$4,000,000,000 was vested immediately in the Samaritan
Fund. The balance of HK$6,000,000,000 not immediately required
by the Samaritan Fund was placed with the Exchange Fund since
8 November 2012 by way of a credit facility entered into between
HA and the Hong Kong Monetary Authority for a fixed period of
six years during which time HA would not be able to withdraw the
principal amount.

As HA is acting as a custodian for the Samaritan Fund, the
cumulative investment return up to 31 March 2017 was recorded
together with the principal amount as balance with Samaritan
Fund, which is unsecured, interest free and denominated in Hong
Kong dollar. The principal amount is repayable upon the maturity
of the placement.

The balance with Samaritan Fund is analysed as follows:

B SRR EE
15. MBRTE S

EHE-—ZT—=F=A=+—A81tz8
HEE BARABBINEESTEREE
10,000,000,0007C * A X HE & B E 1E -
BB E S R — N AT FELIDERIREK
Y BERNRAARTENRAREER - BRI
B F$E R - A& EUE  4,000,000,000 7T ) 58
HENR R AZES - Mg T AR H ZR B
6,000,000,0007¢ * RIFEERHEEHEHME
BERTNEERZE A= —=—F+—A8
NBBFAIIEES - FHETEANF - £
ULEREAR] - BE R T REZBUEEAR S ©

HREEREERHMBNEESHRE A -
HEeBZE—T—tF=RA=1+—HILFEW
REREDRERAE - EIMEHESF R
SRR - BEFFOMERRRE - UEBTR
B WREIBRAME -

RIBM S ESERITIT

The Group and HA
SEREER

At 31 March 2017

At 31 March 2016

HK$’000 HK$’'000

201793 H31H 201643 A31H

BT T BT

Principal amount "<& 6,000,000 6,000,000

Interest earned but not withdrawn at the reporting date 1,171,774 942,666
s B ATEER A RRERA R S A

Accrued interest fEEHFI S 49,515 56,964

7,221,289 6,999,630

Less: non-current portion J& : 3ERBNED D (6,000,000) (6,000,000)

Current portion R EhEf 5 1,221,289 999,630
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16. Creditors and accrued charges

S 35 Sk B
16. MEARENRA

At 31 March 2017 At 31 March 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

20173 A31H 201643 A31H

BT BETT

Trade payables [note 16(a)] FETE 5 &5k [HiFE 16 (a)] 604,133 410,460

Accrued charges and other payables [note 16(b)] 5,648,840 5,354,052

FERT B R R E AR [MiEE16(b)]

Current account with the Government [note 16(c)] 4,235,872 4,343,667
EAEUT 2 IR PRAEBR B [KiEE 16 (c)]

10,488,845 10,108,179

At 31 March 2017 At 31 March 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

20173 A31H 201643 A31H

BT T BT

Trade payables [note 16(a)] FETE FERFK [KizE 16 (a)] 604,133 410,460

Accrued charges and other payables [note 16(b)] 5,644,670 5,350,355

FER B A REARRR (716 (b)]

Current account with the Government [note 16(c)] 4,235,872 4,343,667
BRI 2 R SREBR B LKz 16 (c)]

Current account with a subsidiary ERFf} B #i& 2 R H) 3K £ 8R B 4,093 3,620

10,488,768 10,108,102

(@  An aging analysis of trade payables is set out below:

The Group and HA

(a) ENESERFOERRITMOT

FEREER
At 31 March 2017 At 31 March 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
201793 H31H 201653 A31H
BT T BETIT
Below 30 days 30 HEA ™ 579,574 351,452
Between 31 and 60 days 31 260 H 20,128 42,916
Between 61 and 90 days 61 2 90 H 3,357 9,708
Over 90 days #8390 H 1,074 6,384
604,133 410,460

All trade payables as at 31 March 2017 are expected to be settled
within one year. The Group has maintained adequate cash flows
and banking facilities for settlement of trade payables.

—ZF=-A=THHNENBESERENRE
R—FREN - REREERARDES KR
TTREBNENE SRR -
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16.

17.

18.

108

Creditors and accrued charges (continued) 16. EREARENER @)

Accrued charges and other payables of the Group and HA  (b) SERBEERHNENERREMEREIER

included accrual for annual leave of HK$1,968,565,000 TF R B 585 1,968,565,000 7T (ZZ—7X
(2016: HK$1,888,843,000) and contract gratuity accrual of F ¢ #5%1,888,843,0007T) ' AR EETA
HK$1,497,136,000 (2016: HK$1,411,748,000). #)EN & 7B H1,497,136,000 7 (—F— /N4 ¢

F51,411,748,0007T) °

The balance mainly included Government funding for designated  (c) ##RE EEIERBUNFIEIE 1EE SIS E

programmes or specific items that were already received and will HEMBER  BEBERFERRAXEERE
be recognised as income over the periods in which the related AW A E R TERIERA -

expenditure is incurred and charged to the statement of income
and expenditure.

Deposits received 17. ERZE
The Group and HA
FEREER
At 31 March 2017 At 31 March 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
201743 H31H 20163 A31H
BT T BT
Patient deposits & A3z & 41,810 42,512
Deposits received from the Government in respect of building projects 2,277 44
MELTERBUFFTIREE S
Other deposits E At ¥ % 253,647 198,503
297,734 241,059
Death and disability liabilities 18. AT RERBHNEE

Under their terms of employment, HA employees are entitled to RIBERGIT BEROESTZHETR

death and disability benefit cover. This is funded by HA through 1’%:%%?‘5\*'\”%@ °\§A§+§Um%%ﬁ%i§i@ﬁﬁﬂ’9
KRBT IAER)

the recurrent subvention from the Government.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows: BEBEBERTABERIFEENT
The Group and HA
SEREER
At 31 March 2017 At 31 March 2016
HK$'000 HK$’'000
201743 A31H 20163 A 31H
BT T BT
Present value of funded obligations J£& & {EHIR(E 263,757 254,068
Fair value of plan assets 5tE|EERN AR BE (10,339) (15,286)
253,418 238,782
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18. Death and disability liabilities (continued)

The movement in the present value of funded obligations is as
follows:

The Group and HA

SERBER

B RS AR BT E

18. AT REREINET @

TEEEZRERSNT

For the year ended

For the year ended
31 March 2016

31 March 2017

HK$’'000 HK$'000

BE 20175 HZ 20165

3A31BILFE 3ABBILFE

BT T BT

At the beginning of the year A1) 254,068 239,936
Current service cost 2317 IRTEF 2 37,623 33,380
Interest cost FI| 8.5 3,974 3,757
Benefits paid B {187 (8,890) (5,182)
Remeasurement of disability liability (SR E EEFH 2 (33) (9,427)
Remeasurement of death liability Je T i@ F| E(EE =+ & (22,985) (8,396)
At the end of the year JAF4& 263,757 254,068

The movement in the fair value of plan assets is as follows:

The Group and HA
SEREER

FHEIEENAABEZEIT

For the year ended

For the year ended
31 March 2016

31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000
HZE20174F EHZE20164F
3A31HILFE SA3BALLFE

BT T BT T
At the beginning of the year I 4]] 15,286 2,044
Adjustment on plan assets (excluding interest income) (2,793) 12,741
FTEIEEMNFAR (TEEFEMA)
Employer contributions {& 3 3% 6,736 5,683
Benefits paid B {4&7 (8,890) (5,182)
At the end of the year JAF4R 10,339 15,286

The death benefits are insured by a group life insurance policy and
the current insurance policy covers the period up to 31 July 2018.
The fair value of plan assets was taken as the present value of the
expected death benefits with respect to the obligations covered by
the policy.

BEREBERASRRAERRMICE
FRE - RITREABBRHE—Z—N\F
tA=1+—B - ABEENRIABERRR
stEIfEEE RN EERRE
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18. Death and disability liabilities (continued)

110

B RS AR BT AL

18. AT REREINET @

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of income THREGERZBERRGE2HENER
and expenditure and consolidated statement of comprehensive TUARRHFEE - RRBEEMAESL

income have been calculated by reference to an actuarial valuation
and are as follows:

The Group and HA
SEREER

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

HK$'000 HK$’'000
BE20174F EHZE20164F
SH31HILLEE 3A31HILFE
BET T PEEETIT
Current service cost ZR1TARTEFA 37,623 33,380
Interest cost F| 8% 3,974 3,757
Remeasurement of disability liability 15585 & (E &=t & (33) (9,427)
Total, included in staff costs [note 25] 41,564 27,710
et (BREEEIAR) [HiFE25]
Remeasurement of death liability 36T t@FE (£ E =12 (22,985) (8,396)
Adjustment on plan assets (excluding interest income) 2,793 (12,741)
FEIEEMARE (MEEFSWKA)
Total, included in other comprehensive income (20,192) (21,137)
#@Et (BREAE M EEKER)
Principal actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation are REMERANEERERZOT ¢

as follows:

The Group and HA
SEREER

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

BZE20174F HZE2016F

3A31HIEEE 3AB1BILFE

% %

Discount rate 8538 & 1.70 1.60
Assumed rate of future salary increases & & 2 5 & 1 18 3.60 3.60
The analysis below shows how the present value of the funded TANDTRIBEAT EERERZARE
obligations as at 31 March 2017 would have increased / (decreased) as BE_ZE—+tF=A=t+—HIFEETRE

a result of the following changes in the principal actuarial assumptions: K930 / (k) -

Increase in Decrease in

50 basis points 50 basis points

HK$'000 HK$'000

FIZF 50 27 FZ= % 50 B 7

BET T BT T

Discount rate B3H = (14,878) 16,296
Assumed rate of future salary increases fBRz& 7k R & 12 1F 15,666 (14,429)
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(a)
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B RS AR BT E

s

The Group and HA
SEREER

) Tseung Minor Works
Designated Kwan O Projects
donation Hospital Fund
fund Fund [Note 19(b)]  PPP Fund
[Note 2(f)]  [Note 19(a)] HK$'000 [Note 19(c)]
HK$'000 HK$’000 N HK$'000
EEBE S ER BT ITR1EHE AFhE Total
e s 2 HIEES HK$'000
[MzE2(f)] [HEE19(a)]  [BtEE19(b)] [BEE19(c)] et
BET T BT T BT T BT BETR
At 1 April 2015 201544 A1 H 535,050 66,582 12,154,487 - 12,756,119
Additions during the year A1 A1 166,032 - - 441,960 607,992
Interest earned AR 2 - - 447,373 6 447,379
Exchange loss [& 318 %k = - (12,532) - (12,532)
Utilisation during the year 4 A & - (8,153) - - (8,153)
Transfers to consolidated statement of - - (17,155) - (17,155)
comprehensive income
ERAmAEEEER
Transfers to consolidated statement of (145,645) - (1,066,209) - (1,211,854)
income and expenditure
HATGABSZHEER
Return of unspent funds to the Government - (58,429) - - (58,429)
RELBUNEARARIE
At 31 March 2016 7201643 A 31 H 555,437 - 11,505,964 441,966 12,503,367
Additions during the year E A1 A1 215,347 - - 1,757 217,104
Interest earned FT&RFI 8. - - 299,400 241,975 541,375
Exchange loss [ 5 184 - = (622) > (622)
Transfers to consolidated statement of - - (22,158) - (22,158)
comprehensive income
ERTmE 2 EEER
Transfers to consolidated statement of (171,110) - (1,103,964) (181,712) (1,456,786)
income and expenditure
HATGRAWEEE
At 31 March 2017 1A 201793 A31H 599,674 - 10,678,620 503,986 11,782,280
Tseung Kwan O Hospital Fund (a) BERBRES

During the financial year ended 31 March 1996, the Government
advanced HK$2,047,290,000 to HA for the construction of Tseung
Kwan O Hospital. All interest earned from this grant is repaid
annually to the Government. The hospital was commissioned
during the financial year ended 31 March 2000. During the
financial year ended 31 March 2016, the project was completed
and the unspent funds payable were returned to the Government

in June 2016.

REBE—ANAANEZA=+—BLEHTBE
EA - BT TB B 2,047,290,000 7T T 5
ER AEREERER - fTEREEER
B S EFHEREN o HEREBRENE
E_ZTTTFE =A==+ HIWNPBRFEER
A EHEZE=_T—"F=A=1T—HILH
BIREE - EEEBEE DA EBNAR
FIBR T —/NFNAREBEHBF
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19. Deferred income (Continued)

(b) Minor Works Projects Fund

(@

112

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Government
advanced HK$13,000,000,000 (under Subhead 8083MM) to
HA for minor works projects to improve the existing facilities in
public hospitals and clinics. The one-off grant has replaced the
annual block funding allocation under Capital Works Reserve
Fund - Improvement Works Block Vote (Subhead 8100MX) and
covers minor works projects under five planned programmes, with
costing not more than HK$75 million for each individual item. The
five programmes are facility rejuvenation programme, capacity
enhancement programme, safe engineering programme, universal
accessibility programme and regular maintenance/minor works
and preparatory works for major capital works projects.

As approved by the Government, HA has placed
HK$7,300,000,000 with the Exchange Fund over a period of
six years since 11 April 2014 while the remaining funds have
been managed internally and invested within the ambit of HA's
prevailing investment guidelines. The approved grant, together
with the related investment income, will be fully used to meet the
costs of the minor works projects in the coming 10 years or so
starting from April 2014. For the use of funds, HA will continue to
seek prior approval from the Government for each individual item
of expenditure to be funded by the one-off grant, as has been the
practice for the use of funds under Subhead 8100MX.

The exchange loss arose from Renminbi (RMB) denominated bank
deposits which were switched back to Hong Kong dollar upon
maturity in April 2016. The total interest accumulated since the
initial investment was sufficient to cover the exchange loss.

Minor Works Projects Fund balance predominantly comprised
non-current items.

PPP Fund

The Government allocated to HA a sum of HK$10,000,000,000
on 31 March 2016 as an endowment fund (note 20) to generate
investment returns for regularising and enhancing ongoing clinical
PPP programmes, as well as developing new clinical PPP initiatives
in future. HA can make use of the investment returns together
with the remaining balance of the one-off designated funding
provided previously to support the ongoing operation of the PPP
programmes commencing from April 2016.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the Government
provided recurrent subvention of HK$ 1,757,000 to HA for annual
pay adjustment of staff deployed on PPP initiatives. The subvention
was transferred to the PPP Fund and was recognised in the
deferred income — PPP Fund when the subvention was received.

ek

B RS ERAR MY RE

EEW S ()

(b) MNETREEES

(c)

REZE=_Z—NF=A=+—HIHOTERF
B BT S %13,000,000,000 7T (5
HB8083MMIET) TEE D - LA#EIT/ A
TiRBHE HERAUERRZLARER
Mo B2 AMBEREREEFEBREAT
BFEEES — RS TRENEBEREIT (DA
8100MX) » Wiz A E#EE s 2IHETHE LR
RS T7,500 BT M)/ NEUE AR o R A
EIBIERMEIEEATE  RIEERATNE - &
2HBETE - M AANGEBITE R
EHME /NI TR B T2t 8IMEE
TE-

BERERFIE RS —MNFMA+—
H 15 # ¥ 7,300,000,000 TTIE ASMEE S -
BHATF  BFAEANITEE  UREEER
BITHERERTETIRE - BREBTGER
BRAFIBUWA - BBHASZ R == — P4
BBAROTFN/NATREBERAS - ¥
RESHER  BERSMABEFERADE
8100MX JB N E S ML  FLIE—XBREER
& BB ER X I8 B ST ©

FRRBRITHARBERE_FT—RFMOA
M ARSI HELRL - ERERE
ZIENT SRR ARMABERIEX -

NVTIZIR B R AT 2 EIEREIAR -

RRBEHEES

N-ZE—RE=ZA=+—H8 BAAEER
3 7% #10,000,000,000 7T 28 37 BB AN E 4
(FF5E20) + FIFBFTSIEE BRI EF & iER
BB EHTHBRRALEHIESE - UK
ERBHEITHNEE - BERUAMAKRER
3R ERIBRAT 2 B4 TR — IR 158 TE B
e BELER T NEIARETH
NIERIERTE

REBEE-_ZT—tF=A=1+—"HIENTHKF
B BSREE REEE 1,757,000 L&
EIEME - AEARLERIETEIRENFE
N - SREmIRIKEIREAE QLS
WEES - WHERAELKRS — AFLEHIE
g -
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20. Public-Private Partnership Endowment 20. AREBEBERES
Fund
As approved by the Government, the endowment fund of BAERERBA S —R"EL AT AR
HK$10,000,000,000 has been placed with the Exchange Fund for #5754 10,000,000,000 TLEY R AR S T RSN
a period of six years since 12 July 2016. EES - BEIREF -

21. Capital subventions and capital donations 21. BRI R EXRBE

The Group &

Capital Capital
subventions donations
[Note 2(r)] [Note 2(f)]

HK$'000 HK$’000 Total
BB BB HK$’000
[HaE2(r)]  [BfaE2()] Bt
BT T BET T BETT
At 1 April 2015 R 20154 A1 H 3,887,198 1,266,004 5,153,202
Additions during the year 4 A1 1 1,187,599 97,024 1,284,623
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund #38 5/ N TI2IH B & & 17,155 - 17,155
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and expenditure (1,024,384) (113,686) (1,138,070)
ERTGRE B EER
At 31 March 2016 74201643 A 31 H 4,067,568 1,249,342 5,316,910
Additions during the year £F A& 1,265,842 187,781 1,453,623
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund &5 5 /\8 Ti2IB E K4 22,158 - 22,158
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and expenditure (814,305) (161,806) (976,111)
ERATGRAEREEER
At 31 March 2017 72201763 A 31 H 4,541,263 1,275,317 5,816,580
HA BER
Capital Capital
subventions donations
[Note 2(r)]  [Note 2(f)]
HK$’000 HK$’000 Total
BB BB HK$°000
[KtaE2(r)]  [HfaE2(F)] et
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 April 2015 R 201544 B 1 A 3,885,252 1,266,004 5,151,256
Additions during the year 4 A1 il 1,187,599 97,024 1,284,623
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund &85/ B T2 E H4 17,155 - 17,155
Transfers to statement of income and expenditure g7 Uk 4= E & (1,022,438) (113,686)  (1,136,124)
At 31 March 2016 74201643 A 31 H 4,067,568 1,249,342 5,316,910
Additions during the year 4= A& A1 1,265,842 187,781 1,453,623
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund #3858/ NI TR E &£ 4 22,158 - 22,158
Transfers to statement of income and expenditure g7 Ik 4= E & (814,305) (161,806) (976,111)
At 31 March 2017 1201793 A 31 H 4,541,263 1,275,317 5,816,580
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22. Designated Fund - Home Loan Interest

B BEHRE REEE NI FRK

B RS ERAR MY RE

22.

23.

24,

114

Subsidy Scheme

The Group offers eligible employees under the scheme an
interest subsidy to finance the purchase of a residence in Hong
Kong. Eligibility under the scheme is primarily determined by the
employee's length of service. The amount of subsidy generally
represents half of the interest rate payable by the eligible
employee up to a maximum of 6% per annum. However, eligibility
and the maximum amount of subsidies granted are subject to a
number of restrictions as further defined in the scheme.

The scheme is funded by HA through the recurrent subvention
from the Government. A designated fund has been set aside for
the scheme and is maintained in designated bank and investment
accounts which are included under cash and bank and fixed
income instruments balances respectively.

Hospital/clinic fees and charges

The charges for hospital services provided by the Group are levied
in accordance with those stipulated in the Gazette. Since the
Government has established a set of policies and procedures on
granting fee waivers to the needy patients, the hospital/clinic fees
and charges recognised as income in the consolidated statement
of income and expenditure are stated net of such waivers. The
amount of hospital/clinics fees and charges waived for the financial
year ended 31 March 2017 amounted to HK$572,515,000 (2016:
HK$548,084,000).

Investment income

The investment income for the financial year ended 31 March
2017 included an exchange loss of HK$2,124,000 (2016:
HK$33,652,000) arising from RMB denominated bank deposits
which were switched back to Hong Kong dollar upon maturity
in May 2016. The total interest accumulated since the initial
investment was sufficient to cover the exchange loss.

23.

24,

EEES® - BEERN SR
=T &

REBUHEAS  RERSEREERHT A
SRR - BOMMERNEBBERR - B
IRRENRENREFE - R —R
REEREERNNEEN—F HSR/RE
F6%° T ERMEMKREREX D
BIH)— LR TE TR B

ZatEIREE BB AR ME R MBI T A
BB - SHERE —REEES  ANUNE
EEFRNERRENNEBAX - YTFRIE
ERITIREFP A DRPIARE RIRITRE
TEABTE&ZERRA -

Bk DEMRE

SEATIRHENBERY S REERAT
R ERMBERER - ARBFE ST
—ERTEEERBERAERRROBER
KR MEGEKRIEERTERBK
ARER / 2BEMRE  BHKRTELRE
HE -EHEE_T—t+tF=-A=+—HIt
ZHREEN - EREER / 2 BERE
BB ¥E572,515000 L (ZE — R F | Bk
548,084,0007T) °

RE W

EHE-_ZT—tF=ZA=1t—HIEZHBF
EHEERs  BEE-E— A A3
HiM A R SR1T 13 32U B 75 B 5| B BE 5
BRE2124,000L (ZF—RF : B
33,652,0007T) - R E R RBEMFI S48
R AR A RAE N Bk -
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25. Staff costs 25. BT
The Group %
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BZE2017F HZE2016F
3A3MALFE 3A3HIEFE
BT T BT
Basic salaries and other short term employee benefits 39,888,829 37,295,588

EAXFe RAMERESREN
Post-employment benefits B 12 @7

— Contribution to HA Provident Fund Scheme [note 25(a)] 2,508,057 2,385,833
BERDERTEIMHR [MiFF25(a)]
— Contribution to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme [note 25(b)] 645,452 589,548
SBTRSRTEIERR [KIzE25 (b))

Death and disability benefits [note 18] 41,564 27,710
SR RBEAEN (18]

43,083,902 40,298,679

(@) HA Provident Fund Scheme (“HAPFS") (a) BIRREEBERABEFE
The HAPFS is a defined contribution scheme. The current scheme [BRERRARESE ) E—BREHKE
was established on 1 April 2003 and governed by its Trust Deed 2 BT EIRBE_TET=F—A=-1Th
and Rules dated 29 January 2003, and registered under section 18 BREAROERE R =F 7
of the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance —HARYRZEEE  WRE(FERER
("ORSO"). IRET VB 51\ f5aEf
Most employees who have opted for HA terms of employment RBHDEEBERERGMTNESR  BF
are eligible to join the HAPFS on a non-contributory basis. The BR2MEZHIN [BREERABESF
HAPFS is a defined contribution scheme as all benefits are defined gl - [BREERAESE ] R—EATE
in relation to contributions except that a minimum death benefit HEEE  ARRTHRKE SR ERIES
equating to twelve months’ salary applies on the death of a R+l AF e HNREFTEFIN - A F
member. However, when the member's account balance is less HERFHRRATE - Tif - EXERRE &
than his twelve months’ scheme salary, the difference will be BBRERNZAE T2 T @R EHEE A
contributed by the Death and Disability Scheme of the Group. B ZEREehEENRCREEES
R o

The monthly normal contribution by the Group is currently set at SENE R EEHKRSESRFT 15% °
15% of each member’s monthly basic salary. The percentage of 1 B 12 BrI% Sl R PR B AT 28 1 2 b 2 BB AR 75
benefit entitlement, receivable by the employee on resignation or FEILH -
retirement, increases with the length of service.
At 31 March 2017, the total membership was 29,462 (2016: RZE—+tF=A=+—H" ' 78 #5H
29,414). The scheme’s net asset value as at 31 March 2017 was 294628 K B (ZF —XF : 294144 )
HK$61,131,801,000 (2016: HK$55,617,495,000). MK & EFE A7 %61,131,801,000 7T

(ZZ—7"F : #¥555,617,495,0007T) °
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(b)

26.
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Staff costs (Continued)

Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPFS")

In accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, the Group set up a MPFS by participating in master
trust schemes. HA permanent employees can choose between the
HAPFS and the MPFS while contract and temporary employees are
required to join the MPFS unless otherwise exempted.

The Group’s contributions to MPFS are determined according
to each member’s terms of employment. Members’ mandatory
contributions are fixed at 5% of monthly salary up to a maximum
of HK$1,500 per month.

At 31 March 2017, the total membership was 51,307 (2016:
48,730). During the financial year ended 31 March 2017,
total members’ contributions were HK$549,122,000 (2016:
HK$499,266,000). The net asset value as at 31 March 2017,
including assets transferred from members’ previous employment,
was HK$7,130,385,000 (2016: HK$5,808,324,000).

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses comprise office supplies, hospital
supplies, non-capitalised project expenditure and other
administrative expenses. For the financial year ended 31 March
2017, other operating expenses included an accrual for auditor’s
remuneration of HK$1,950,000 (2016: HK$2,955,000).

B RS ERAR MY RE

25.

(b)

26.

=% N

B AREETE

RIR CRBIE R B S EED)  SEINA
SRRt Sl - RBBRIRHIEATE S
2 -BERFHEESUEESN[BRERE
BAEEE] K REMEAEETE ]
e RERESR2M REIEARSE
8] BRIFESHR -

SEY [EHEATESTE ] MER - R
FHRKEMERGHETE © 5K E /5614
REEAAH5% AT ABEE1,500T 45
R -

R-_ZE—+E=F=+—H8"  2H&E
51,307 BB (ZF — /N4 : 48,7305 ) °
EEE_T—tF-A=T+HILZHRE
EA - K E K HFABEE ABE 549,122,000
TT(=ZZ— N F : #B%499,266,0007T) °
MN-BE—+E=A=+—08 FEHEE
FE BEKBLMBNEANEE A
75#7,130,385,000 7 (ZZ— /" F : B
5,808,324,0007T) °

Hitt EER>

Hh2 BRI BREHAZEAR BRD
EFERNCBEERIREMITRASX -
HE-_ZT—+t&=ZA=Z+—HItz2H¥HK
FE - B &SRS B 15 AT 1% 20AM B
¥ 1,050,000 (=T —<F: B
2,955,000 7T) °
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27. Remuneration of Members of the Board 27. RERERTAEBEEHFITHA

and Five Highest Paid Executives By <

(@ No Board members are remunerated for the services provided in ~ (a) FFBHEREKENHATIERBEIUKE H
the capacity as Board members. DR ALARTES M SEER B & o

(b) The remuneration of the five highest paid executives, which ~ (b) FAMNEIKABREEXNTUTEEES
comprises basic salaries and other short term employee benefits FITBRABNME BEREFAELRTE K
and post-employment benefits, and is included in the staff costs E b8 B 1R RBERBR A -

for the year, is as follows:

For the year ended
31 March 2017

HK$'000
BZE2017 5
Current Position/Name of Executives 3A31HILLEE
BRI/ THA B R BEET T
Chief Executive 1T 48 %% 5,995
Dr Pak Yin LEUNG Z1HE 8
Director (Cluster Services) B4 AR 745 42 B4 5,518
Dr Wai Lun CHEUNG SR{& B %2 4
Cluster Chief Executive (Hong Kong West) 7 & PH 48 44 85 5,235
Dr Che Chung LUK [ #2188 4=
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon West) 1.3 FaEst 48 42 85 5,235
Dr Sau Ying TUNG EHHEA
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon Central) 1.3 B 4942 85 5,090
Dr Chi Yuen LO E5RE4E
27,073
Note: All executives do not receive any variable remuneration 5T FTETTIERA B 3 N EUER R 2R Hh 8 gy A~
related to performance. ERRFTH
For the year ended
31 March 2016
HK$'000
HZE2016 %
Current Position/Name of Executives 3H31HILEE
BEFRAL / THA B R BT T
Chief Executive 1TIE48%L 5,747
Dr Pak Yin LEUNG 213 &84
Director (Cluster Services) B 48R 7% 18 &5 5,127
Dr Wai Lun CHEUNG 3R{2 %2 4
Cluster Chief Executive (Hong Kong West) 7 & FaRf 484885 4,926
Dr Che Chung LUK P& HE 58 4
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon West) 152 Pa st 4842 B5 4,926
Dr Sau Ying TUNG &7 55
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon Central) J1.2 F1 B 4942 5 4,925
Dr Chi Yuen LO Ef5iRE 4+
25,651
Note: All executives do not receive any variable remuneration 5T FTAETTIRA B 30 DB EE R 2R 8 gy A~

related to performance. TEFEEBN o
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Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
include the following:

HA has entered into agreements with the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department (“EMSD") of the Government for
providing biomedical and general electronics engineering services,
electrical, mechanical, air-conditioning and building services to
the Group. According to the terms of agreements, the amounts
incurred for these services for the financial year ended 31 March
2017 amounted to HK$973,945,000 (2016: HK$914,422,000).
Other services provided by the EMSD for the year (e.g. capital and
improvement works) were approximately HK$550,954,000 (2016:
HK$531,494,000).

HA has entered into an agreement with the Government to
provide serving and retired civil servants, their eligible dependants
and other eligible persons with the services and facilities at all
public hospitals and clinics free of charge or at the prevailing rates
as prescribed in the Civil Service Regulations. For the financial year
ended 31 March 2017, revenue foregone in respect of medical
services provided to these persons amounted to HK$364,405,000
(2016: HK$340,624,000). The cost of such services has been
taken into account in the Government’s subvention to the Group.

Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the Group. It comprises the Chief Executive, Cluster Chief
Executives, Directors and other division heads of the Head Office.

Total remuneration of the key management personnel is shown
below:

B RS ERAR MY RE

28.

(b)

BRI A LTHIRS

SEEREH A LPIENERR ZAA ¢

BEERERNRETRERY T HE - &
ZERNSERHES R —RETFITRER
% B B ERNEFRE - BIE
MEER BE-_E—ttF=A=1+—
HIEZHBRFEEANEBRSE S RO ES
75 973,045,000 (Z T — R F : B
914,422,0007T) - FRAKE TEERHE
ARG (MMEATEERREZTE)NEAY
A7 550,954,000 7T (Z T — N4 : B
531,494,000 7T) °

BEREBFRIN T i AEBREKEAA
BB EEERANRBREMAEERA
TR BENIZ A E GO RERER
VEREDEMNREREE - B2
—+EFE=ZA=F+—HILZHREE " ALt
i A AT AR B0 B R AR A5 08 I 2 R W SR IR
A5 ¥ 364,405,000 T (ZF — /R F « B
340,624,0007T) ' RGN EADBIE
TEBStHEENFEEA

TRETEASHH
IEERASREARNRAEIRSE  BS

MEESEEBOAL - ERETHAAE
BRRE  SRENEREREMMEEIE -

EREEAEMFHMAENT

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

BZE2017F BHZE20164F

3A31BLEE 3A3IHIEFE

BT T BT

Basic salaries and other short term employee benefits 64,506 60,679
EARFr e R E G HE S

Post-employment benefits B3 1% & ) 6,338 6,091

70,844 66,770

Other significant related party transactions with the Government
include annual recurrent grants, capital subventions (note 21)
and designated funds (notes 19 and 22). Details of transactions
relating to the Group's retirement schemes are included in
note 25.

(d)

HERRERALTETONEMEARSBREE
FRFEERB) - BB (HRE21) RigER
& (19 22) - ARAKERAKFEIHX
D IRENEE25 ©
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28. Related party transactions (continued)

(e)  Outstanding balances with the Government as at 31 March 2016
and 2017 are disclosed in notes 8, 12, 13, 15, 16, 17 and 20. The
current account with a subsidiary, HACM Limited, is disclosed in
note 16.

29. Net cash used in operating activities

B RS AR BT E

28. EHEBA LTRSS @)

(e) BE-Z—R"ERZZZT—ttF=A
=+ —HEBRFZENRE R E
8,12,13,15,16,17 & 204 & - 2 fff /&8 1% #%
[BfrEERPEEEREGRAF | ZBHIZK

ERRE PR 16 58 -

29. EEEB AR FE

The Group &

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

HK$’'000 HK$'000
BZE2017F HE2016F
3A3MHILFE 3A3MAILEFE

BT T BT
(Deficit)/surplus for the year £ (J18) / B4 (1,518,559) 150,340
Investment income % & W &% (208,867) (188,185)
Income transferred from Minor Works Projects Fund (1,103,964) (1,066,209)
EHRAANATEEEESZIRA
Income transferred from PPP Fund &3 B AR & 1EE & 2 WA (181,712) -
Income transferred from capital subventions and capital donations (976,111) (1,138,070)
EAB BN RARBE 2 HA
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 11,307 29,184
HEYE MRS RRERETLEERSE
Depreciation and amortisation 3 & K # 964,804 1,108,886
Write-back of provision for doctors’ and non-doctors’ claims - (107,695)
B RIER AR S RE B ERD
Increase in death and disability liabilities £ T R {85248 F & (E4Z AN 34,828 22,027
Increase in deferred income JRAE ULz N 45,994 12,234
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 75 (3&40) / 4> (29,122) 46,208
Decrease in loans receivable &g (&R 1,304 1,279
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable FEUBRZER (12 0) / & 4> (9,832) 36,704
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables = fib f& Yg BR Zx (38 40) / J5k 4> (125,099) 33,151
Increase in deposits and prepayments %% K& FE - ZUIEIE AN (1,633) (42,342)
Increase in creditors and accrued charges B4 A K& FE{ £ A0 380,666 250,570
Increase in deposits received & Wi% £ 1240 56,675 33,007
Net cash used in operating activities <& ,E B)FT I & /558 (2,659,321) (818,911)

30. Funds held in trust

At 31 March 2017, Health Care and Promotion Scheme of
HK$25,137,000 (2016: HK$31,713,000) was held in trust for the
Government but not included in the financial statements.

30. fERtEE

R-ZT—+tF=A=+—H SEUETEELSFEX
BRTE RS 25 137,000 T (ZB—/N4F © B
31,713,000 7T) FfR FRE R RIEE TS - EEHE

RINABTEREA ©

119



; Independent Auditor’s Report and Audited Financial Statements By R E R SFENTHRE

Notes to the Financial Statements B ISR R M T

31.

32.

(a)

120

Donations from the Hong Kong Jockey 3. REEEEFTELEETES
.. o Bt
Club Charities Trust K15 Y
During the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the Hong HE_Z—+F=A=+—HINHBRFE
Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust made donations totalling N BAESSREEEES LR TFIH
HK$100,777,000 (2016: HK$81,305,000) to the following B8 B 100,777,000 T (—ZF—/%F @
institutions: 5% 81,305,000 7T)
HK$'000
BT
Jockey Club Inpatient Facilities Modernisation Scheme (Various hospitals) 44,510
BESeTRERE (TREBR)
Kowloon Hospital 182 2&p% 13,354
Wong Tai Sin Hospital B A{LZE 12,204
Queen Elizabeth Hospital {7 FA 58k 10,470
Caritas Medical Centre BRE BT 6,250
Enhanced Home Renal Replacement Therapy Programme (Various hospitals) 4,644
KE@Eiat & (TR EEk)
United Christian Hospital £ ## & 58t 4,402
Princess Margaret Hospital 3552 21255 4,115
Tai Po Hospital A 322657 828
100,777
The donations were accounted for in the designated donation fund BEEM 20 (DTSR ST EE - BT
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(f)(i). ANETEREESA -
Commitments 32. &I
At 31 March 2017, the Group and HA had the following RZZE—tF=A=1T—0 £SEKRBEER
commitments: BTN Z &
Capital commitments (a) BEXREIE
The Group £ &
At 31 March 2017 At 31 March 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
2017% 38310 201643 431 A
BT T BT
Authorised but not contracted for B4 {E R ET R4 6,086,787 5,618,968
Contracted for but not provided B 5] 22 #{B R #f8 5,937,837 3,948,641
12,024,624 9,567,609
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32. Commitments (Continued) 32. A&
(a) Capital commitments (Continued) (a) BAXREE @)
At 31 March 2017 At 31 March 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
201743 A 31H 20163 A31H
BT T BT IT
Authorised but not contracted for BB #E{E R ET R4 6,086,724 5,618,962
Contracted for but not provided B 5] 22 4){B AR & 45 5,937,813 3,948,048
12,024,537 9,567,010
The capital commitments disclosed above include both costs to RIEMEE2 (g) PRt B S 5HEER » il pTallAy
be capitalised under property, plant and equipment or intangible BRZREBEEGEMEMME - #R LK
assets and also costs which are to be charged to the statement of HRELEEER  ARITHEZABZEER
income and expenditure in accordance with the accounting policy REFX °

set out in note 2(g).

(b) Operating lease commitments (b) &EHEAE
At 31 March 2017, the Group and HA had commitments for RZZE—+tF=A=+—H KEKBEER
future minimum payments under non-cancellable operating leases BRIER TR FEE HE N A EH S EHE
which fall due as follows: ZARREAR RS -

The Group and HA

SEREBER
At 31 March 2017 At 31 March 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
20173 A31H 201643 A31H
BT BETIT

Buildings #£5
Within one year —& RN ER# 48,967 45,149
Between one and five years —Z T4 N ER#H 116,334 144,700
Beyond five years #2181 £ £ 4,600 16,779
169,901 206,628

Equipment & &

Within one year —£ A1 HA 51,060 26,451
Between one and five years — % 71 5 N Hiii 81,706 30,026
132,766 56,477
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33.

34.

35.
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Taxation

No taxation is provided as HA is exempt from taxation under the
Hospital Authority Ordinance.

Contingent liabilities

Adequate provisions have been made in the financial statements
after reviewing the status of outstanding claims and taking into
account legal advice received.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by members of HA on
28 September 2017.

B RS AR BT AL

33. MIE

BERZ(BREERKRE) BHRHHK -
B EAE TR -

34. HARAE

REEHE R AR ARR B R EZRNANR - WREPT
BERER - WMHMBHRRC L R ARORE -

35. MBMERABB

RUBBRREN-_ZE—LFAA-TN\RE
BERKEREB -
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Appendix 1
P 8 1
Membership of the Hospital Authority
Eg = =5 = =
BREERKE
No. of plenary meetings
attended in 2016-17
Name 2016-17 £E Committee participation in 2016-17*
HE HEZBRRERY 2016-17 FEBHENERE *
Prof John LEONG Chi-yan, SBS, JP 16/16 Chairman of plenary meetings, EC and EEC
Chairman,ﬂA 2RARE THEEEREZEERELESTRE
RECHIX
B ERBFRE
Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS 13/16 Chairman of HRC; Vice-Chairman of MTB (up to 27.4.2016);
SRt Member of EC, EEC and MSDC; HGC Chairman of Tuen Mun
Hospital
ANEREEGER EP?%? BREBEERITFE (BE2016%F
4ﬁ27E!) THES SREEFEEEERERRGE
REEEGKE  HPI5 Eﬁﬁ rEEERE
Dr Constance CHAN Hon-yee, JP 16/16 Member of MSDC
Director of Health BERGERZEGNE
PRZEEREE
FHEEER
Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, JP 7/16 Member of HRC, MSDC and MTB; HGC Member of Prince of
PR SR = i Wales Hospital
/\ﬂéﬁé,\a e ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%&@é%@&QJ%&%ééﬁﬂi
R TR ER R EgKE
Ms Anita CHENG Wai-ching 7/16 Member of ITGC and MTB; Chairman of HRAC; HGC Member
BEFLZ L of Shatin Hospital
ARBERRBER %Eﬁ&ﬁPyﬂxTﬁé,\ BKE  BEEEE
ARESLR  PABKREARREGNE
Ms CHIANG Lai-yuen, JP 5/16 Member of MTB and SSDC; HGC Chairman of North District
EEmZ T Hospital
PARIBZEERXERBERZEGNE  HEERERE
BEFE
Ms Quince CHONG Wai-yan, JP 8/10 Vice-Chairman of HRC (up to 30.11.2016); Member of
(up to 30.11.2016) MTB (up to 30.11.2016) and SAC (up to 31.10.2016); HGC
HEELt Chairman of Kwai Chung Hospital and Princess Margaret
(BiZ£20164 11 H30H) Hospital
ANERZEGRERF(BZ2016F 11 H30H) i R
BREE®(HE2016F11H30H) RIBE L FEE & (A=
2016 F 1031 H) KB : XRBEEBRENBRELRZES
T
Mr Ricky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP 10/10 Chairman of PCC; Member of ARC, EC and EEC (all up to
(up to 30.11.2016) 30.11.2016); HGC Member of Hong Kong Eye Hospital,
EE R A Kowloon Hospital and Rehabaid Centre (up to 7.4.2016)
(Bi=2016 11 H30H) ARBFZEALR  BANABEERAY  TREEER
%‘%J*M BEEeNE (FEE2016F11H30H) : B
BRER NEBRRERSHRERROEAEES (B
2016¢4ﬁ 7H)KE
Mr Andrew FUNG Hau-chung, BBS, JP 12/16 Vice-Chairman of FC; Member of MTB; HGC Member of

BERBE

Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital

ﬁﬁﬁi%@&wi}* PREIFZEENRE

=BRERAZEEKE

P RBILIERABRT
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No. of plenary meetings

attended in 2016-17

Name 2016-17 & Committee participation in 2016-17*

#®E HEZEAERE 2016-17 FESHNZEEE

Mr HO Wing-yin 16/16 Member of HRC, MSDC and MTB; HGC Member of North

Ak E A4 District Hospital
ANEIRE Ef.-ﬁ CBERBERZEGRTAREREEK
8 tmBERERAZEGNKE

Mr Lester Garson HUANG, JP 14/16 Chairman of ARC; Member of EC, EEC and SSDC; HGC

EEaAid Chairman of Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital
M REAREERBEIR  TREES  EEERERE
ERTERBERZESNE  EREREAZESERE

Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS 16/16 Chairman of FC; Member of ARC, EC, EEC, MSDC and SSDC;

Hig s+ HGC Chairman of Queen Elizabeth Hospital
MBLZEEXR  EdkAREEZRE 1TBREZEE  ZE&
BERELB S BERGERZEGLAIERBEREZE
g8 PR RERERZESER

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi 5/6 Member of HRC and MTB (both from 15.12.2016)

(from 1.12.2016) ANBREZBERTREZZEEKE (YH2016F 124

RISRZEL T 15 HAE)

(H12016 F 12 51 HAE)

Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP 6/6 Member of ARC (from 19.12.2016), MTB and SSDC (both

(from 1.12.2016) from 7.12.2016)

WEEE B REAREBEE® (2016 F 12 H19HE) - HRKRIZ

(12016 12 A1 HAE) ZEERTERBEEEZE S (JH2016F 12 A7 HE)KE

Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP 4/6 Member of MTB, PCC and SSDC (all from 15.12.2016)

(from 1.12.2016) FREELZES  ARRFLZEESRIERBERZENE

Bz i+ (2H20164F12A15H8)

(H12016 F 12 A1 H#E)

Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin 15/16 Vice-Chairman of ARC; Member of FC, ITGC and MTB; HGC

ARE LA Member of Castle Peak Hospital and Siu Lam Hospital
ERRBEEZBEETR  MBRES - B ERGE
AZARRFREEEEERE  BLBRL EEREAZ
BEXER

Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP 14/16 Vice-Chairman of MSDC; Member of HRC and MTB; Chairman

2= 7 I of KRAC; HGC Member of Cheshire Home, Shatin and Tseung
Kwan O Hospital
BERGURZARALIE  ANSREESRTRMEEE
BKE  NEREBEAZESEE  YERKESLE EER
BERERZEEKE

Ms Esther LEUNG Yuet-yin, JP 8/8 Member of FC and MSDC (all up to 22.9.2016)

Deputy Secretary for Financial Services B EEehEERGEEREZESKE (FER2016F9AH

and the Treasury 22H)

(up to 22.9.2016)

2B+

S EHEREEBEINER

(BZ20164F9 H22H)

Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS, JP 6/16 Member of MSDC and MTB; HGC Member of Queen Mary

S (BRI Hospital and Tsan Yuk Hospital

BERGERZEGNTRRBEZEGNE  BEBRLES

BiRiERZBEEXKE
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No. of plenary meetings
attended in 2016-17

Name 2016-17 £E Committee participation in 2016-17*

#®E HEZEBAERE 2016-17 FESHEHNZER *

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP 16/16 Chairman of ITGC; Member of EC, EEC, FC, HRC, MSDC, MTB,

Chief Executive, HA SSDC, all RACs and HGCs

PEl éﬂﬂ&ﬂ&iﬂﬁ/‘*%iéif TREES REEEREZX

Bl B BT ARE, -MBEEE - ANBRZES  BERBERZES
EPH%&TB"?,\E. - TERBBEREZES  SREFAHRNEZEEEX
EEREREZEENE

Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, 9/16 Vice-Chairman of PCC; Member of MSDC and MTB; HGC

SBS, JP Member of North Lantau Hospital

REHEHIR NRRAEEGRIERE fﬂ&%%%é@é,\ @ MR REIERS
ek 8  bRIEI L EBREREZEEKE

Ir Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok, SBS, MH, JP 8/16 Member of MTB and SSDC; HGC Member of Alice Ho Miu Ling

EEREL Nethersole Hospital
FRABZEZES AT ERBERZESNE  EEKMYERAD
HEEREREZEEKE

Ms Winnie NG, JP 7/10 Chairman of SSDC; Member of EC, EEC (all up to 30.11.2016)

(up to 30.11.2016) and ITGC; HGC Chairman of Prince of Wales Hospital

hsEe L XERBEREZBEIR  TRZEE  ZRERELTE

(Bi=20164 11 H30H) (£E€£2016fﬁ11ﬁ30 A) REMPEREE AZEEMKE
BRI BREREZESEE

Mr Patrick NIP Tak-kuen, JP 12/12 Member of EEC, FC, HRC, MSDC and SSDC (all from 6.7.2016)

Permanent Secretary for Food and DeaEHgEEREES . BKEES  ANBREES BB

Health (Health) REEEREESRTEREEEZEGNKE (2H201647 A4

(from 6.7.2016) 6 HiE)

EERE LA

RYRiGEBEFWER (FE)

(1201647 A6 A#E)

Dr PANG Yiu-kai, GBS, JP 7/16 Member of FC, MSDC and MTB; HGC Chairman of Queen Mary

TREEL Hospital and Tsan Yuk Hospital
ﬁﬂ%i,\a BEERBEERZEGRPREEZEGNE

SRR REREREAZEEER

Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang, BBS 10/16 Chairman of PCC (from 1.12.2016); Vice-Chairman of MTB (from

MESAE S 28.4.2016); Member of ARC, EC (from 1.12.2016), EEC (from
1.12.2016), FC, HRC, PCC (up to 30.11.2016) and MTB (up to
27.4.2016); HGC Member of hospitals of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
NBIRFEBGERF (H2016 F12A1HE) EP?H%%’;%%
BEIXE (H2016F4 A28 ARE) %ﬁ&ﬂ}ﬁéﬁé 2.
TRZEE (H2016F 12A1HE) - BR2EEBRESR %@(ffa
2016&12/?1/3@) MBEER ANEEEE®  ARE

FZ B (BE2016F 11 A30H) RPAKRIZZE S (B E

2016@4%’275)52; RE=GEBRELLZEGKE

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP 14/16 Chairman of SSDC (from 1.12.2016); Vice-Chairman of SSDC (up

TiEE A to 30.11.2016); Member of EC, EEC (both from 1.12.2016), FC and
MTB (up to 30.11.2016); HGC Chairman of Tin Shui Wai Hospital
(from 10.6.2016); HGC Member of Tseung Kwan O Hospital
STERGEEZESEE (H2016F 1241 H#E)  TIERHE
BREBCREF(HE2016F11A30H)  TREEE -
BR2EEREEZEE (HJH2016F12A1HE) ﬁﬁkfié?
MR GIZEZE S (HE20164F 11 A30H) K8 : RAKEE
REREZESERE (H2016F6 A10HE) : {5ERERE R
ZEEgXE

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, BBS, JP 9/16 Member of ARC, FC, HRC and MTB

Tasat

BHNEAREREAE -
WIEZEEKE

MBEEE ANBERZESERHTR
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Appendix 1
B &% 1
No. of plenary meetings
attended in 2016-17
Name 2016-17 & Committee participation in 2016-17*
" HEZBAERE 2016-17 FEZENZEEE *
Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP 15/16 Chairman of MSDC and MTB; Member of ARC, EC, EEC and
TR HRC HGC Member of Grantham Hospital

BEERGEEZEERPRVEZZESEF Bt KAKRER
ZEe - THEES  B2EER Lé”a&/\ﬁéﬁéﬂa
KB BEABRERZESNE

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai 12/16 Member of ARC and FC; HGC Member of Kwai Chung Hospital
BERSE and Princess Margaret Hospital
F REARERZES R RUBEREGKE | ZRER RIFRA

BB AR 8gKE

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong 14/16 Member of HRC, ITGC, MSDC, MTB, PCC, SAC (from 1.11.2016)
TS\ e and SSDC; Chairman of NRAC; HGC Member of North District
Hospital and Tuen Mun Hospital
ANERRE®E éfﬂﬂ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁf 5g BEREERE
g PRKEZES  ARKRHFEEE BELRFZES (4
2016F 11 A1 Eﬁ)&i%ﬂ&%%@;%gg% B
=g

ZEexE  tRBREMIMBRERZESNKE
Ms Carol YUEN Siu-wai, JP 8/8 Member of FC and MSDC @/l from 7.10.2016)
Deputy Secretary for financial Services MR E e RBERGEREZE SN E (2H2016F10A7HE)

and the Treasury
(from 7.10.2016)

R/NELZ L
BB R ERBRINER
(2016 E 10 A 7 H#E)

Mr Richard YUEN Ming-fai, GBS, JP 4/4 Member of EEC, FC, HRC, MSDC and SSDC (all up to 5.7.2016)

Permanent Secretary for Food and BReEGEEIEe  PREES AHNBREES BER

Health (Health) BERZE SR TIRE ﬁ&ﬁ@xé\@ﬁké—\ (2EZ2016F7H
(up to 5.7.2016) 5H)

REAEBAEA
BY R BETHER (FE)
(BZ=2016F7H5H)

*Note TR
Board Members are not separately remunerated. They discharge the role ~ REKETNERINNE - KEKEFBETEE:
of governance of the Authority through formulating policies and directions ~ _EHIFTERER / #&[A) %%%E@E@I{’Eﬁxﬁl AR

and overseeing executive performance at Board meetings, as well as taking ?E&EfEQA EZEEMNIE  —RLHRBERN
part in steering the work of various committees of the Authority including: R

ARC - Audit and Risk Committee

EC - Executive Committee

EEC - Emergency Executive Committee

FC - Finance Committee

HGC - Hospital Governing Committee

HRAC - Hong Kong Regional Advisory Committee

HRC - Human Resources Committee

ITGC - Information Technology Services Governing Committee

KRAC - Kowloon Regional Advisory Committee
MSDC - Medical Services Development Committee

MTB - Main Tender Board

NRAC - New Territories Regional Advisory Committee
PCC - Public Complaints Committee

SAC - Staff Appeals Committee

SSDC - Supporting Services Development Committee
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Appendix 2(a)
Bié% 2 (a)

Hospital Authority Committee Structure

BREERZEEERE

Hospital Authority Board

BREERAS

v

\4

Regional Advisory
Committees

EEAAREE

Hospital Governing
Committees

TERRE®

Audit and Risk
Committee

B hEAREREZES

Main Tender Board
FRIGEZES

Emergency Executive
Committee

BEoEERELES

Medical Services
Development Committee

BERGEREZES

Executive Committee

Public Complaints

HER Committee
ORER® ARRFEEE
Finance Committee Staff Appeals Committee

WBEESY BE FFEESE

Human Resources

Supporting Services

Committee Development Committee
ANEBEREES XEBRGEREZES
Information

Technology Services
Governing Committee
éuﬂﬂ&%ﬁ“ ER
e

Note : Membership lists of various committees are listed in Appendices 3, 4 and 5.
e REEBERERBEENHEE3 4 K5
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Appendix 2(b)
B 2 (b)

Hospital Authority Executive Structure
BREERITHES

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP Chief Executive

REEBE THeH

Hong Kong East
Cluster

EERERBHA

\4

Clusters B8

Dr LAU Chor-chiu, MH, JP

Cluster Chief Executive

IR E pmmas

Hong Kong West
Cluster

EEEERHA

Dr LUK Che-chung Cluster Chief Executive
PESEREEE mimez

Kowloon Central
Cluster

NRERE R

Dr Albert LO Chi-yuen Cluster Chief Executive
EFERE poes

Kowloon East
Cluster

NRERE B

Dr CHUI Tak-yi Cluster Chief Executive
REREE e

Kowloon West

Dr Nancy TUNG Sau-ying, MH

Cluster Cluster Chief Executive
NAETEEE PR B ERREYE pmns
Dr HUNG Chi-tim, JP Cluster Chief Executive
(Up to 31.10.2016)
P EREREE ez
New Territories (BZE20164F10A31H)
East Cluster
R Dr LO Su-vui Cluster Chief Executive
(From 1.11.2016)
RBEELE poez
(2016 F 11 51 A#)
New Territories Dr T KO Pat-si Cluster Chief Executi
West Cluster r lony E*;E-:r: ML:; ;r ) ief Executive
B EEEs
R e PR

\4

Head Office ##MEE

Dr CHEUNG Wai-lun, JP Director (Cluster Services)
REEBEE voRsEE

Dr Derrick AU Kit-sing Director (Quality & Safety)
(Up t0 30.11.2016) *

ESREE gxrrrms
(#ZE20164 11 A30H) "

Dr LIU Shao-haei Deputising Director (Quality and Safety)
(From 1.12.2016)
BIVEBE AgxR e @
(2016 F 12 A 1 HAE)

Dr LO Su-vui Director (Strategy & Planning)
(Up to 31.10.2016)

BREBE rnuREes
(#ZE20164F10H31H)

Dr LEE Ha-yun Director (Strategy & Planning)
(From 1.11.2016)

FREEE rrrREes
(H12016 E 11 A 1 H#E)

Ms Clara CHIN Sheung-chi Director (Finance)
SMELL iFes

Ms Margaret CHEUNG Sau-ling

Head of Corporate Services

ERERRL BEFKIE

Dr Theresa LI Tak-lai Head of Human Resources
FEEEE AVEFEE

Dr CHEUNG Ngai-tseung

Head of Information Technology and Health Informatics

REMBE SANREBEEETE

*Note: Dr Derrick AU Kit-sing’s last day of duty was 30.11.2016. His last day of service was 31.12.2016.
T BAKBAENREAIIERR 2016511 308 « EEHIR 20164 12 A 31 B4 -
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By 3

Membership and Terms of Reference of Functional Committees
EEZEENERBESE

Audit and Risk Committee
ETREREELZES

Membership List
RERE

Chairman Mr Lester Garson HUANG, JP
EE el

Vice-Chairman Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin
e FRESE

Members Mr Ricky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP (up to 30.11.2016)
HE IBEEE (B2 2016 4F 11 A30H)
Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS
HiExigL
Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP (from 19.12.2016)
WEELE (20164 12 5 19 A#E)
Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS
M S
Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, BBS, JP
Fobst
Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP
BERTERR
Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai
BERIEE
Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP
RIERE
Ms Wendy YUNG Wen-yee
RBER T
In attendance Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
) PEEEE TTHAEH
Mr Richard YUEN Ming-fai, GBS, JP (up to 5.7.2016)
Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health)
RGBS E (E2016F 7 A5H)
BRYRFEBEFWER (F£)
Mr Patrick NIP Tak-kuen, JP (from 6.7.2016)
Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health)
BEEESLE (20167 A6 HiE)
RYRFEBFEWER (FE)
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Terms of Reference

Note:

Exercise an active oversight of the internal audit function to ensure

that its:

(@) mandate, resources and organisational status are appropriate;

(b) plans and activities are adequate to provide systematic coverage
of the internal control and risk management systems put in
place by the Management; and

(0) findings are actioned appropriately and timely;

Recommend the appointment of the external auditor and the audit

fee to the Board, endorse any non-audit services to be provided by

the external auditor, and consider any questions of resignation or

dismissal;

Consult with the External Auditor on all relevant matters including the:

(@) nature and scope of the audit;

(b) audited financial statements and the audit opinion;

(c) management letter and management’s response; and

(d) matters of which the External Auditor may wish to draw
attention;

Gain reasonable assurance on the completeness, accuracy, and

fairness of audited financial statements, including appropriateness

of accounting policies and standards, adequacy of disclosures and
significant audit adjustments (in collaboration with the Finance

Committee);

Oversee the effectiveness of systems for risk management and

internal control, including to :

(@ monitor the implementation and effectiveness of Hospital
Authority’s Organisation-wide Risk Management (ORM) policy
and strategy;

(b) review and approve changes to the components of the ORM
framework;

() review reports on the organisation-wide risk profile and
significant risk issues reported to it by the Chief Executive; and

(d) monitor Hospital Authority’s financial and administrative control
processes, including those designed to ensure the safeguarding
of resources and operational efficiency, through the results of
internal and external audit;

Oversee the processes implemented by the Management for

monitoring:

(@) compliance with pertinent statutes and regulations;

(b) compliance with Hospital Authority’s Code of Conduct;

(o) effectiveness of controls against conflicts of interest and fraud;
and

(d) effectiveness of Hospital Authority’s whistleblowing mechanism.

Although the functions of the Audit and Risk Committee cover a

wide area, matters that are of a pure clinical nature (such as medical

ethics) are not within its purview.

Focus of Work in 2016-17

In 2016-17, the Committee met eight times to exercise active oversight
of internal audit function of HA, considered matters related to the
audit of HA's financial statements, and oversaw the effectiveness of risk
management and internal controls at HA in accordance with the Terms of
Reference of the Committee.
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B % 3
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In monitoring the effectiveness of HA's internal audit function, the
Committee received from Chief Internal Auditor quarterly progress reports
on audit results on HA's operational areas. The discussions focused on
audit conclusions, major audit observations and relevant follow-up actions
planned by the management. Key internal audits considered by the
Committee included “Management of Li Ka Shing Foundation Hospice
Centres”, “Special Honorarium Scheme”, “Management of Total Joint
Replacement Programme” and “Electricity Consumption Management”.
The Committee also received updates on the development of audit analytics
of clinical systems and deliberated on key observations identified. To plan
ahead for 2017-18, the Committee took part in prioritising areas for
internal audits and endorsed the Internal Audit Plan.

On the audit of financial statements, the Committee reviewed and endorsed
HA's draft audited financial statements for 2015-16 in a joint meeting with
the Finance Committee. The Committee also considered reports from the
external auditor on the 2015-16 internal control matters, the 2016-17
financial statement audit work plan and the results of preliminary audit
risk assessment. In addition, the Committee considered and endorsed the
appointment of HA's external auditor.

With regard to risk management, the Committee examined the
implementation of organisation-wide risk management and whistleblowing
arrangements in HA. To assess key risks facing HA in 2017 and related
planned mitigation measures, the Committee considered reports on
compliance with HA related ordinances and key organisation-wide risks.
Deliberations were also made on risk management reports pertaining to
HA's macro-financial risk, information technology (IT) risks — breach of
confidentiality / privacy, major capital works risks, service capacity risks
and the Electronic Health Record Programme undertaken by HA. The
Terms of Reference of the Committee was refined to reflect its role in HA's
organisation-wide risk management. The Committee also considered the
development of a risk management framework for Clinical Public-Private
Partnership (PPP) Programmes via a consultancy study report, and reviewed
the findings of a gap analysis between Independent Commission Against
Corruption (ICAC)'s Corruption Prevention Guide on Administration of PPP
Programmes for Healthcare Services and HA's relevant policies, guidelines,
and standard procedures.

To maintain good governance and high level of probity, the Committee
considered recommendations from the Corruption Prevention Department
of the ICAC via assignment reports on procurement of IT equipment and
services, letting and administration of planned maintenance contracts, and
procurement of specialist medical equipment and consumables. Besides, as
authorised by the Board, the Committee held two joint meetings with the
Executive Committee to handle HA's responses to the Director of Audit’s
report on HA Drug Management. The Committee also deliberated on the
agenda forecast for 2017-18.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted self-
assessment exercise to review its activities in the past year, having regard to
its Terms of Reference, for continuous improvement.
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Executive Committee
THRZEES

Membership List

RERE

Chairman Prof John LEONG Chi-yan, SBS, JP
g P2REICHIR

Members Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS
RE PRE R A

Appendix 3
B % 3

Mr Ricky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP (up to 30.11.2016)

IBEEE (B2 2016 F 11 A30H)

Mr Lester Garson HUANG, JP

Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS

Higx gt

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive

RIERBE B4 7T

Ms Winnie NG, JP (up to 30.11.2016)
hAaE L (Z=20164F 11 A30H)

Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS (from 1.12.2016)
WS e (2016 F 12 A 1 H#E)

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP (from 1.12.2016)
TAEIERAE (2016 4F 12 A4 1 HAE)

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP

ERIEHIR

Terms of Reference

Consider key matters and overall policies and directions on long-term
strategy and planning, risk management, corporate governance,
performance management and succession planning, and facilitate
the Board in discharging its responsibilities in this regard;

Advise on Board meeting agenda items proposed by the
Management including an annual forward looking agenda and key
matters raised by Functional Committee Chairmen;

Serve as a forum for the Hospital Authority Chairman, Functional
Committee Chairmen and the Hospital Authority Chief Executive to
consider major matters relating to the leadership and oversight of
the Hospital Authority;

Advise on changes to Board and Functional Committee structure and
processes including the respective terms of reference; oversee their
annual self-assessments; and advise the Board on the appointment
of chairmen, vice-chairmen and co-opted members of the Functional
Committees;

Advise the Board on the organisation structure and functions of the
Hospital Authority Head Office and its Divisions;

EiEEE

1. BHRABEREREAL  RRERE ®EBE
A BHEERECHRENEESERER
BRI AHHBEREERR (BER) Ag
BITEHEMBE

2. BEEABEZNBERASTEZHRBRREMN
BER BRESFNRERZELEEZEESE
FRENEZREH :

3. FmARBRERERBERITIFNEARSTE

4. BARERFEZBENREREF (BERE
#E) MEBRHEER EREARZ - N
ERRBEZBEER  BlEFREEKEN
REAARSREER

5. GLEE RN =R N H ARPT A AR AR R
B MASRHEER
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6. Exercise powers delegated by the Board on the following staff
matters:

(@) advise the Board on the appointment, remuneration changes,
contract variation of the Chief Executive;

(b) advise the Board on the appointment of Cluster Chief Executives
and Directors of Divisions;

() approve contract renewal, remuneration changes and contract
variation as well as lateral transfer / job rotation of Cluster Chief
Executives and Directors of Divisions;

(d) approve the appointment, contract renewal, remuneration
changes and contract variation as well as lateral transfer / job
rotation of Hospital Chief Executives and Heads of Divisions;
and

(e) review the performance of Chief Executive, Directors, Heads of
Division and Cluster Chief Executives;

7. Convene as the Emergency Executive Committee (EEC) in accordance
with Hospital Authority’s Emergency Contingency Plan (supplemented
by a senior Food & Health Bureau official when meeting as EEC).

Focus of Work in 2016-17

In 2016-17, the Committee met 11 times to discuss and consider key
matters and overall policies and directions of HA. Pursuant to the HA
Board’s leading and managing role on HA, the Committee continued to
play a key role in steering the implementation of the various enhancements
in the HA Review Action Plan, and overseeing and monitoring its
progress. The Committee discussed and provided guidance and support
to the finalisation of the HA Strategic Plan 2017-2022 to set out the
strategies and directions HA would pursue in the coming five years. It also
reviewed the progress of implementation of key enablers to support the
enhancements, drive changes and facilitate transformation in models of
care and practices. The Committee also examined the final progress review
on the implementation of HA Strategic Plan 2012-2017, and other ongoing
key service issues requiring further efforts to address, especially against the
backdrop of rising service demand. Other strategic matters considered by
the Committee included the formulation of HA Budget and Annual Plan
for 2017-18, implementation of the Ten-year Hospital Development Plan,
upgrading of HA Higher Diploma in Nursing Programme and the proposed
framework for implementation, preparatory work for the proposed Chinese
Medicine Hospital by the Government, donation management plan of
Hong Kong Children’s Hospital, etc.

On financial strategies, the Committee had reviewed the financial resource
requirement of HA in medium term financial projection from 2017-18 to
2020-21. The Committee was consulted on the findings of the review
conducted by HA on the level of fees and charges for public hospital
services in HA prior to submission to the Board and the Government. It also
discussed the proposed financial arrangement and governance structure for
the $10 billion endowment fund allocated to HA for PPP initiatives.
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The Committee discussed and determined a wide range of matters
concerning HA's talent management, which included the appointment and
remuneration matters of senior executives at HA Head Office and clusters,
career posting and succession of senior executives and reports on staff
complaints against senior executives.

The Committee continued to keep a close eye on succession in the Board's
Committees, and other membership matters relating to Hospital Governing
Committees (HGCs) and Regional Advisory Committees. It received annual
summary report on activities and feedbacks of HGCs. EC also discussed the
governance issues and improvement measures relating to the HA Provident
Fund Scheme.

Other major items discussed by the Committee during the year included
secretariat arrangements for the Board and its committees, enhanced
mechanism on recovery of legal costs incurred by HA, HA's emergency
preparedness and response programmes, pilot proposal for setting up a
school-based education-medical-social collaboration platform to support
students with mental health needs, etc. As authorised by the Board, the
Committee also held two joint meetings with the Audit and Risk Committee
to examine the proposed HA's response to the Director of Audit’s report on
HA Drug Management.

The Committee regularly advised on agendas of Board meeting as
proposed by the management. It also deliberated on the agenda forecast
for 2017-18.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted
self-assessment exercise to review its activities in the past year, having
regard to its Terms of Reference, for continuous improvement.
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Emergency Executive Committee
EESRERES

Membership List
REBE

Chairman

EE

Members
j54=

Prof John LEONG Chi-yan, SBS, JP

(In his absence, the Emergency Executive Committee chairmanship should be elected among its
standing members)

RECHE

(FETER BB REL S e /ERE 5 EXKEFEL)

Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS

PRE 58 5T A

Mr Howard CHAN Wai-kee, JP (from 11.4.2016)
(representing the Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health))
BRIZESCA (201644 A 11 HAE)
(RXRYRGERBZHWER (F4£))

Mr Ricky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP (up to 30.11.2016)
BHAERE (AE20164F 11 A30H)

Mr Lester Garson HUANG, JP

Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS

HigxE+L

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive

(In his absence, the Deputising CE)

PIREEE TTHAEE

(TR AR T IERY - FICEETTIAR S, 1)

Ms Winnie NG, JP (up to 30.11.2016)
th@tsa L (22016411 A30H)

Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS (from 1.12.2016)
MESRIE e (12016 F 12 F 1 H#E)

Miss Janice TSE Siu-wa, JP (up to 10.4.2016)
(representing the Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health))
A NEL L (BE2016F4A10H)
(REXBRYRFERBETWER (FE))

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP (from 1.12.2016)
THIERAE (2016 4F 12 51 H#E)

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP

BERIERR

Note: The Emergency Executive Committee (EEC) was set up by the  &F : %%T """"" ARBEZ B ERN20045F1 A15H8 &

Board on 15 January 2004. It will automatically be called into EREER(BER) KGRI - EEEEKX
action when the HA activates the Tier-three Strategic Response to B B2 EBERERRSEEXENS
a major incident, which is defined as an incident with prolonged - o Rk e B E R B (S2) &?é
and territory-wide implications, such as the Serious Level (S2) or TRfESE  BEREARINE=-BRIEESE
Emergency Level Response to influenza pandemic. ZEgRIRFMEE -
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Terms of Reference

To act for the Hospital Authority Board and exercise its powers and

functions, including:

(@) altering, amending or overriding existing Hospital Authority
policies, standards, guidelines and procedures; and

(b) establishment of sub-committees or task forces to tackle
particular matters at hand.

To identify the objectives and assess the risks facing Hospital

Authority in emergency situation;

To approve the strategies and policies for managing the emergency

formulated by the Hospital Authority Central Command Committee,

and monitor implementation progress in all HA hospitals and

institutions;

To coordinate activities of the other Hospital Authority committees

including Hospital Governing Committees;

To ensure effective communication of clear and concise messages

to key stakeholders, including staff, patients, Government and the

public; and

To be accountable to the Authority Board and the making of regular

reports to Hospital Authority Members as soon as practicable.

Focus of Work in 2016-17

No meeting was convened in 2016-17.
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Finance Committee

BHREES

Membership List
RERE
Chairman

EE
Vice-Chairman
EIESE

Members

RE

Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS

HigxigL

Mr Andrew FUNG Hau-chung, BBS, JP
IBEREE

Mr Howard CHAN Wai-kee, JP (from 11.4.2016)

(representing the Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health))
PRIZESCA (2016494 A 11 HAE)
(RXRYRFERZEWER (F£))

Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin

ZHELE

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
RIABEBA TTHAEE

Dr PANG Yiu-kai, GBS, JP

TRETLT

Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS

MeSRIE ST

Miss Janice TSE Siu-wa, JP (up to 10.4.2016)
(representing the Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health))
HhEL L (E20164F4H10H)
(RXBYREFERBEAWER (F£))

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP

FrEESA

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, BBS, JP

Bk o

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai

B

Ms Esther LEUNG Yuet-yin, JP (up to 22.9.2016) / Ms Carol YUEN Siu-wai, JP (from 7.10.2016) /
Miss Bella MUI Bun-ngar

(representing the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury)

BT (BIFE2016F9H22H) | RNELL(H2016F 107 HAE) [ 18mHELL
(KRR EBREBBBR)

Terms of Reference RiEEE

1. Advise and make recommendations on the financial aspects of 1. HERERR(BER)BRER;ENEFE
the Hospital Authority Corporate Plan and Annual Plan; Test 8IS AE - Rt E R RIERER

2. Advise and make recommendations on the financial planning, 2. HEERNFBRAE AT KB BEEK
control, performance, monitoring and reporting aspect of the MERESH - IRHER RIELER

Hospital Authority;

3. Advise on policy guidelines for all financial matters, including 3. FFAEMBEE @ BFERE - EFBRIREDH
investment, business and insurance; BRIES| - REE
4. Advise and make recommendations on the resource allocation 4. HERSEERRES R RELHER

policies;
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5. Advise and recommend to the Hospital Authority on the financial
statements (audited and unaudited) of the Hospital Authority;

6. Liaise with the Trustees of the Hospital Authority Provident Fund
Scheme on financial and control related matters and make
recommendations to the Hospital Authority where appropriate;

7. Monitor the financial position of the Hospital Authority; and

8. Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management
and risk mitigation relevant to finance operations and other
relevant areas contributing to the financial risk profile of the
Hospital Authority.

Focus of Work in 2016-17

In 2016-17, the Committee met six times to assist the HA Board in
ensuring proper stewardship and effective use of public funds through
making recommendations to the Board on various finance related
matters for the Authority.

In support of the corporate strategy and policy development of HA, the
Committee deliberated on the development of a refined population-
based resource allocation model and related communication plan as
per the HA Review Action Plan endorsed by the Board. The Committee
also examined HA's medium term financial projection for 2017-18 to
2020-21 taking account of the service demand growth and medical
advancement under the population-based model and the projection
of operating expenditure requirements with due consideration to
constraints faced by HA in terms of manpower and facilities, etc. that
could limit HA's ability to expand its services. These facilitated liaison
with the Government on HA's funding need. Besides, the Committee
reviewed the 2016 HA Fees and Charges Review results together with
the proposed recommendation for consideration by the HA Board
before onward submission to the Government.

Dovetailing with HA's annual service and resource planning process,
the Committee examined the proposed 2017-18 HA budget and
resource allocation, and considered the financial arrangement for the
$10 billion endowment fund for Public-Private Partnership initiatives.
In addition to endorsing HA's insurance procurement approach and
direction for 2017-18, the Committee, with the assistance of its Treasury
Panel, also advised on HA's investment strategies as well as treasury
management and operations. The Committee also examined the
consultancy review results and the corresponding proposed measures
to enhance the governance and operation arrangement between HA
and the HA Provident Fund Scheme (HAPFS). The Terms of Reference of
the Committee was refined to reflect its role in HAPFS governance. On
financial risk management, the Committee reviewed the risk mitigation
measures taken in 2016 and considered the planned actions to address
the key financial risks facing HA in 2017. It also reviewed the framework
and methodology of service costing and advised on related development
strategy.
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On accountability reporting and monitoring of HA's financial position,
the Committee reviewed and endorsed HA's draft audited financial
statements for 2015-16 in a joint meeting with the Audit and Risk
Committee. In addition, it considered the 2015-16 audited financial
statements / accounts for a number of designated programmes
undertaken by HA, including the Electronic Health Record Programme
Development, the Samaritan Fund, the Community Care Fund Medical
Assistance Programmes, the HA Charitable Foundation and the minor
works under the Capital Works Reserve Fund Head 708 Subhead 8083
MM. On HA's financial performance, the Committee received monthly
financial reports and considered a mid-year financial review together
with the unaudited financial statements for the six months ended 30
September 2016. The Committee also considered matters relating to key
financial performance indicators, waivers of hospital fees and charges,
and debt management.

The Committee reviewed the progress of the Finance Organisation
Review (Phase 1), Annual Work Plan of the Finance Division and the
proposed key strategic areas for 2017-18.

In addition, the Committee assessed the financial risks in 2017 in
conjunction with planned mitigation actions, and deliberated on the
agenda forecast for 2017-18.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted
self-assessment exercise to review its activities in the past year, having
regard to its Terms of Reference, for continuous improvement.
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Human Resources Committee

ADERZES
Membership List
RERE
Chairman Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS
xE PRERIAE
Vice-Chairman Ms Quince CHONG Wai-yan, JP (up to 30.11.2016)
xR HEELZL (BE2016411H30H)
Members Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, JP
RE PR So 8%

Mr HO Wing-yin

Ak B4

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi (from 15.12.2016)

BEISRE L+ (2016 4F 12 5 15 HAE)

Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP
TR
Miss Linda LEUNG
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(representing the Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health))

RERBILT
(RERYREFLEBFHEWER (FE))
Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
PEBBE TTHAE

Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS
MeER1E SR A

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, BBS, JP
ESliEsg e

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP
BRI

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BokEERE

Terms of Reference

Advise on manpower planning;

Advise on staff training and development matters;

Advise, review and make recommendations on human resources
policies and related issues;

Advise, review and make recommendations to the Hospital Authority
on the terms and conditions of employment for staff;

Advise, review and make recommendations to the Hospital Authority
on staff pay awards and overall staffing structure;

Advise, review and make recommendations to the Hospital Authority
on any other staff related matters;

Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and
risk mitigation relevant to human resources management;

BEsE

1. BANREREHEESR

2. BBERINEREEEHRE

3. BMANBERBEMBEBMEERHER  £17
mad M AR

4. FEBENEAKHRBREER(BER) R
HER - EITR RIEHER

5. BBEFMEBEBATFRABRBEREHE
R ETRE RIEHEE -

6. FEMEMERSAENEEREERREMHR
BR - ETRE RIEHER

7. EHESANEREZGEANMERRR A
RERKRERENEE
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8. Monitor the performance of the Hospital Authority Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes and make recommendations to the Hospital
Authority as and when necessary; and

9. Liaise with the Trustees of the Hospital Authority Provident Fund
Scheme on member and communication related matters and make
recommendations to the Hospital Authority where appropriate.

Focus of Work in 2016-17

In 2016-17, the Committee met six times to discuss and consider various
human resources (HR) matters of the Authority.

Along the strategic direction of HA to allay staff shortage and high
turnover, the Committee considered and endorsed various HR
recommendations and measures that were initiated to improve manpower
situation and employment terms and conditions. Key matters considered
included continuation of the Special Retired and Rehire Scheme which
aimed to rehire suitable serving doctors, nurses, allied health staff and
supporting grades staff upon their retirement or completion of contract
in 2017-18; initiative to attract and retain Operation Assistants IlIB;
enhanced contract part-time employment arrangement; consultancy study
on full-time employment packages of permanent and contract employees;
contract duration for doctors under limited registration; alignment of
practices in granting exemption of pregnant staff from night duties and
relaxation of the Continuous Night Shift Scheme. It also considered the
implication of 2015 Civil Service Starting Salaries Survey to HA, endorsed
the job evaluation results for Head Office Finance Division Chief Manager
positions according to the progress report on the Finance Organisation
Review (Phase 1), and granted endorsement-in-principle for the proposed
2016-17 annual pay adjustment for HA employees. In addition, the
Committee was updated on HA's response to public consultation on
working hours policy directions.

In response to the recommendations of HA Review, the Committee
considered the enhanced central mechanism for creation and deletion of
senior positions, discussed the job rotation arrangement for management
staff, commented on Cluster Chief Executives’ participation in HA overall
management, endorsed the regrouping of hospitals and proposed refinement
of Managerial Responsibility Allowance arrangement as well as enhancement
on central staff deployment mechanism in emergency situations.

With regard to staff welfare and communication / engagement, the
Committee noted the results of HA Staff Survey. It also noted the report
on proposed implementation plan for the governance and operation
arrangement between the HA and the HA Provident Fund Scheme (HAPFS)
(in particular the proposed revisions to the HAPFS Trust Board composition
and improved governance of Staff Representatives Committee for
enhancements in staff communication on matters related to the HAPFS,
and endorsed the corresponding revisions to the Terms of Reference of the
Committee). It also endorsed the proposed amendment to the Terms and
Conditions of Home Loan Interest Subsidy Scheme, and monitored the HA
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and HAPFS through regular updates.
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For staff safety, training and development matters, the Committee noted
the specialty-based centrally-coordinated Resident Trainee recruitment,
and progress of occupational safety and health consultancy study and
discussed the management of workplace violence in HA. The Committee
also reviewed regular progress report from the Central Training and
Development Committee which was established under the Committee
to strengthen the governance on staff training and enhance HA's role in
central planning and provision of training.

The Committee also gave comments on the clinical placement for allied
health students of Tung Wah College in 2016-17, and provided feedback
on the quarterly Key Performance Indicator reports. In addition, the
Committee assessed the HR risks in 2017 in conjunction with planned
mitigation actions, and discussed the enhanced arrangements for the
handling of whistleblowing cases. It also deliberated on the agenda forecast
for 2017-18.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted
self-assessment exercise to review its activities in the past year, having
regard to its Terms of Reference, for continuous improvement.
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Information Technology Services Governing Committee
MBS RRBEEREES

Membership List
REBE

Chairman Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
EE RIEBEE TTHAEH

Members Mr Sidney CHAN Shuen-yiu, JP (up to 19.3.2017)
24=1 Head of Electronic Health Record Office
BRURZESRE (BE20174F3H19A)
Ms Anita CHENG Wai-ching
HEBEHF L+
Mr Daniel LAI, BBS, JP
FERELAE
Mr Stephen LAU Ka-men, JP
R EHELE
Ms Ida LEE Bik-sai (from 20.3.2017)
Head of Electronic Health Record Office
FEFEL L (H2017F 320 HAE)
Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin
FRESLE
Hon Charles Peter MOK, JP
ENhEE
Ms Winnie NG, JP
fhEtgZ+
Ir Allen YEUNG Tak-bun, JP
Government Chief Information Officer
BT EAEH AR EE
Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BoRESA

Terms of Reference BigaE

1. Approve corporate policies and standards for Information Technology/ 1. BBEREER(BER) WEMEE /B

Information Systems; RFR AT LE

2. Approve and monitor the overall progress of the implementation of 2. BEEMEH / B RGREETE]  WEIRE
the Information Technology / Information Systems Strategic Plan; EEEE

3. Approve and monitor the execution of the Information Technology / 3. BBEME / BRSNS FIIETEIE -
Information Systems Annual Business Plan; WEER B BN

4. Receive recommendations on the priorities for Information 4. WHEBEEMREEZREELERNERE
Technology systems development and implementation; AR ¢

5. Receive advice from the Information Technology Technical Advisory 5. WBIEERITERA/MEZEENER
Subcommittee;

6. Receive performance and status reports; 6. WBIRIRRAMRERSE

7. Provide periodic progress report to the Hospital Authority Board; and 7. MIEBRERASEHREILIERE &

144



Hospital Authority Annual Report Bz EE FFHKR 2016-2017 {

8. Consider matters relating to risk, risk management and risk
mitigation relevant to Information Technology across Hospital
Authority.

Focus of Work in 2016-17

In 2016-17, the Committee met four times to discuss various issues
relating to the strategic development of [T/information systems in HA.
During this period, the Committee discussed the progress update of HA's
IT transformation as the basis for the future direction of IT organisational
design in HA undertaken by the IT and Health Informatics Division (IT&HID),
with an ultimate goal for organisational efficiency to bring in new service
model and technology innovation to enhance patient journey. Thorough
discussions were made on the multi-facet strategies comprising key
components to transform people, process and technology, with a number
of transformation initiatives to address the challenges of system reliability,
resource constraints to build and transform, and an effective ability to
manage future IT challenges. The Committee also received a report on
the review findings of end user and desktop support services in HA and
considered the way forward for end user computing support services.
In the area of risk management, the Committee received a report on IT
Operational Risk Assessment and discussed the key risks identified and
the actionable mitigating measures particularly against the potential risks
associated with cyberattacks.

The Committee deliberated and approved the portfolio-based and holistic
approach of IT Strategy 2017-22 which demonstrated the linkage from HA's
five-years strategic plan, devised to 20 IT strategies, then enabled by over a
hundred of IT programmes in the next five years. It also supported the key
mechanisms for executing the IT Strategy. Moreover, to meet the growing
demand for IT systems to support the operation of the organisation,
the Committee endorsed the IT Block Vote Submission for 2017-18 and
the IT&HID Annual Work Plan 2017-18 for responding to challenges in
continuing existing service delivery and delivering the major strategic
IT-enabled projects, in particular in light of the implementation of HA
Review Action Plan and the priorities emanating from the HA Strategic Plan
2017-22.

To fulfil its overseeing functions, the Committee monitored the
implementation of the work stipulated in the IT&HID Annual Plan by
considering, amongst others, the performance and status reports of
respective IT functions at each of its meeting, the comments of which
were conveyed to the relevant working teams under IT&HID for follow-up
actions. Progress Update on Clinical Management System Phase llI,
Business Supporting IT Systems, Electronic Health Record (eHR) Projects
and IT Services Performance were among the standing agenda items of
the Committee’s meetings. The Committee also monitored the ongoing
efforts of IT&HID on the development of the Government’s eHR Programme
for which HA was the technical agent, discussed the preparation of HA
participating as a major user of eHR Sharing System and endorsed the draft
audited financial statements related to eHR Programme undertaken by HA
annually.
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The Committee also reviewed regular progress report from the Information
Technology Technical Advisory Subcommittee which was established under
the Committee to advise HA and HA executives on major IT initiatives and IT
technical matters proposed for use in HA.

In addition, the Committee assessed the IT risks in 2017 in conjunction with
planned mitigation actions, and deliberated on the agenda forecast for
2017-18.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted
self-assessment exercise to review its activities in the past year, having regard
to its Terms of Reference, for continuous improvement.
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Main Tender Board

HREBBEEES

Membership List
RERE
Chairman

xE
Vice-Chairmen
EES:

Ex-officio members
ERARE

Members

K&

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP
TEfR IR

Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS (up to 27.4.2016)
BREa s (B2 2016 F4 A 27 H)

Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS (from 28.4.2016)
MBS A (2016 64 F 28 HiE)

Mr Lincoln TSO Lai

BBk s

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive

(or his nominated representative)

RRERE TTHAEHR

(TR A S HZFAEK)

Ms Clara CHIN Sheung-chi, Director (Finance)

(or her nominated representative)

SNt e

(B BHEEE R AT ERE)

Two of the following rotating members:
UTHARUBERS :

Dr Andrew CHAN Ping-chiu, BBS (from 28.4.2016)
BRI (12016 4 A 28 A #E)

Prof Edwin CHAN Hon-wan (from 28.4.2016)
BRZEEHRE (2016 6F4 F28 HiE)

Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, JP

PRER Sn %

Mr CHAN How-chi, MH (from 28.4.2016)
PREZEA (FH20164F 4 528 A#E)

Ms Anita CHENG Wai-ching

B H 2+

Mr CHENG Yan-kee, BBS, JP (from 28.4.2016)
BEE A (2016 4 H 28 HiE)

Mr Stanley CHEUNG Tak-kwai (from 28.4.2016)
REELLE (H2016F4 528 HAE)

Ms CHIANG Lai-yuen, JP

LES Y ih e

Ms Quince CHONG Wai-yan, JP (up to 30.11.2016)
HERZLE (FE20164F 11 A30H)

Mr Andrew FUNG Hau-chung, BBS, JP
RBERLE

Mr HO Wing-yin

kB %

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi (from 15.12.2016)
BEG Rzt (2016 F 12 A 15 HAE)
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Terms of Reference
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Prof Joseph KWAN Kai-cho (from 28.4.2016)
RAMEIEZUR (H 2016 4 A 28 A #E)

Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP (from 7.12.2016)
WREEE (20164 12 A7 A#E)

Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP (from 15.12.2016)
B izt (2016 F 12 A 15 H#E)

Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin

ZHRELE

Mr Peter LEE Kwok-wah (from 28.4.2016)
TEELRLE (H2016F 4 F28 A#E)

Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP

BT HHE

Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS, JP

PACKEE e

Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS (from 28.4.2016)
KL (2016 F 4 28 A#E)

Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, SBS, JP

Mr LO Chung-hing, SBS (from 28.4.2016)
EEELE (2016 F4 A28 HiE)

Ir Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok, SBS, MH, JP
EEREL

Mr Wilson MOK Yu-sang (from 28.4.2016)
EWMAERE (FH20164F 4 F28 A#E)

Dr PANG Yiu-kai, GBS, JP

TREET

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP (up to 30.11.2016)
TAEERLE (RIZ20164F 11 A30H)

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, BBS, JP

B S

Mr David YAU Po-wing (from 28.4.2016)
WBE L (12016464 A28 Hi#E)

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong

BEoRERAE

iEaEE

To consider and approve tenders and contract variations in the (1)
Hospital Authority in accordance with the delegation of authority

limits approved by the Board, including:

(@) To review and assess the recommendations made by the

(b)
(@]

assessment panel;

To review the procedures and criteria adopted by the assessment
panel in the course of its selection;

To approve the selection made by the assessment panel after
satisfying itself that (a) and (b) are in order and such approval
should be final.

To receive management reporting of acceptance of offer approved (2)
in the Head Office by a Director in exercising Special Authority for
Urgent Direct Purchase.
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Note: Under the prevailing Hospital Authority Procurement and Materials
Management Manual approved by the Board, the schedule of
authority limits in respect of the Main Tender Board includes approval
of tender exceeding $1.5 million centrally coordinated by Hospital
Authority Head Office, or exceeding $4.5 million for those arranged
by the clusters / hospitals.

Focus of Work in 2016-17

The Main Tender Board (MTB) is organised into two Tender Boards each
meeting once a month, with MTB(1) focusing on mainly tenders for
pharmaceutical products and medical consumables; and MTB(2) on tenders
of other subjects (e.g. major equipment, contract services, consultancies
etc.). In 2016-17, MTB considered some 600 papers on procurement of
supplies and services with value of over $1.5 million for HA Head Office,
and above $4.5 million for clusters and hospitals. Tenders for procurement
of supplies mainly covered purchases of pharmaceutical products, medical
and laboratory equipment and their consumables, whereas service
tenders were mainly related to hospital domestic and supporting services,
maintenance of medical and laboratory equipment, and information
technology systems and maintenance services. Capital works tenders were
mainly concerned with hospital redevelopment projects and minor works
improvements for maintenance of hospital premises.

In April 2016, the Board approved to co-opt the following two groups as
additional Members to MTB to further strengthen the independence and
transparency of its work:

(a) a Cluster Tender Board Member from each cluster who is also a
Member of Hospital Governing Committee ; and
(b)  existing co-opted Members of SSDC.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted
self-assessment exercise to review its activities in the past year, having regard
to its Terms of Reference, for continuous improvement.
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Medical Services Development Committee
BEERREEREES
Membership List
MERE
Chairman Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP
E5 IR
Vice-Chairman Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP
eSS TR
Members Dr Constance CHAN Hon-yee, JP
54= Director of Health
PREEER A
HEEER
Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS
BRE L
Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, JP
PRER ek
Mr HO Wing-yin
kB 4E
Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS
HiExigL

Ms Esther LEUNG Yuet-yin, JP (up to 22.9.2016) / Ms Carol YUEN Siu-wai, JP (from 7.10.2016) /
Miss Bella MUI Bun-ngar

(representing the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury)
RIRE L+ (BE 2016 F9H22H) | =R/NBR L (H2016F 10 A7 HAE) | BmIER L
(KRR EBREBBBR)

Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS, JP

P EFHIR

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive

PEBR AL THAH

Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, SBS, JP

Mr Patrick NIP Tak-kuen, JP (from 6.7.2016)

Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health)
RIS E (2016 F7 A6 HAE)

RYREEBETWER (FE)

Dr PANG Yiu-kai, GBS, JP

TRERT

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong

BEokESLA

Mr Richard YUEN Ming-fai, GBS, JP (up to 5.7.2016)

Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health)

REBIAE (BIE2016F7H5H)

RYRELEBETWER (FE)
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Terms of Reference

1. Examine, review and make recommendations on the changing needs
of the community in respect of clinical services provided by public
hospitals and institutions;

2. Advise and make recommendations on the overall policies, directions
and strategies relating to the provision, planning and development
of the public hospitals and related services, having regard to the
availability of technology, staff and other resources and the need
to provide a patient-centred, outcome-focused quality healthcare
service by a knowledge-based organisation;

3. Consider and make recommendations on the overall priorities
for the planning and development of the public hospitals and
related services in order to ensure an optimal utilisation of available
resources;

4, Consider, review and make recommendations on any other matters
related to the planning and development of the public hospitals and
related services;

5. Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and
risk mitigation relevant to medical services development; and
6. Exercise powers delegated by the Board on the following matters:

(@) approve the scope of coverage of the Samaritan Fund, on
the recommendation of the Management Committee of the
Samaritan Fund,

(b) approve the scope of coverage of the Hospital Authority Public-
Private Partnership Fund, on the recommendation of the
Management Committee for the Hospital Authority Public-
Private Partnership (PPP) Fund and Clinical PPP Programmes; and

(0 approve clinical service plans on specialty services and
redevelopment projects, except those involving decisions on
financial provisions.

Focus of Work in 2016-17

In 2016-17, the Committee met seven times to discuss issues relating to
the planning, development and management of clinical services. In support
of the corporate strategy and planned future service directions of HA,
the Committee discussed and considered the respective clinical services
plans for the Kowloon Central Cluster (KCC) and the New Territories West
Cluster as well as the strategic framework for rehabilitation services and
palliative care. It also considered the re-delineation of cluster boundary for
KCC and Kowloon West Cluster and the capacity-demand gap analysis
for various clusters. Further, the Committee discussed the development
of the Integrated Chinese-Western Medicine pilot programme; mental
health service development for adults; service enhancement for students
with mental health need; community care for dementia patients; and the
development on the refined population-based resources allocation model.
The Committee was also briefed on the setting up of a mechanism for
introduction of highly specialised services, primary percutaneous coronary
intervention service development; planning of cardiac catheterization
laboratory service; and the HA Colon Assessment PPP Programme. Besides,
the Committee received briefings on progress report on the development
of the Hong Kong Children’s Hospital and HA's involvement in supporting a
large-scale residential care home for elderly being developed in Lam Tei.
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The Committee considered and advised on a wide range of clinical
management issues. Enhancing clinical risk management and clinical
governance as well as implementing continuous quality improvement
systems were high on the agendas of the Committee. The Committee
considered various matters relating to patient safety and risk management,
including credentialing and defining scope of practice in HA; hospital
accreditation; patient service and care risks and the proposed risk reduction
plans; and enhancement on safety and quality services. In response to the
recommendations of HA Review on service provision as well as quality
and safety, the Committee considered proposals and regular reports on
individual action items, including management of access block problem;
waiting time of specialist out-patient clinic and accident and emergency
service; and efficiency of operating theatre utilisation. The Committee
also discussed on winter surge preparation; and clinical service key
performance indicators development and monitoring. It was also briefed
on the introduction of new drugs and indications to be covered by the
Samaritan Fund from 2016-17; disability allowance review; and service plan
on patient experience and satisfaction survey. It also noted the evaluation
of Risk Assessment and Management Programme for diabetes mellitus and
hypertension patients in general out-patient clinics.

The Committee received progress reports of various clinical programmes,
including the Service Management Report of the Chinese Medicine Centres
for Training and Research; HA Patient Experience and Satisfaction Survey on
Inpatient Service; and the various clinical PPP programmes. The Committee
also noted the governance structure for the HA PPP Fund.

In August 2016, the Committee revised its Terms of Reference (TOR) for
including matters relating to the approval of the scope of coverage of HA
PPP Fund into its scope.

In addition, the Committee assessed the risks relating to clinical services in
2017 in conjunction with planned mitigation actions, and deliberated on
the agenda forecast for 2017-18.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted self-
assessment exercise to review its activities in the past year, having regard to
its Terms of Reference, for continuous improvement.
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Public Complaints Committee
NRRFEES

Membership List

RERE

Chairman Mr Ricky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP* (up to 30.11.2016)

xE IREFE S (B2 2016 F 11 A30H)
Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang, BBS (from 1.12.2016)
MEEE A (2016 F 12 A 1 H#E)

Vice-Chairman Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, SBS, JP*

e REBRE

Members Dr Jane CHAN Chun-kwong

RE PRENEEAE

Mr Raymond CHAN Kwan-tak (from 1.12.2016)
BREES 4 (20164 128 1 B#E)

Ms Christine Barbara CHAN So-han, BBS
PR=IRZ T

Mr CHAN Wing-kai
BRAKESEAE

Dr Jinghan CHEN (up to 30.11.2016)
PREFHIE L (B=20164F 11 A30H)

Ms Peggy CHING Pui-ki

PRI 2+

Mr CHOI Chi-sum

Rev Dr Andrew CHOI Chung-ho
ELRARAD

Mr HO Sau-him

DS ¥t

Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP
FFRERSE A

Mr Samuel HUI Kwok-ting

FFBIE S A4

Mr Joe KWOK Jing-keung, SBS, FSDSM
FamoR LA

Mr KWOK Leung-ming, SBS, CSDSM
AR A

Mr Alex LAM Chi-yau

MAER S E

Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP (from 15.12.2016)
Bl &+ (2016 4 12 A 15 A#E)
Dr Robert LAW Chi-lim*

EBREAT

Dr Agnes LAW Koon-chui, JP
EEREL
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Mr Peter LEE Shung-tak, BBS, JP
E (S
Ms Maggie LEUNG Yee-mei
P ) EeGn
Ms Manbo MAN Bo-lin, MH
MIRE R+
Mr Simon MOK Sai-man, MH
BSR4

Mr TSE Man-shing, BBS, JP (from 1.12.2016)
HEBAELE (2016 F 1241 HAE)
Prof WAN Chin-chin (up to 30.11.2016)
FEREERE (HZ 2016411 A30H)
Mr Paul WU Wai-keung

tAfESR A

Ms Lina YAN Hau-yee, MH, JP*
BRIt

Ms Agnes Garman YEH

BEETLt

Ms Lisa YIP Sau-wah, JP*

BRELL

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong

BokEELE

* Panel Chairman

NEER

Terms of Reference
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The Public Complaints Committee (PCC) is the final complaint

redress and appeal body of the Hospital Authority (“HA").

The PCC shall independently :

(@) consider and decide upon complaints from members of the
public who are dissatisfied with the response of the HA /
hospital to which they have initially directed their complaints;

(b) monitor HA's handling of complaints.

Pursuant to Para 2 above, the PCC shall independently advise

and monitor the HA on the PCC’'s recommendations and their

implementation.

In handling complaint cases, the PCC shall follow the PCC Complaint

Handling Guidelines (Annex) which may be amended from time to

time.

The PCC shall from time to time and at least once a year, make

reports to the HA Board and public, including statistics or raising

important issues where applicable.
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Annex

Guidelines on the handling of complaint cases in the Public Complaints

Committee (“the PCC")

1. The PCC is an appeal body within the Hospital Authority (“the HA")
to consider appeals made by the public relating to its services. Based
on its Terms of Reference, the following are guidelines set by the
PCC to facilitate the handling of complaints.

2. The PCC shall not normally handle a complaint:

(@) if the complaint relates to services provided by the HA more
than 2 years before the date of the lodging of the complaint,
unless the PCC is satisfied that in the particular circumstances
it is proper to conduct an investigation into such complaint not
made within that period;

(b) if the complaint is made anonymously and / or the complainant
cannot be identified or traced;

(o) if the complainant has failed to obtain the proper consent of the
patient, to whom the services were provided, in the lodging of
the complaint (this restriction will not be applicable if the patient
has died or is for any reason unable to act for himself or herself);

(d) if the subject matter of the complaint has been referred to or is
being considered by the coroner;

(e) if the complaint relates to a matter for which a specific statutory
complaint procedure exists;

() if the complainant or the patient concerned has instituted legal
proceedings, or has indicated that he / she will institute legal
proceedings, against the HA, the hospital or any persons who
provided the services (in any event, the Committee shall not
entertain any request for compensation);

(9) if the complaint relates to dispute over the established policies
of HA, for example fees charging policy of the HA in respect of
its services;

(h) if the complaint relates to an assessment made by a medical
staff pursuant to any statutory scheme whereas such scheme
provides for a channel of appeal, for example, the granting of
sick leave under the provisions of the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance, Cap. 282;

(i) if the complaint relates to personnel matters or contractual
matters and commercial matters;

() if the PCC considers that the complaint is frivolous or vexatious
or is not made in good faith; or

(k) if the complaint, or a complaint of a substantially similar nature,
has previously been the subject matter of a complaint which
had been decided upon by the PCC.

3. Taking into account the following:

a) the disclosure of legal privileged documents in an open hearing;

b) the disclosure of personal data in an open hearing;

) the PCC is not a judicial or quasi-judicial body;

d) an aggrieved party has other channels to seek redress; and

e) the PCC should not duplicate the functions of other institutions
such as the courts or the Medical Council;

the PCC considers that its meetings shall not be open to the public.
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4. In considering the merits of a complaint, the PCC may from time to
time obtain expert opinion by medical professionals or other experts
relating to the subject matter of the complaint. If the PCC considers
appropriate, it may also invite the complainant, the patient, the
medical staffs or any other relevant persons to attend an interview.

(The above Guidelines on the handling of complaint cases may be amended

from time to time as appropriate.)

Focus of work in 2016-17:

In 2016-17, the Public Complaints Committee held 19 meetings and
handled a total of 302 cases relating to medical services, administrative
procedure, staff attitude, etc. In addition to the handling of appeal cases,
the Committee also advised on complaint handling policies to improve the
efficiency and effectiveness of the Authority’s complaints system, and make
recommendations for system change and improvement of healthcare services.
Regular internal and external communication programmes were conducted
to enhance the transparency and credibility of the Authority’s complaints
system and the Committee as the final appeal body. Through its Secretariat,
the Committee also shared important lessons learned for risk management,
and enhanced the complaint handling skills of frontline staff through regular
specialist complaint management training including applied mediation skills
training.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted
self-assessment exercise to review its activities in the past year, having regard
to its Terms of Reference, for continuous improvement.
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Staff Appeals Committee
BELREES

Membership List

RERE
Chairman Mr Lawrence LEE Kam-hung, BBS, JP
Members Ms Quince CHONG Wai-yan, JP (up to 31.10.2016)
4= HEELL (BE2016410H31H)
Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong (from 1.11.2016)
BEoREEA (20164 11 A1 HAE)
Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP
RBREE
Terms of Reference RigsE

1. To consider and decide upon appeals from staff members who have 1. Bt ZFEBIEFRNIRERERHFM XD E

raised a grievance through the normal internal complaint channels FRENEE FRFER - ETEZELRE °
and who wish to appeal against the decision made.
2. The Committee shall: 2. %ZBgA
(@) consider whether the appeal cases need further investigation by (a) BRLFEREESFTHEREASFEE—
the management; FHE

©J

(b) direct the appeal cases to be investigated; ¥ FFERETAS
(©) have access to all the relevant information required from the MEBEABRGHBEEBER  LAEME
management for making a decision; HIRTE

—~
@)
N

(d) ensure that appropriate action is taken; and (d) BWREEBIEENTE &
(e) reply to the appellant. (e) EITELEFA -
3. The Committee’s decision shall represent the Hospital Authority's 3. ZEEMATEIABREER(BER) &
decision and shall be final. FORTE ©
4. The Committee shall make annual reports to the Hospital Authority 4. ZEGEFFRBERARERRE
Board.
Focus of Work in 2016-17 2016-17 £ E TEHR

The Committee is tasked to consider and decide on appeals from staff ZEEMREEREEBEERMENRNIRBIE
members who have raised a grievance and appeal through the normal HjEEEJ?TEiTﬁﬁW/?%EE’JH%E\J:DWI? HETTER R
internal complaint channels established in HA and who wish to make — RRTE - ZE@EVATIAEE BHRERATE - &
further appeal against the decision made. The Committee’s decision ~ EEMKXEERFIIFEEE BAIBE -

shall represent HA's decision and shall be final. The membership of the

Committee comprises individuals who are not staff members of HA.

In 2016-17, the Committee received three staff appeal cases in total. One E2016 17TEE ZESHKI=FRBE LFHE
of the three cases was referred back to the respective cluster management AR —RERENIEF AL KRE EQ*%E?EEE"]
to follow up as the complainant had not yet exhausted the normal staff ﬁkﬁ&.ﬁ RIBEL ARG - AL ER R BRMAE
complaint channels in HA. For the other two cases, the Committee found — [EIR¥# o ER\H%WTTIK ZEERATL J?/\
that the appellants had fully presented their cases, and the management  EERMEMER - BEENEREBEEZEFED
had followed due process in the course of investigation. A o
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In considering the appeal cases, the Committee had reviewed all the ZE&EEZ CHERE - BRI AE HEE R
relevant information and, where appropriate, solicited additional 71 ' INERFIERAE EEEEXZIRERE A
information from the concerned management team on HA prevailing ~ BEERRTBER RIGHEHNMITELR - ZE K
policies and practices related to the appeal cases. The Committee  BABFAERE - RAEBIEAB AR ERMIE
considered the detailed information and came to the view that the  HI#&®ITE FIEE - ZESEERERNBIZF T
conclusions reached earlier by the management were justified. In ~ BEI—LEFSEEABEE—TRINER - U1
the process of the review, the Committee had also identified certain ~ EREEABEZEHBRMSNEZ - AHIERE -
areas which might warrant further consideration by the management.

Observations and recommendations of the Committee were conveyed

to the management team for follow-up.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted  REHRRIFEEER  TEFHETT BHZ R

self-assessment exercise to review its activities in the past year, having — BREBESERBE —FHITHE - TESE -
regard to its Terms of Reference, for continuous improvement.
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Supporting Services Development Committee
XERBERESS

Membership List
REEE

Chairman

EE

Vice-Chairman
eSS
Members

o4

Ms Winnie NG, JP (up to 30.11.2016)
R+ (B ZE20164F 11 A30H)

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS JP (from 1.12.2016)
THBAAE (B 2016 4F 12 A 1 HAE)

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS JP (up to 30.11.2016)
THEEAL (BZE 2016411 A30H)

Dr Andrew CHAN Ping-chiu, BBS

FRIREIE LT

Prof Edwin CHAN Hon-wan

PRIZZEHIR

Mr CHENG Yan-kee, BBS, JP

BEES A

Ms CHIANG Lai-yuen, JP

BRmat

Mr Lester Garson HUANG, JP

ERALE

Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS

Higxst

Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP (from 7.12.2016)
WRIEEA (1 2016 F 12 A7 H#E)

Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP (from 15.12.2016)
B3t + (2016 F 12 F 15 H#E)

Mr Peter LEE Kwok-wah

FTRERE

Miss Linda LEUNG

(representing the Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health))
RERBTT

(RERYRFERZTWER (F4£))

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
PIEBR L TTHES

Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS

BRI

Ir Dr LO Wai-kwok, SBS, MH, JP

EEREL

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong

BEoREELE
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Terms of Reference

1. Advise on the directions and policies related to the development
of Business Support Services and Environmental Protection to best
support clinical services delivery in the Hospital Authority;

2. Review and monitor the annual capital expenditure plan approved
by the Hospital Authority Board;

3. Review and advise on the implementation and monitoring of Capital
Works Projects in the Hospital Authority;

4. Review and advise on the new initiatives in Business Support Services

such as improvements in supply chain management, equipment
management, strategic outsourcing and public-private-partnership
of non-core functions, and the development of supporting services
for revenue generation;

5. Advise on the adoption of better practices and industry innovations
related to the planning and delivery of Business Support Services and
implementation of Capital Works Projects in the Hospital Authority;
and

6. Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and
risk mitigation relevant to business support services and capital
expenditure projects and other areas under the purview of the
Committee.

Focus of Work in 2016-17

In 2016-17, the Committee met four times to advise on directions and
policies related to the development of business support services and
capital planning to support clinical service delivery in HA. It endorsed
the revised procurement policy and contract management of drugs in
HA to tie in with the Pharmaceutical Inspection Co-operation Scheme
(PIC/S) Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP) requirements for products
registration in Hong Kong. It examined the risks on HA's capacity in
business supporting services and the proposed contingency plans as a
result of the suspension of the construction of Tin Shui Wai Supporting
Services Centre. It reviewed reports on hospital security services, the
Non-emergency Ambulance Transfer Service (NEATS), the enhanced
quality control in hospital laundry service and the progress of the
enhancement of Central Coordinated Refill Services in clusters. The
Committee received reports on the implementation of HA's Enterprise
Asset Management system; and the contracts with price adjustment
approved via Authorise and Direct granted by the Main Tender Board.
It also discussed the provision of maintenance service for medical
equipment; and followed through the replacement of equipment in
2016-17 and the plan for up to 2019-20. The Committee also revisited
the key operational risks in relation to business support services,
pharmaceutical supplies and capital planning.
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The Committee endorsed the formulation of the annual capital
expenditure plan for both major capital works projects and the one-off
grant for minor works projects, and considered regular reports on the
progress of major capital works projects. It noted the implementation
progress of projects under the Ten-year Hospital Development Plan
which involved the earmarked government funding of $200 billion. The
Committee examined the provision of hospital engineering services by
the Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund and commented on
the approach of future tendering exercise. It reviewed reports on the
electric vehicle charging facilities in HA, and the pilot study in reducing
impacts of electricity supply voltage dip on hospital engineering
equipment. The Committee considered and supported taking legal
action against an illegal structure in Castle Peak Hospital boundary.
It also reviewed the regular progress reports from the Capital Works
Subcommittee which was established under the Committee to oversee
and advise on capital works / project related items.

In addition, the Committee assessed the risks relating to business
support services and capital planning in 2017 in conjunction with
planned mitigation actions, and deliberated on the agenda forecast for
2017-18.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted
self-assessment exercise to review its activities in the past year, having
regard to its Terms of Reference, for continuous improvement.
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Membership of Hospital Governing Committees
BhiEREEEKE

Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital
T KA1l AT = &b

Chairman Dr Pamela LEUNG Ming-kuen, JP

£ IR

Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

ERKE B g2 RITRAERS R K
Hospital Chief Executive
BEb T ARES

Members Mr Derek CHAN Man-foon

RE R ERE
Bishop Rev Ben CHANG Chun-wa
RIREEEE
Mr CHEUNG Wing-fai, MH
SRERIESE A

Ms Michelle CHOW Yan-wai
BBEELZ L

Mr Richard FUNG Lap-chung
iVt

Ms KO Sui-fun

mins Lt

Prof Simon KWAN Shui-man

A SR

Mr Michael LAl Kam-cheung, BBS, MH, JP
FEERIE S

Mr Roger LEE Chee-wah

Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH
TR AE

Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok, SBS, MH, JP
EEEEL

Mr Wilson MOK Yu-sang

Rev PO Kam-cheong

SHER S D

Mr SIU Sau-ching

REEEE

Rt Rev Dr Thomas SOO Yee-po, JP
BRATREH

Mr Herman TSOI Hak-chiu
BERRREE

Ms Peggy WONG Pik-kiu, BBS, MH, JP

BEBRLE
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Bradbury Hospice
AEEEERL

Chairman Dr Joseph LEE Man-ho
& ENFEE
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE B g2 RITRAERS R K
Hospital Chief Executive
BEP T AAES
Members Dr Hubert CHAN Chung-yee, JP
ME PREZRET
Dr Amy CHOW Yin-man
EEE L
Dr David KAN Kam-fai
SR IEEs &
Dr Joey TANG Chung-yee
B S L
Dr Vincent TSE Kin-chuen
R
Prof Thomas WONG Kwok-shing, JP
TE BB
Mr Paul WU Wai-keung
AR E

Ms Nora YAU Ho-chun, MH, JP
AL+
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Caritas Medical Centre

B EERe

Chairman

EE

Ex-officio members
EARKE

Members

K&

164

Prof David CHEUNG Lik-ching

3R ) IEHH%

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl IR RITHARSEREK

Hospital Chief Executive

BEP T AREs

Dr Wallace CHAN Chi-ho

RE=EL

Mr CHAN Wai-ming, MH, JP
FRIZBASEAE

Dr Denis CHANG Khen-lee, JP
SRIERH L

Mr Augustine CHOI Chi-wa, BBS

Mr CHOW Yick-hay, BBS, JP

JAZEF e

Dr Daniel FANG Tak-sang

Pakitant- Laxl

Prof Frederick HO Wing-huen, SBS
ARG HR

Dr Vincent LEUNG Tze-ching

RTIEE

Mr Anthony WONG Luen-kin, JP
HEESE A

Mr Charles YANG Chuen-liang, BBS, JP
HE=EE

The Most Rev Michael YEUNG Ming-cheung
HIREEH

Rev Joseph YIM Tak-lung
BB R
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Castle Peak Hospital & Siu Lam Hospital
B IR R /MEERR

Chairman

iy

Ex-officio members
EARE

Members

K&

Mr CHAN Bing-woon, SBS, JP
BRIAMRSEE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
B g2 RITRAERS R K
Hospital Chief Executive

BEP T AAES

Mr CHAN How-chi, MH
PRER S E

Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin
FRESE

Dr Raymond MA Siu-wing, MH
HEIRERERE

Mr Edward PONG Chong, BBS, JP
RERIEAE

Prof SHAM Pak-chung, JP
RIZEACH 65

Mr TSANG Hin-hong

BERILE

Ms Deborah WAN Lai-yau, BBS, JP
BERZ L

Dr Jimmy WONG Chi-ho, SBS, JP
TH=84E

Prof Thomas WONG Kwok-shing, JP
paEiln e e
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Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok
EHMARKEER

Chairman Dr Albert WONG Chi-chiu
& FEEIEE
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE Bl IR RITHARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEP T AREs
Members Mr Raymond CHAN Kwan-tak
ME BREBSE
Mrs Shelley M CHOW
AEELt
Ms Betty KO Lan-fun
Sk e
Dr Bernard KONG Ming-hei
JLRREREE A
Mr Peter LI Lan-yiu
Dr Leonard LI Sheung-wai
FERELE
Ms Janice MORTON
Ry fet
Dr Paul YOUNG Tze-kong, JP
BFRIEL
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Cheshire Home, Shatin
DHEZEKEER

Chairman Mrs Linda WONG LEUNG Kit-wah
EE FRZEL+
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE Bl BIE RITHARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEP T AAES
Members Mrs Shelley M CHOW
ME BAERELL
Ms Janet LAl Keng-chok
R+
Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP
FF I
Dr Edward LEUNG Man-fuk
RERBEE
Dr Pamela LEUNG Ming-kuen, JP
2R
Mr Paul MAK Chun-nam
HHEMEE
Ms Janice MORTON
Ry fet
Mr NG Hang-sau, MH
mBEEE
Mr Alfred POON Sun-biu
ERTIR S
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Grantham Hospital

EEAER

Chairman

EE

Ex-officio members
EARKE

Members

K&

168

Mr Steve LAN Yee-fong
EXRFEE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl IR RITHARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEP T AREs

Dr CHENG Chun-ho
iy e

Mr Raymond CHOW Wai-kam, JP
EfEREE

Mr Edward HO Man-tat
oI A

Prof Peggy LAM, GBS, JP
MEERHIR

Prof Karen LAM Siu-ling
NS HIR

Dr Carl LEUNG Ka-kui

Mr William LEUNG Shu-yin
BB S

Dr Vitus LEUNG Wing-hang, JP
xR E LT

Prof LO Chung-mau, BBS, JP

Mr MA Ching-nam, JP
BBt

Mrs Purviz Rusy SHROFF

Prof Sydney TANG Chi-wai
BB

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP
BRI

Mr Rocco YIM Sen-kee, BBS, JP
BOAAFTAE
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Haven of Hope Hospital

== B Eg >
ZEEENR

Chairman

iy

Ex-officio members
EARE

Members

K&

Prof Joseph KWAN Kai-cho
AR 2R

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
B g2 RITRAERS R K
Hospital Chief Executive

BEP T AAES

Mr Jonathan CHAN Pok-chi
PRI o

Mr CHAU Kwok-woon
BRI ST A

Mr Francis CHAU Yin-ming, BBS, MH
ABRLE

Mr Stuart CHEN Seng-tek
BRAG L

Mr Charles CHIU Chung-yee
Ms Clara CHONG Ming-wah
SERZEL £

Dr HO Wai-ip

fAfEsEE

Dr LAM Ching-choi, BBS, JP
MIERT B8 &

Dr Andrew LUK Leung
PEsmiE 4
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Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital
BEHAER

Chairman Mr Keith LAM Hon-keung, JP
EE WEBRELT
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE Bl IR RITHARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEP T AREs
Members Mr HO Tak-sum, MH
ME fAEUEL
Mr LAl Sze-nuen, SBS, JP
REFEELT
Mr Anthony LAM Chi-tat
MEERLT
Mr Stephen LAM Wai-hung
MERTE
Ms May LAU Mei-mui
BIxgL L
Mr LEE Ka-cheung
FRERL
Dr POON Tak-lun, JP
B
Mr SHUM Man-to, SBS
ILXFREE
Ven SIK Chi-wai, SBS
b 2= 7N
Ven SIK Hin-hung
T2 ARD
Ven SIK Hong-ming
TERBRERD
Ven SIK Ku-tay
BREER
Ven SIK Kuan-yun
@A
Ven SIK To-ping
BE R
Ven SIK Yin-chi
EZERD
Ms WAN Yee-ling
AR EL
Dr WONG Kam-chiu, MH
IR T
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Hong Kong Eye Hospital & Kowloon Hospital
BERRMER R NERER

Chairman Mr LO Chung-hing, SBS
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE Bl BIE RITHARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEP T AAES
Members Dr Ina CHAN Un-chan, BBS
ME BRIIZ 1S+
Dr Connie CHAN CHENG Yuk-yee, MH
PRES F M i+
Mrs Sheilah CHENG CHATJAVAL
PREBILES 22+
Dr Charles CHEUNG Wai-bun, JP
SREWEL
Mr Ricky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP
ISEAE A
Ms Mavis LEE Ming-pui
Mzt
Dr LEUNG Kin-ping
RETHEL
Prof Julia TAO LAl Po-wah
FEZRE I
Dr WONG Yee-him
EIARE &
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HK Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service
BRA T FEH RSO

Chairman Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, BBS, JP

& oK RE

Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

ERRE B g2 RITRA RS H R K
Hospital Chief Executive
BEP T AREs

Members Dr HO Chung-ping, MH, JP

ME fa{p S B& A
Mr Ambrose HO Pui-him, SBS, JP
CINE Sivtaa
Ms Ada LAM Wai-ming
MERLZ L

Prof LI Chi-kong, JP

Mrs Patricia LING WOO Sau-ha, MH, JP
MEAFE 2+

Ms Clara SHEK Ka-lai

ARBEXT

Ms Bonnie SO Yuen-han

BRI 2+

Mrs Irene YAU LEE Che-yun, JP
EEBRZL

Mr Jimmy YUEN Hon-wing
REREE
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Kwai Chung Hospital & Princess Margaret Hospital

EFBRERERE

Chairman

iy

Ex-officio members
EARE

Members
ME

B

Ms Quince CHONG Wai-yan, JP
HEEZLT

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
B g2 RITRAERS R K
Hospital Chief Executive

BEP T AAES

Prof Chetwyn CHAN Che-hin

PR S SR

Mr Stanley CHEUNG Tak-kwai
REESLE

Ms Janet HUI Lai-wah

FTEER L

Prof Joseph KWAN Kai-cho
RAHEIEZUX

Mrs Nina LAM LEE Yuen-bing, MH
MEEBIK L

Mr Stephen LIU Wing-ting, JP

Dr Peter TSOI Ting-kwok, JP
ZEEE

Mr William WONG Kuen-wai, BBS, MH
EIERSTE

Mr WONG Yiu-chung, MH
HIRIRLE

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai

iz vt
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Kwong Wah Hospital & Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital
BEERRRE=[REALER

Chairman Mrs Katherine MA, BBS
& BRRE L
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE Bl IR RITHARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEP T AREs
Members Dr Ina CHAN Un-chan, BBS
ME FRImISIE+
Mrs Viola CHAN MAN Yee-wai, BBS
BRX fmE L+
Mr Charles CHANG Juo-hwa, BBS
RIS E
Mr CHOW Chun-fai, BBS, JP
IR E
Dr CHU Chor-lup
KRYISLE
Ms Maisy HO, BBS
e+
Dr LEE Yuk-lun, JP
FEME LT
Ms Imma LING Kit-sum
BRI
Miss Ginny MAN Wing-yee
SCREMRME
Mr Albert SU Yau-on
BRh B
Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS
S v
Mr Sunny TAN
BRAEESEAE
Ms Wendy TSANG Wan-man
EEEL T
Dr Ken TSOI Wing-sing
BB
Mr Vinci WONG
FEBFHEE
Mr Stephen YUEN Kwok-keung, MH
RER A
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MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre

HIPEEERER

Chairman

iy

Ex-officio members
EARE

Members

K&

Dr Eric CHIEN Ping

ETEL

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
B g2 RITRAERS R K
Hospital Chief Executive

BEP T AAES

Prof Chetwyn CHAN Che-hin

PR S SR

Mr Calvin CHAN Man-yin

PR EFRHE

Mr Vincent CHENG Wing-ming

LIPS 2

Prof Kenneth CHEUNG Man-chee
SR HIK

Mr Benny CHEUNG Wai-leung, BBS
RERELE

Dr Edith MOK KWAN Ngan-hing, MH
SRS

Mr Sammy NG Wai-tong

REEZESESE

Mr Peter POON King-kong
B

Mr Adrian WONG Koon-man, BBS, MH, JP
EpiR & v

Mr David YAU Po-wing

B REE

Mr YU See-ho

RETGF SR
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North District Hospital

TtEER

Chairman

el

Ex-officio members
EARKE

Members

K&

176

Ms CHIANG Lai-yuen, JP
BT

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl IR RITHARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEP T AREs

Mr DENG Kai-rong, MH, JP
Gl E bt

Ms Stella FUNG Siu-wan
OB+

Dr Raymond HO Shu-kwong
falf e iE £

Mr HO Wing-yin

kB LA

Mr HUNG Siu-ling
HAREEE

Mr LIU Sui-biu

EIni

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BEokESAE

Mr Thomas YIU Kei-chung
whadrh A
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North Lantau Hospital

b KU B& B

Chairman

iy

Ex-officio members
EARE

Members
ME

Ms Sandra LEE Suk-yee, GBS, JP
FREZ LT

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl BIE RITHARSEREK

Hospital Chief Executive

BEP T AAES

Mr CHAN How-chi, MH

PRER S E

Ms CHAU Chuen-heung, SBS, MH, JP
BAEELZL

Dr Robert LAW Chi-lim

BHRBE

Ms Elizabeth LAW Kar-shui, MH
=18/ NMA

Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, SBS, JP
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Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital
R
Chairman Mr Lester Garson HUANG, JP
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE B g2 RITRA RS H R K
Hospital Chief Executive
BEP T AREs
Members Mr CHAN Wing-kai
ME BRAKAE ST A&
Dr Gabriel CHOI Kin
ZREREE
Ms CHOW Lai-hing
ARz

Mr John J CLANCEY

Dr Nancy FOK Lai-ling

Dr Lawrence LAl Fook-ming, BBS, JP
FETREAEE A

Mrs Marigold LAU, SBS, JP
ZIREKER L+

Sister Marilu LIMGENCO
MERIER

Ms June LO Hing-yu
BB

Ms Brenda LO Yin-cheung
EIALL

Mr Rex MOK Chung-fai, MH, JP
EPELE

Rev Edward PHILLIPS

Dr Louis SHIH Tai-cho, JP

S ZerH B

Mrs Elizabeth WONG YEUNG Po-wo
=IHEMIZ L

Sister Marya ZABOROWSKI
BREEBL
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Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
RELAEBRABITZER

Chairman

iy

Ex-officio members
EARE

Members

K&

Mr Lawrence LEE Kam-hung, BBS, JP
Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
B g2 RITRAERS R K
Hospital Chief Executive

BEP T AAES

Ms Ophelia CHAN Chiu-ling, BBS
PRE et

Mr Roland CHOW Kun-chee
ERERE

Mr Andrew FUNG Hau-chung, BBS, JP
TEREE

Mr Alex KONG Chack-ho, MH
TLRREE

Ms Ka-shi LAU, BBS

IRt

Mr Peter LEE Kwok-wah

FEELSE

Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH

EETE St

Dr Yvonne LUI Lai-kwan

AEAEL

Mr Wilson MOK Yu-sang
Rt

Rt Rev Dr Thomas SOO Yee-po, JP
BRATREH

Prof TAM Sheung-wai, GBS, JP

B B AR

Mr YEUNG Po-kwan, JP

p=biibita

Dr Dominic YOUNG Ying-nam
B E &=
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Pok Oi Hospital

BEER

Chairman Mrs CHAN LI Lei, MH
*fE fRZ=gE 22+

Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE Bl IR RITHARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEP T AREs
Members Mr Michael CHAN Kee-huen
ME PRAECIE S
Dr CHONG Man-yuk
HxEEE
Mr LAM Kwok-hing, MH, JP
ERESE
Mr LEE Yuk-fat
Mr NG Kam-ching
R\BHFEE
Mr PANG Siu-hin
e it
Mrs Winnie TAM KEUNG May-chu, MH
BEERA
Mr Alan WONG Wai-kai, MH
FEEEE

Ms WONG Wai-ling
mERT LT

Mr Chris YIP Yiu-shing, MH

Mr YUEN Siu-lam
RAOMREE
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Prince of Wales Hospital
R R £ BB

Chairman Ms Winnie NG, JP
xE (it Yis
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE Bl BIE RITHARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEP T AAES
Members Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, JP
ME PR So %
Mr Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, SBS, JP
MBS
Mr Peter LEE Kwok-wah
RS L
Ir Prof Peter MOK Kwok-woo
SRR
Ms Maggie NG Miu-man
h st
Mr SIU Hin-hong
Rt
Dr WONG Kwai-lam
mIEMEL

Prof Richard YU Yue-hong, SBS
RFREHE
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Queen Elizabeth Hospital
FRDEERR

Chairman Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS
*fE HEXE L

Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE Bl IR RITHARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEP T AREs
Members Prof Gladys CHEING Lai-ying
ME EP 75 TR
Ms Yvonne CHUA
S Eho
Ms Maisy HO, BBS
(Ofibotedan
Dr James HWANG Shu-tak, BBS
il e
Mr Chris IP Ngo-tung, JP
Bz EE
Mr Emmanuel KAO Chu-chee
Mr KU Moon-lun
BNt

Mr David MUI Ying-yuen, MH, JP
BEIREE

Mr James YIP Shiu-kwong
Bk E

Dr YU Yuk-ling
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Queen Mary Hospital & Tsan Yuk Hospital
BEEBRNEEER

Chairman Dr PANG Yiu-kai, GBS, JP
EE TREEL
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE B g2 RITRAERS R K
Hospital Chief Executive
BEP T AAES
Members Dr Steven J CANNON
& Bk AiE L
Mr Stephen CHAN Chit-kwai, BBS, JP
PREEE Sk

Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen
BBk sz s

Prof John LEE Chi-kin, JP

TFEHE

Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS, JP
R BRI

Mr Joseph LO Kin-ching

Lol

Ms Catherine YEN Kai-shun
SE

Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP
RERFEE
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Rehabaid Centre
EEERRERHP O

Chairman Ms Kelly CHAN Yuen-sau
EE BRiEF L
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE Bl IR RITHARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEP T AREs
Members Dr Eddie CHOW Siu-lun
ME Ik
Mr Ricky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP
ISERE R
Mrs Kimberley LAM KWONG Lan-heung
MEEER L
Dr Leonard LI Sheung-wai
FEHBE
Ms Imma LING Kit-sum
ERLR L

(The Committee was dissolved on 8 April 2016 upon cessation of HAs management and operation of Rehabaid Centre.)
(BERHA2016F4H8AE  ERIEEERLE [ERIERRERTL | B2 BRERZ S ST B °)
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Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals
EBERHERER

Chairman

x=E

Ex-officio members
EARKE

Members

o4

Dr Vitus LEUNG Wing-hang, JP
ZoxEEL

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
B g2 RITRAERS R K

Hospital Chief Executive

BEP T AAES

Mr Anson LAM Wai-man

MEXSEE

Mr Steve LAN Yee-fong

ERHEE

Prof Hon Joseph LEE Kok-long, SBS, JP
BRI

Mr Edwin LEUNG Chung-ching
RIF -

Dr Carl LEUNG Ka-kui

Dr LIU Ka-ling

B

Mr Norman LO Kam-wah, MH, JP
EIRES A

Mr Terry NG Sze-yuen (from 13.70.2016)
RETTELE (20164 10 5 13 HAE)

Mrs Gloria NG WONG Yee-man, BBS, JP
REMELL
Mr Burji S SHROFF

Mr Neville S SHROFF, JP
JEHER S E

Mr Noshir N SHROFF
Mrs Purviz Rusy SHROFF

Mr SHUM Choi-sang, SBS, JP (passed away on 27.4.2016)
BA R (R2016 F 4 A 27 Hg#tt)

Mr Richard TANG Yat-sun, SBS, JP

B H L&A

Ms Alice WOO Wai-see

REBLZ T
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Bt 8% 4
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Shatin Hospital

W HER

Chairman Mrs Yvonne LAW SHING Mo-han, BBS, JP
£33 BERRIN T

Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE B g2 RITRA RS H R K
Hospital Chief Executive
BEP T AREs
Members Ms Anita CHENG Wai-ching
ME HEHFLL
Mr Jeckle CHIU
BIREE
Mr CHIU Man-leong
B 5L

Dr Andy CHIU Tin-yan
BRIREE

Mr Francis CHU Chan-pui, BBS
KRR EE

Prof Joanne CHUNG Wai-yee
EREHUX

Mr FONG Cheung-fat, JP
ARESLE

Prof LAM Tai-hing, BBS, JP
MR BEHIF

Mr LAU Kim-hung
IR e
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Tai Po Hospital
KR

Chairman

iy

Ex-officio members
EARE

Members

K&

Hospital Authority Annual Report BB EEFER 2016-2017 {

Mr Patrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP
Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
B g2 RITRAERS R K
Hospital Chief Executive

BEP T AAES

Ms Nancy KIT Kwong-chi, JP
BBt

Dr Benny KWONG Kai-sing
EPRRBK B

Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS
RIS

Mr LEUNG Wo-ping, JP

Mr Arthur LI Ka-tat

FRERSE

Mr MAN Chen-fai, BBS, MH
NEBEAE

Ms Gigi PANG Che-kwan
ZIEERLL

Dr YIP Ka-chee

EthEaE

Appendix 4
Bt 8% 4
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The Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital at Sandy Bay
RORBEABRAZRERERR

Chairman Mr Vivian LEE Wai-man
& RMENGEE
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE Bl IR RITHARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEP T AREs
Members Prof Godfrey CHAN Chi-fung
ME PR AR 2
Prof Kenneth CHEUNG Man-chee
RICEHIE
Mr CHEUNG Tat-tong, JP
FRERELE
Mr Renny LIE Ken-jie
FEIR f£E
Mr Gordon Gilbert LOCH Han-van
BEEIE ST
Ms Helen LUl Wai-hing
EEMLZ T
Dr POON Tak-lun, JP
EEAER
Mr Douglas SO Cheung-tak
B Ei s
Dr Barbara TAM Sau-man
R
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Tin Shui Wai Hospital
RKE R

Chairman Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
iy FrEEEEE

Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE B g2 RITRAERS R K
Hospital Chief Executive
BEP T AAES
Members Mr CHOW Wing-kan
ME FEIKE R E
Dr HO Wing-tim, MH
(OEN: e

Dr LAU Chau-ming
BITkEEE L

Mr Philip MA Ching-yeung
SEHEE

Mr Anthony TSANG Hin-fun
BESELE

Mr Thomas WAN Yiu-ming
FRRSEEE

(The Committee was established on 10 June 2016.)
(RKEERERERZE SN 20166 A 10 AL °)
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Tseung Kwan O Hospital

S EREER

Chairman Dr Eliza C H CHAN, SBS, JP
3 BRBEFL
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE B g2 RITRA RS H R K
Hospital Chief Executive
BEP T AREs
Members Mr Tony CHOW Kar-ming
ME ARALE
Mr KAN Shun-ming
RS 54
Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP
FFRHIK
Mr Stephen LIU Wing-ting, JP
Dr Hayles WAI Heung-wah
BRER
Mr WAN Yuet-cheung, BBS, MH, JP
RIS RE
Mr Alan WONG Chi-kong, SBS
Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
FrEEAE

Dr WONG Kwing-keung
e
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Tuen Mun Hospital
Rl 1
Chairman Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS
EE BRE SR
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE B g2 RITRAERS R K

Hospital Chief Executive

BEP T AAES
Members Dr Charles CHAN Kam-kwong
ME PREE Bt

Dr Shirley IP Pui-seung

E Sl

Mr Lothar LEE Hung-sham, BBS, MH

Dr Sam WONG Chun-sing, MH

TIREEL

Ms Lina YAN Hau-yee, MH, JP

BRIt

Mr Boris YEUNG Sau-ming

B AEE

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong

BEoKERE

Prof Richard YUEN Man-fung

B 27654
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Tung Wah Hospital & Tung Wah Eastern Hospital &
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King Hospital
REBRERRERRERRE=[TSZHER

Chairman

EE

Ex-officio members
ERRE

Members
24=1

192

Mrs Katherine MA, BBS

R B+

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
B ERE BT AR SR K
Hospital Chief Executive

BEP T TRARES

Dr Ina CHAN Un-chan, BBS
PRI TE LT

Mrs Viola CHAN MAN Yee-wai, BBS
R+

Mr Charles CHANG Juo-hwa, BBS
SRYEEESE A

Mr Raymond CHOW Wai-kam, JP
AR EE

Ms Maisy HO, BBS

AR+

Mr KWOK Leung-ming, SBS
FBIEAAEE

Mr Henry LAl Hin-wing
FERALR

Dr LEE Yuk-lun, JP

TEBHE LT

Miss Ginny MAN Wing-yee
SCREMA/NME

Ms SIU Ka-yi

#welat

Mr Albert SU Yau-on

BRh R

Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS
MEERTE S

Mr Sunny TAN

BRAEESEAE

Mr TONG Chun-wan

EIRE A

Mr Lincoln TSO Lai

L Ptea

Dr Ken TSOI Wing-sing
BEEET

Mr Vinci WONG
FEFHLEE
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United Christian Hospital

BEABABER

Chairman Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH
FE PRI E
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE B g2 RITRAERS R K
Hospital Chief Executive
BEP T AAES
Members Mr Derek CHAN Man-foon
B R B 4E
Ms Margot CHOW Yan-tse
BB+
Ms Constance CHOY Hok-man
BT+
Mr Paul FAN Chor-ho, SBS, JP
SefE R
Rev FONG Sing-fong
T3 AT HRED
Rev Paul KAN Kei-piu
AR ARED
Rt Rev Dr Timothy KWOK Chi-pei
BEAFEH
Dr LAM Kin-wah, BBS, MH
MEEFL
Mr LAU Chun-chuen
IR RFEE
Mr Marthy LI Chak-kwan
PREESE
Mr Michael LI Man-toa
BREEE
Rev Prof LO Lung-kwong
[E BESLARED
Dr Danny MA Ping-kwan
S ImihEs &
Hon Wilson OR Chong-shing, MH
TAIR% e A4
Rev PO Kam-cheong
SH 57 2 TR
Mr Thomas TSANG Fuk-chuen
BREEE
Ms Nancy TSANG Lan-see, JP
TRt
Mr Herbert TSOI Hak-kong, BBS, JP
it
Mr David WONG Tat-kee
EEH A
Ms Grace WONG Yuen-ling
|t
Rev YUNG Chuen-hung
SEARIRED
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Yan Chai Hospital

- ERR

Chairman Dr Baldwin CHENG Shing-fung, MH
EE IS+
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE B g2 RITRA RS H R K
Hospital Chief Executive
BEP T AREs
Members Mr Sam CHAU Chung-tung
ME MR EE
Mr CHENG Yan-kee, BBS, JP
EREESLE
Mr Clement FUNG Cheuk-nang
ISR
Dr Paul IP Kung-ching
FERIEELT

Mr Jason LEUNG Wai-kwong (from 1.9.2016)
RN (2016 F9 A 1 HAEE)

Mr Peter LO Siu-kit, MH

e

Miss Macy WONG

= )NE

Mr Alfred WONG Wai-kin (resigned on 31.8.2016)
=RREE (R 2016 £ 8 A 31 HEHT)

Mr Vincent WONG Yin-shun

FEMLEE

Mr YAU Kam-ping, BBS, MH

BR8-S 4

Dr Anthony YEUNG Chun-wai

HEEHT

Mrs YIM TSUI Yuk-shan

BREMZ T
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Membership of Regional Advisory Committees
EEBEAZEENE

Hong Kong Regional Advisory Committee
BREREEHERS

Chairman

x=E

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
ME

Ms Anita CHENG Wai-ching
BB E L

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
B g2 RITRAERS R K
Director of Health or his / her representative
BESBERIHNRE

Mr AU Lap-sing, MH

BRIZPK SR

Mr Stephen CHAN Chit-kwai, BBS, JP
BREEE

Dr Peter CHEE Pay-yun (from 23.2.2017)
SMABEE (F2017F2 A23 HAE)
Dr Eric CHIEN Ping

Mr Alan CHOW Ping-kay
BRELLE

Ms Jacqueline CHUNG Ka-man
ERHL

Mr JONG Koon-sang

A e

Mr Steve LAN Yee-fong

ERFEE

Dr LAU Chor-chiu, MH, JP
2SI E

Mr Peter LEE Kwok-wah
FEESLE

Dr Vitus LEUNG Wing-hang, JP
RxREL

Ms LI Chun-chau

PR

Ms Helen LUl Wai-hing

-1k

Mr Lincoln TSO Lai

b

Mr Vinci WONG

FEBHELE

Dr Paul YOUNG Tze-kong, JP
BFRIEL

Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP
RIEERIEE

Prof Richard YUEN Man-fung
627 654

Mr YUNG Chi-ming, BBS, MH
FEAKE

Appendix 5
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Kowloon Regional Advisory Committee
NEEHAAEZES

Chairman Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP
EE FFEHEE
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE B IR RITHRARSERE
Director of Health or his / her representative
BEBERIHRE
Members Mr CHAU Kwok-woon
4= BB
Prof David CHEUNG Lik-ching
R T IEHE
Dr Charles CHEUNG Wai-bun, JP
REWIE T
Ms Margot CHOW Yan-tse
AR+
Mr CHOY Chak-hung
BIEIRSE A
Mr Clement FUNG Cheuk-nang
ISERESEAE
Mr HO Tak-sum, MH
GIEEN =
Mr Chris IP Ngo-tung, JP
Tk
Ms Nixie LAM Lam
0787
Mrs Nina LAM LEE Yuen-bing, MH
MK L
Dr Robert LAW Chi-lim
Mr LEE Wing-man
PR E
Dr LEE Yuk-lun, JP
FEMEL
Mr LO Chiu-kit
SRR E
Mr Rex MOK Chung-fai, MH, JP
i E
Mr PAU Ming-hong
Mr Stanley TAM Lanny, MH
AL
Dr Hayles WAI Heung-wah
EEES S
Mr Benny YEUNG Tsz-hei, MH
B FEREAE
Mr Jimmy YUEN Hon-wing
REREE
Mr Stephen YUEN Kwok-keung, MH
=B EE
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New Territories Regional Advisory Committee
MRBEHBHAEES

Chairman Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
FE EokESRE
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE B g2 RITRAERS R K
Director of Health or his / her representative
BESBERIHNRE
Members Mr Daniel CHAM Ka-hung, BBS, MH, JP
=1 RIS
Mr CHAN Bing-woon, SBS, JP
BRATIG S

Dr Charles CHAN Kam-kwong
PREEIE L

Mrs CHAN LI Lei, MH
BRFEL L

Mr FONG Cheung-fat, JP
FREERE

Dr LAU Chee-sing
BIERKIE T

Mr LEUNG Wo-ping, JP

Mr MO Shing-fung

NG 5ivta

Ir Prof Peter MOK Kwok-woo
SRR

Ms Jenny NG Ming-chun, MH
RPAY L

Prof Simon NG Siu-man
RIEH

Mr Alfred POON Sun-biu
ERTIRE

Mr SIU Hin-hong

M T

Dr Joey TANG Chung-yee
B s L

Ms Peggy WONG Pik-kiu, BBS, MH, JP
mREBT L

Mr Thomas YIU Kei-chung
Phic R

Mr YIU Ming
S 2
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Membership of the Board of Trustees of the
Hospital Authority Provident Fund Scheme 2016-2017

2016-17T FEEBREBR A ABETEIEEEEERE

Chairman
xE
Trustees
FREEE

198

Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS
HEXEL

Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS

PRE S

Mr Howard CHAN Wai-kee, JP (from 13.6.2016)
BRIERSE (2016 F6 A 13 H#E)

Ms Clara CHIN Sheung-chi

SEMIE

Mr William KWOK Chi-on

HFLEE

Mr LAl Wai-sang

Mr John LEE Luen-wai, BBS, JP

MRS A

Mr Raymond LEE Wing-hung (up to 6.4.2016)
KBS A (B2 2016F4H6H)

Dr Stanley LO Hok-king (from 16.9.2016)
RENEELE (H20164F9 A 16 HAE)

Dr Ernest MA Hon-ming (up to 15.9.2016)
EEBREE L (B2 2016 F9A 15H)

Mr Barry NG Kwok-hing (up to 75.9.2016)
REIESE (BZE2016F9A 15H)

Mr Dave NGAN Man-kit (from 7.4.2016)
AR (2016 F4 A7 HAE)

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
FHEIBA A

Mr WONG Yiu-lun (from 16.9.2016)
=R (2016469 A 16 HAE)

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai
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Public Feedback Statistics
maEsEm‘Jb FI—I_

Complaint / Appreciation Received (1.4.2016 - 31.3.2017)
Rk | BEEHF (201654818 —20175$3A311)

Public Complaints Committee
DRBRRFEER

Nature of cases Number of appeal cases
FES k=1 LEREREF
Medical services & iR 7% 205
Staff attitude B E R/ 39
Administrative procedure 1727 53
Others HAth 5
Total number of appeal cases handled 302
BE FRERES

Hospital Complaint / Feedback / Appreciation Statistics

BiiRF/ BR / EESa

Complaint Feedback Appreciation
Nature of complaint / feedback / appreciation cases received received received
Rk | BR | BEERMEE KRBT EREF HEETF
Medical services & iR 75 1,787 3,939 25,122
Staff attitude B S A&/ 610 2,525 12,068
Administrative procedure TTHIZFF 482 2,711 1,442
Overall performance &K 185 1,794 1,080
Others E At 42 570 6,806
Total number of hospital complaint / feedback / appreciation 3,106 11,539 46,518

BERR/ BR EBEY

GOPC* Complaint / Feedback / Appreciation Statistics

EBEMMIZZ IR R  EBAt

Complaint Feedback Appreciation
Nature of complaint / feedback / appreciation cases received received received
Bif/ BR  EBEARME RFBF EREF HBEET
Medical services Z&% AR 7% 85 304 2,453
Staff attitude B 8 #E/& 49 248 1,558
Administrative procedure 172 43 280 231
Overall performance 2 g2k17 9 82 284
Others EAth 1 6 512
Total number of complaint / feedback / 187 920 5,038

appreciation received by GOPC
EBENPIDDMIRR/ BR BB EH

*General outpatient clinics
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Statistics of the Controlling Officer's Report
BEHABHREGRTET

The Hospital Authority generally achieved its performance targets in ~ BiRERBAR HEI -2t FENRD
2016-17. The volume of patient care activities across the full range of ~ ®KHEBF - ZE—RE—tFEXAWAEERE

services in 2016-17 is comparable to the level in 2015-16. HEBERBER T —RE—NFEAKTERE °
The key activity data in respect of the Hospital Authority are: BB EERRBHEZSIRNT
2015-16 2016-17

(1) Access to services ATEY A IR 75

inpatient services 1£pz IR
no. of hospital beds (as at 31 March) BftRAREE (HE=A=1+—1)

general (acute and convalescent) AR} (&UE & FE1E) 21,587 21,798
infirmary &%} 2,041 2,041
mentally ill #51$%E} 3,607 3,607
mentally handicapped %5 fE#} 660 680
overall 85t 27,895 28,126

ambulatory and outreach services H &}z MR IR
accident and emergency (A&E) services =iE = AR T

percentage of A&E patients within target waiting time

£ B EmRR AR ENSERANE D X

triage | (critical cases - 0 minute) (%) & | $853! (BFaEZE — 0588)(%) 100 100
triage Il (emergency cases - 15 minutes) (%) % || £85I (B {AZ% — 1554)(%) 97 97
triage Ill (urgent cases - 30 minutes) (%) & |1l 85I (B2{AZ% — 3094 ) (%) 78 79

specialist outpatient services BRI iR7S
median waiting time for first appointment at specialist clinics

BRI D A HTE B (KBS ) R (B

first priority patients % — B2 RA < 1 week < 1 week
EH EH
second priority patients 58 — B2 IRA 5 weeks 5 weeks
£ £

rehabilitation and geriatric services (as at 31 March)

FERZARRYE (BE=A=1—H)

no. of community nurses tt BB 477 482

no. of geriatric day places # A%} A Eg&ft & 58 659 659
psychiatric services (as at 31 March) #51#ERS (BE2=A=+—H)

no. of community psychiatric nurses #5318 %} 1t BT & B 130 137

no. of psychiatric day places f&1# 7} A 22 & 58 889 839
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2015-16 2016-17
() Delivery of services friZfit I BRE
inpatient services 1Pz IR 7%
no. of discharges and deaths fFFEE A B AR R ILT A SR
general (acute and convalescent) @R} (=i R EEE) 1,055,887 1,105,033
infirmary &&1 3,511 3,687
mentally ill #5187} 17,440 17,640
mentally handicapped £ [E%} 487 552
overall #25+ 1,077,325 1,126,912
no. of patient days % A{EBx B X
general (acute and convalescent) 3@l (S0E M EE) 6,112,117 6,347,786
infirmary &% 509,730 516,661
mentally il #5187%} 936,376 940,323
mentally handicapped Z5 &%} 198,958 194,336
overall #&5t 7,757,181 7,999,106
bed occupancy rate (%) BHRIEFAZ (%
general (acute and convalescent) B (ZE M FEE) 89 90
infirmary &R 88 88
mentally il #5475+ 71 72
mentally handicapped %5 f&#} 82 80
overall 485+ 86 87
average length of stay (days)* F¥9 (BRI (H)*
general (acute and convalescent) AR} (SUE & FE1E) 5.8 5.8
infirmary BE&E£ 129 131
mentally ill 51875} 54 49
mentally handicapped Z5 &%} 334 391
overall 425+ 7.2 7.1
ambulatory and outreach services A &5 SMNE R
day inpatient services B B{EBe % A IR
no. of discharges and deaths H 8z A X MIET- AR 589,623 633,508
A&E services =E Z= IRTE
no. of attendances Btz AJX 2,236,456 2,231,951
no. of attendances per 1,000 population &+ A A&IFLZ AKX 306 304
no. of first attendances for & X&t2 AR 7R
triage | 25 | $25! 19,830 20,210
triage Il 28 11 487 43,840 47,491
triage Il 35 111 $85 694,114 722,731
specialist outpatient services ERIFI2 IR7S
no. of specialist outpatient (clinical) new attendances 724,585 764,438
HERIFZ (BRIR) FHESZ AR
no. of specialist outpatient (clinical) follow-up attendances 6,585,747 6,836,705
BRIFIZ (BRIK) BAEEZ AR
total no. of specialist outpatient (clinical) attendances 7,310,332 7,601,143

BEMPIZ (BRIR) Sl AR
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2015-16 2016-17
primary care services %/Z 58 B AR 75
no. of general outpatient attendances EBEIFIZ 2 AKX 5,984,576 6,120,999
no. of family medicine specialist clinic attendances RFEEEERIPIZFZ AKX 289,124 302,497
total no. of primary care attendances £ EEE L2 4 AR 6,273,700 6,423,496
rehabilitation and palliative care services FE1E [ 47 4% 12 AR
no. of rehabilitation day and palliative care day attendances 91,189 92,642
ER1E R A7 4% %12 A MRS B2 AR
no. of home visits by community nurses 1+ S+ &7 /K 21 855,449 867,226
no. of allied health (community) attendances 558 (@) FE2 AR 35,373 36,072
no. of allied health (outpatient) attendances BB (F922) st2 AR 2,531,869 2,704,572
geriatric services & ARIIRFE
no. of outreach attendances 5 4MNg fRTE AKX 637,777 661,988
no. of geriatric elderly persons assessed for infirmary care service 1,560 1,754
BEXEE R RE AR
no. of geriatric day attendances 2 A%} BB st:2 AR 149,601 153,150
no. of Visiting Medical Officer attendances # 5 5|32 B8 568 AR 109,544 109,906
psychiatric services f&18FH RS
no. of psychiatric outreach attendances 1 % f& 8 RISMNE RTG AR 282,735 290,185
no. of psychiatric day attendances #&t# %} B &t L2 AR 223,781 224,857
no. of psychogeriatric outreach attendances 5 % A f& 1 RIINE IR AR 97,503 99,674
() Quality of services fRIEEHE
no. of hospital deaths per 1,000 population® & F A 05 ATEEERTIL T A" 3.1 3.0
unplanned readmission rate within 28 days for general inpatients (%) 10.6 10.5
LBRHERT R ATE R 18 28 RINRETELI B ABLE (%)
(IV) Cost of services PRFE R 2~
cost distribution A5 7
cost distribution by service types (%) & IRISFBRIZI DI AP R E 5 K (%)
inpatient {EBT ARFS 54.4 54.1
ambulatory and outreach B & & IMNE RS 45.6 45.9
cost by service types per 1,000 population (HK$Mn)
BT ADERRBGHERNE SRR (B R ET)
inpatient {EBEARTE 4.1 4.3
ambulatory and outreach H & K SMNE ARTS 35 3.7
cost of services for persons aged 65 or above 65 Fxak LA = A THIARFER AN
share of cost of services (%) RIS TG LKA B DR (%) 46.9 471
cost of services per 1,000 population (HK$Mn) &F A DI ERISE A GE¥ R ET) 233 237
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2015-16 2016-17
unit costs BE IR A
inpatient services 1Bz IR%
cost per inpatient discharged (HK$) &% HifTim ABIRR A (BiT)
general (acute and convalescent) E3EEl (& M FE1E) 25,270 25,570
infirmary &1 223,210 225,420
mentally ill #5185} 138,840 141,710
mentally handicapped %5 fE%} 622,120 588,060
cost per patient day (HK$) fm A & B A (B7T)
general (acute and convalescent) @R} (SE M EE) 4,830 4,950
infirmary 21t 1,540 1,610
mentally ill #5187} 2,590 2,660
mentally handicapped %5 f&E %} 1,520 1,670
ambulatory and outreach services A R 5MNE R
cost per A&E attendance (HK$) = iE =X 2 AERIR AR (B 7T) 1,230 1,300
cost per specialist outpatient attendance (HK$) ERIFIZ G R SIERIB A GEIT) 1,190 1,210
cost per general outpatient attendance (HK$) & ARIFI2 &R 2 ERK AR (GBIT) 445 450
cost per family medicine specialist clinic attendance (HK$) 1,130 1,140
REBSFERMIDERZRERKAR (BIT)
cost per outreach visit by community nurse (HK$) #t BT8R INE RFGHIK AR GBTT) 535 570
cost per psychiatric outreach attendance (HK$) #5+#RI9MNE BRIEF IR AR AN (B 7T) 1,550 1,640
cost per geriatric day attendance (HK$) & A% H E EBr &R RIS IR A (B T) 1,960 2,070
fee waivers ~ W BB ~
percentage of Comprehensive Social Security Assistance (CSSA) fee waiver (%) 18.5 17.7
IRAETERERR GE) KEREEDE (%)
percentage of non-CSSA fee waiver (%) JE4RIEW B2 B D X (%) 6.2 7.2
Notes : e
* Derived by dividing the sum of length of stay of inpatients by the — * $Z{EBTm AMEFTES SR ARSI EBTm A
corresponding number of inpatients discharged and treated. b R ABEASEE o
A Refers to the standardised hospital death rate covering inpatient and ~ ~ X —FERERE R T #ER & B MBEE
day inpatient deaths in Hospital Authority hospitals in a particular year. RATLT ABURIZEE(LFR TR - HREIEE(LSET
The standardised rate, as a standard statistical technique to facilitate ERKEE BEAFESEFRARNERRBA
comparison over years, is calculated by applying the Hospital Authority RUE - EARZSZS—FFHHFE] AD
age-specific hospital death rate in that particular year to the “standard” MetE L RA - EE—(ERENLE 7 - BE)
population in mid-2001. LR RIFREFET X o
~ Refers to the amount waived as percentage to total charge. T~ ERERBELARENR DX o
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Statistics on Number of Beds, Inpatient, Accident &
Emergency and Outpatient Services in 2016-17

2016-17 EFERAKRE B ~ FREKE - SIEZERBRPZRESRTEF

Total IP Family
No. of &DP  Inpatient  Inpatient Medicine  Total Allied
hospital beds  discharges bed  average Total SOP  Specialist Health
(asat31 anddeaths occupancy  length of (clinical) Clinic  (Outpatient) General

March2017)® HRREM  rate(%) stay(days)  Total ARE attendances attendances’ attendances”  Outpatient
BRGREE  fRHEA  GRKEA  ERRA  attendances EMMY  SEE2 SHER attendances”

Institution' (BE07F  HREARR RRERE  POAR 2EZ  (BRRY IR (R)RY EENMR
' 3AMA)  RTAR (%) BE(E) HBRPAR BARY  HPART BARY RBARY

Hong Kong East Cluster 8 RE B B8
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok

EHAEEEER 240 356 794 259.2 - - - 141

Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital

EELEXATITEEE 1,739 149,178 85.0 5.7 140,520 591,066 62,197 157,655 414,388
Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals

AEATHETERE 621 29,005 89.4 7.1 77,666 135,555 9,947 95,307 134,444
St John Hospital SHER 87 3,965 63.6 6.0 9,279 23 - 7,429 34,336
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital RERT 265 8,032 87.1 14.7 - 100,856 - 30,684 24,631
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital &1737158% 160 165 9.4 3512 - - -

Sub-total /st 3112 190,701 85.9 1.6 227,465 827,500 72,144 291,216 607,799

Hong Kong West Cluster & 78k B4

The Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital at
Sandy Bay 133 4,176 62.8 9.0 - 20,779 - 33,340
AORREARAATERNR

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals

Fung Yiu King Hospital 272 3,025 68.2 20.9 - 571 - 548

RE=[r SRR

Grantham Hospital &1 %6z 388 16,432 703 1.2 - 120,229 - 19,595

Q&A%L/e%fgi% |yl\]/l?edical Rehabilitation Centre 110 980 565 234 ) 272 i 2478

Queen Mary Hospital S5 Efr 1,706 160,656 81.0 45 129,674 674,787 21,134 146,294 363,248
Tung Wah Hospital B8}z 532 27,301 83.7 15 - 51,105 g 6,415 32,100
Tean Yuk Hospital 25 2l 1 163 - - - 23,518 - 5,151

Sub-total /gt 3142 212,733 71.0 6.2 129,674 891,261 21,134 213,821 395,348

Kowloon Central Cluster f12E 4 &5 #48
Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital

FEanEE 324 8,353 91.1 16.3 - 12,740 - 16,047 44,593
Hong Kong Eye Hospital 7k 52kt 45 8,052 353 35 - 229,444 - 21,833
Kowloon Hospital 132 &6z 1,321 17,712 812 236 - 85,868 - 142,160
Queen Elizabeth Hospital (/) {E %k 1,906 190,551 929 51 194648 707,456 9196 262,562 535,052
Sub-total /3t 3596 224,668 87.8 7.8 194,648 1,035,508 9196 442,602 579,645
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Total IP Family
No. of &DP  Inpatient  Inpatient Medicine  Total Allied
hospital beds  discharges bed  average Total SO Specialist Health
(asat31 anddeaths occupancy  length of (clinical) Clinic  (Outpatient) General
March2017)® HRRAM  rate(%) stay(days)  Total ARE attendances attendances’ attendances”  Outpatient
ERGREE  ARAA  ARERA  #RAEA  attendances ENMY  SEB2  ZHER attendances”
Institution' (BE7E BRARR SRERE  FEAK SEZ (BRHEY IRy FARIRY  EENMY
g’ 3B31A)  RTAR (%)  WE(A) BHIAR AR BRAR BARY  RBARY
Kowloon East Cluster f1 5 Rk ¥R
Haven of Hope Hospital B & 2z 461 7,210 919 24.7 8,943 5,933
Tseung Kwan O Hospital & E 2 8 667 66,168 95.6 49 133,867 311,420 281 143,348 334,717
United Christian Hospital 224 25 1,415 123,709 92.7 49 182,962 549,347 59,873 230,453 663,016
Sub-total /st 2,543 197,087 93.3 59 316,829 869,710 60,154 379,734 997,733
Kowloon West Cluster /1.5
Caritas Medical Centre FHE Bt 1,206 63,409 84.7 6.2 135,290 397,043 1,385 92,073 306,561
Kwai Chung Hospital 355 %6z 920 4,575 76.1 56.3 235,507 38,613
Kwong Wah Hospital B Zfz 1,186 97,351 80.3 4.1 133,290 362,402 4,533 165,010 211,640
North Lantau Hospital 4t K141 22z 40 4,307 87.0 49 95,022 12,281 131 33,718 97,413
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital 22 & 25 236 12,468 73.3 8.2 68,720 708 35,196 436,102
Princess Margaret Hospital 555221 %z 1,733 153,370 98.4 53 134,704 464,903 16,783 124,582 366,163
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin
Hospital 531 9,028 88.5 234 - 873
RE-FrElEk
Yan Chai Hospital (=& 26z 800 57,924 87.9 46 132,929 220,174 4,723 90,800 298,198
Sub-total /st 6,652 402,432 86.3 6.5 631,235 1,761,030 28,263 580,865 1,716,077
New Territories East Cluster 37 R 2 48
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital
REEAL R 28 533 62,308 85.0 44 134,477 263,136 5,482 121,966 238,107
Bradbury Hospice B EIEEEH 1\ 26 574 922 15.5 50 1,097
Cheshire Home, Shatin 1) 2K # &kt 304 233 743 350.6 - 68
North District Hospital 1t 225z 603 47,102 92.7 5.0 106,606 178,095 5,731 74,415 258,758
Prince of Wales Hospital [ 28 8 T 20 1,682 173,114 9.3 52 144,349 755,465 46,384 208,739 475,589
Shatin Hospital % 2% 572 8,654 90.7 20.7 512 941
Tai Po Hospital A3s25 993 10,442 89.3 24.4 583 424
Sub-total /Nt 4,713 302,427 89.4 73 385432 1,197,841 57,597 407,650 972,454
New Territories West Cluster 375775 88 b Bt
Castle Peak Hospital & L1 25z 1,156 2,772 65.1 105.4 139,885 25,892
Pok O Hospital fEE E 757 52314 95.5 62 123898 124182 29,019 86,862
Siu Lam Hospital /MEZfiz 520 552 926 402.7 -
Tuen Mun Hospital 7 P92z 1,935 174,586 102.2 58 219,838 753,887 22,826 275,624 851,943
Tin Shui Wai Hospital” K7k EE:’ 148 2,932 339 2,164 306
Sub-total /st 4368 230,372 89.4 9.2 346,668 1,018,293 54,009 388,684 851,943
GRAND TOTAL 5t 28,126 1,760,420 87.1 71 2231951 7,601,143 302,497 2,704,572 6,120,999
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Notes:

1.

Wong Tai Sin District and Mong Kok area have been re-delineated from
Kowloon West Cluster (KWC) to Kowloon Central Cluster (KCC) since
1 December 2016. The service units in the concerned communities
have therefore been re-delineated from KWC to KCC to support the
new KCC catchment districts with effect from the same date. As a
transitional arrangement, reports on services / manpower statistics and
financial information continued to be based on the previous clustering
arrangement (i.e. concerned service units still under KWC) until 31 March
2017. Reports in accordance with the new clustering arrangement (i.e.
concerned service units grouped under KCC) start from 1 April 2017.

. Number of hospital beds as at 31 March 2017 is based on the Annual

Survey on Hospital Beds in Public Hospitals 2016-17.

. Outpatient attendances for different clinics are grouped under respective

hospital management.

. Specialist Outpatient (SOP) (clinical) attendances also include attendances

from nurse clinics in SOP setting.

. Total Allied Health (Outpatient) attendances exclude follow-up

consultations provided by the Medical Social Services Units.

. General Outpatient (GOP) attendances also include attendances from

nurse clinics in GOP setting and attendances in related healthcare reform
initiative programmes in primary care.

. Tin Shui Wai Hospital commenced service by phases in January 2017.

Abbreviations:

— Inpatient

DP — Day inpatient
A&E — Accident & Emergency
SOP — Specialist Outpatient
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Statistics on Community and
Rehabilitation Services in 2016-17
3 / o =
2016-17 FEHERBEERBHTHF
Rehabilitation
Psycho- day &
Psychiatric geriatric - Community Visiting ~ Allied Health palliative Psychiatric
Home visits outreach outreach  Geriatric Medical ~ (Community) careday Geriatric day day
by community attendances’ attendances’ Assessment Officer attendances’ attendances attendances’ attendances
nurses  BFEER B¥EA Sewice' attendances’ ERER BERFR EAR Ran
Institution' HEST MERE  REMARE  HEEA EIIDEE  HE)HRY EEARER AEER  AHER
Hig' EEI ARE BBARS FHBEE'  OREAR AR? ROAR  BPART  RRBAR
Hong Kong East Cluster 7 8 RE B k48
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok i i 56 i
FHAERERR
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
BELEE T EER 94,479 23,248 10,947 837 281 16,362 29,058
Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals i
s p TR 108,377 22,707 2,315 6,134 18,254
St John Hospital K28 4,864 - - 2 -
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital RER[E = - 84 32,485 -
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital &1731 26 - - 5 2,321
Sub-total /Nt 99,343 23,248 10,947 108,377 22,707 3,299 38,900 36937 29,058
Hong Kong West Cluster & & B 5848
The Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital at
Sandy Bay - - 4 -
AORBEABAATERNR
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King
Hospital - 50,010 13,069 2,676 5,701
RE=lEEMER
Grantham Hospital & 2 120z - - 39 4,696 -
MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre
IR R N - 100 14,795 -
Queen Mary Hospital S5E 2z 56,685 19,756 13,389 - 694 - 20,065
Tung Wah Hospital RZE5 - - 223 7,883 6,282
Sub-total /Nt 56,685 19,756 13,389 50,010 13,069 3,736 21,374 11,983 20,065
Kowloon Central Cluster fiiEs B k43
Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital i i i
Btz 142 2,785
Kowloon Hospital 13250t 80,927 19,166 8828 35627 4,794 1,203 903 3,168 10,544
Queen Elizabeth Hospital #1558 - 34,353 6,947 2,706 10,947
Sub-total /Nt 80,927 19,166 8828 69,980 11,741 4,051 3,688 14,115 10,544
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Rehabilitation
Psycho- day &
Psychiatric geriatric - Community Visiting ~ Allied Health palliative Psychiatric
Home visits outreach outreach  Geriatric Medical ~ (Community) careday Geriatric day day
by community attendances’ attendances’ Assessment Officer attendances’ attendances attendances’ attendances
nurses  ESEER B¥EA Senice' attendances’ EREBR  BERSE EAR Ban
Instituton HEET  MEEE  BWMAR  MEZA BSNYEE  (E)HY WEEEEB WG OEER
g’ FaRE NEE BBARS THEBE RRARS AR BPAR  BBAR BPAX
Kowloon East Cluster 152 R E R B4
Haven of Hope Hospital E& 2z 30,916 - - 6,724 1,040 629 1,895 5,059
Tseung Kwan O Hospital 1 38287 - - - - - 58 - -
United Christian Hospital 2B A Bz 137,669 31,749 10352 38214 7,841 1,242 2,052 18,754 32,347
Sub-total /Mt 168,585 31,749 10352 44,938 8,881 1,929 3,947 23813 32,347
Kowloon West Cluster J158 7 2857 48
Caritas Medical Centre BAE 257 66,415 - - 42,960 4,553 172 1,465 13,454
Kwai Chung Hospital 22z = 85,236 28,408 - - 2,455 - - 67,004
Kwong Wah Hospital FEZ£Efz 40,843 - - 53,409 9,772 958 - 9,120
North Lantau Hospital 3¢ A1 L 55 6,355 2,889 - 3979 - 157 4,651 -
Qur Lady of Maryknoll Hospital 22822z 54,231 - - 16,821 - 110 590 -
Princess Margaret Hospital 5325 2z 58,840 - - 41,426 5,288 1171 1,750 14,648
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin
Hospital - - - - - 68 - 11,040
RE=lraEAflEk
Yan Chai Hospital (=& 26z 26,594 - - 41,875 5914 225 - 7,953
Sub-total /gt 253,278 88,125 28,408 200,470 25,527 5,316 8,456 56,215 67,004
New Territories East Cluster 3 5 R E5z 48
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital
_ N - 37,079 - 952 27,452 6,462 2,779 389 11,764 10,791
EERAYRPITZER
Bradbury Hospice H B Z & 1) - - 56 335 -
Cheshire Home, Shatin ) FZ K E& - - - - - 8 - -
North District Hospital 1t 225z 37,642 11,905 7,509 30,006 6,542 3,287 308 10,218 11,456
Prince of Wales Hospital B 75 T %5z 51,762 - - 22,686 7333 4,490 - -
Shatin Hospital > 2z = 21,516 6,125 = = 344 6,012 14,150 15,971
Tai Po Hospital A5 = 10,597 234 - - 21 - - 8,072
Sub-total /Mt 126,483 44,018 14,820 80,144 20,337 10,985 7,044 36,132 46,290
New Territories West Cluster 5 53 75 8 b B
Castle Peak Hospital F1LIEk: - 64,123 12,930 - - 2,524 - - 13,655
Pok Oi Hospital % 2t 25,695 = - 41,903 - 520 - 6,516
Siu Lam Hospital /MEZ [z - - - - - 1 - -
Tuen Mun Hospital #i P92z 56,230 - - 67,920 7,644 3,711 3,233 14,239 5,894
Sub-total /Nt 81,925 64,123 12,930 109,823 7,644 6,756 3,233 20,755 19,549
GRAND TOTAL 5t 867,226 290,185 99,674 663,742 109,906 36,072 92,642 199,950 224,857
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Notes:

1.

w

Wong Tai Sin District and Mong Kok area have been re-delineated from
Kowloon West Cluster (KWC) to Kowloon Central Cluster (KCC) since
1 December 2016. The service units in the concerned communities
have therefore been re-delineated from KWC to KCC to support the
new KCC catchment districts with effect from the same date. As a
transitional arrangement, reports on services / manpower statistics and
financial information continued to be based on the previous clustering
arrangement (i.e. concerned service units still under KWC) until 31 March
2017. Reports in accordance with the new clustering arrangement (i.e.
concerned service units grouped under KCC) start from 1 April 2017.

. Figures also include home visits and crisis intervention.
. Figures also include home visits and consultation-liaison attendances.
. For Community Geriatric Assessment Service, the activity refers to total

number of outreach attendances and geriatric elderly persons assessed
for infirmary care service.

. Visiting Medical Officer attendances refer to the attendances receiving

services provided to elderly persons living in Resident Care Homes for
the Elderly under the Visiting Medical Officers Scheme introduced in
2003-04.

. Allied Health (Community) attendances exclude follow-up consultations

provided by the Medical Social Services Units.

. Geriatric day attendances also include attendances in Integrated

Discharge Support Programme (IDSP) for elderly patients.

The activity performed in different centers and teams are grouped under
respective hospital management.

Appendix 10
By 10

N

1. RBRNEAERBHANEALEREAR &
2016412 A1 B IEX B AL EEH BB AY -
ERA R A RIS EAL N E R R A A AN
BEPTH A U EZB AR RRERBNRS
BEHE - EABEURE  BERE/ AFH
SE TRV AN E RS SRR R A
WAL (AAEERGEANE N EAEREA)
BIKIE > EE220179F3 A31 B AL - {HEEF
2017 64 A 1 A RRIZRBHT AR AR 4R (BIFERE
BRFS BN A L BE BE P48 TE 2R o

2. BFhBERD MEEEERY

T RERG RAERED ©

4. e ZEBINBIRISH AR iz BB R
ZHRE ABRERA -

c

%X B2 B E R E AIXIE2003-04 F [E HE T A
I BENE | P ALTEREREMREANE
BRFE o

o
A

¥

6. ERER (LR 2 AR T BREHEHL SR
TR RO BRAE (EZR -
7. ZEAFRIHEERZ
SRFTEIRZ AR ©

R BEBRRERA

BHRLREFROREEDFAMBER 2T

209



} Appendices [ff$

Appendix 11(a)
B8 11 (a)

Manpower Position — by Cluster and Institution
AFRR — REREREBSE

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff (as at 31.3.2017) >**°®
ZE2BAESHE (2017F3 831 BHF)>>*°

Institution’ Medical Nursing Allied Health Others Total
g’ BR EE 3 ERER Hity st
Hong Kong East Cluster 7& & 5 &P Bt 4 630 2,679 799 3,969 8,078
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok Z5if £ %4 FC i &R 3 60 8 116 186
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 489 1,790 541 2,540 5,360
RELIERAIBITZELT

Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals 7234 K BF 2 EX B2 93 549 166 756 1,563
St John Hospital FMZ&px 6 35 8 83 132
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital 255t 38 193 72 336 638
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital E4731 2855 2 53 4 140 198
Hong Kong West Cluster 7% & 75 8B Bt 48 705 2,821 960 3,652 8,137
The Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital at Sandy Bay 16 83 55 146 299
AARBEARKATERR

Grantham Hospital & &2 30 254 64 319 667
MaclLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre 2538 /%18 b7 1 35 33 87 156
Queen Mary Hospital® 58 5px © 597 2,063 698 2,562 5,919
TWGHSs Fung Yiu King Hospital 322E = b S 224k 52b 17 83 30 143 274
Tung Wah Hospital 5 %= 2&F5 43 304 79 395 821
Kowloon Central Cluster J18EF B& PR B 49 781 3,333 1,065 4,819 9,998
HK Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service 5 96 72 273 446
BB T Fehl RSO

Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital &3k 22 Fx 15 152 41 195 403
Hong Kong Eye Hospital &R RIE&FE 37 77 22 167 302
Kowloon Hospital 7122855z 64 762 193 978 1,997
Queen Elizabeth Hospital” {F# A&kt 660 2,246 738 3,206 6,850
Kowloon East Cluster J1.52 5 &8 Fz B 49 727 2,750 782 3,577 7,835
Haven of Hope Hospital B2 & 22t 24 269 68 424 787
Tseung Kwan O Hospital {528 8& [ 191 737 207 925 2,060
United Christian Hospital £ #H & 2&Fx 511 1,744 506 2,227 4,988
Kowloon West Cluster J1.38 i B8 P B 4 1,463 5,746 1,696 7,427 16,332
Caritas Medical Centre AR E &5 269 907 268 1,206 2,650
Kwai Chung Hospital Z£58 2805 73 660 129 606 1,467
Kwong Wah Hospital B2 2k 338 1,175 342 1,490 3,345
North Lantau Hospital 1t AU | 1| 28B7 34 103 69 205 411
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital E2 5285t 89 300 91 414 894
Princess Margaret Hospital 353221 2&f5 450 1,644 546 2,223 4,863
TWGHSs Wong Tai Sin Hospital 582 = & AL EFr 27 257 51 330 665
Yan Chai Hospital 1= &[5 183 701 202 952 2,038
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Bis2 11 (a)

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff (as at 31.3.2017) >*>*°
ZEEMASHE (2017F3 831 BHF)>>*°

Institution’ Medical Nursing Allied Health Others Total
Heg' BR 3 ERER Hity #et
New Territories East Cluster 3753 R E& P B 40 1,022 4,090 1,231 5,479 11,822
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital HERE FCfal#d 4 BR 3T 2= 52Bx 173 656 247 1,005 2,081
Bradbury Hospice B Z 2 EEA L) 3 28 5 30 65
Cheshire Home, Shatin > HZEK#ESMT 1 83 9 135 228
North District Hospital j.tlr:ug 5T 178 705 202 878 1,962
Prince of Wales Hospital [\ 5 #7328 F 52Fx 581 1,916 615 2,467 5,580
Shatin Hospital > FH 2B 43 339 79 450 910
Tai Po Hospital A 152k 43 363 75 513 995
New Territories West Cluster ¥ 57 74 B& B B 48 824 3,514 964 5,178 10,480
Castle Peak Hospital & |11 2&F5t 77 570 103 671 1,420
Pok Oi Hospital & 2 136 627 169 843 1,774
Siu Lam Hospital M?EQ 6 153 1 324 494
Tuen Mun Hospital /5 P92&F5% 591 2,108 636 3,153 6,487
Tin Shui Wai Hospital X7K[E &% 14 57 45 187 303
Total #&5t 6,151 24,933 7,497 34,100 72,682
Notes: e

1. Wong Tai Sin District and Mong Kok area have been re-delineated 1. RERNEARGRBENEAMIEEAR - ER

from KWC to KCC since 1 December 2016. The service units in the
concerned communities have therefore been re-delineated from KWC
to KCC to support the new KCC catchment districts with effect from
the same date. As a transitional arrangement, reports on services /
manpower statistics and financial information continued to be based
on the previous clustering arrangement (i.e. concerned service units still
under KWC) until 31 March 2017. Reports in accordance with the new
clustering arrangement (i.e. concerned service units grouped under KCC)
start from 1 April 2017.

2. This figure excludes 2,192 staff in the Hospital Authority Head Office.

3. Manpower on full-time equivalent (FTE) basis includes all full-time & part-
time staff in HA's workforce i.e. permanent, contract and temporary.

4. Individual figures may not add up to the total due to rounding.

5. Manpower figures of individual hospitals / institutions include
management staff providing hospital and cluster-wide services.

6. Manpower providing services for Tsan Yuk Hospital is included in Queen
Mary Hospital.

7. Manpower providing services for Rehabaid Centre is included in Queen
Elizabeth Hospital.

2016 F 12 A1 BIEX S| ANLFER BEtA - 18
B [ B9 AR 75 BE Az 7T B 1A [R) B B 4 A L BE B8
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Appendix 11(b)
B 8% 11 (b)

Manpower Position — by Staff Group
AFRR — ZBEAR S E

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff 2012-13 - 2016-17 °

ZEZBASEE'
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Medical B
Consultant EAR g 4 729 761 799 840 885
Senior Medical Officer / Associate Consultant 1,639 1,733 1,785 1,872 1,922
= B A
Medical Officer / Resident(excluding Visiting Medical Officer) 2,875 2,866 2,872 2,936 2,959
B4/ BfrEA (MRIEEIEEE)
Visiting Medical Officer %588 16 16 18 17 18
Intern SEfc & &5 4 280 311 401 368 373
Senior Dental Officer / Dental Officer 6 8 8 8 8
AR EE A / TP B
Medical Total: 5,546 5,695 5,884 6,040 6,164
BREABMA:
Nursing E&
Senior Nursing Officer and above = &+ KA L 156 174 181 193 196
Department Operations Manager 3918 {EAL IR 176 181 182 184 191
General Z#&EF —
Ward Manager / Nurse Specialist / Nursing Officer / 3,760 3,978 4114 4,286 4,428
Advanced Practice Nurse
REAEIE | ERlEL | E TR/ ERERD
Registered Nurse sHfi7& L 12,722 13,258 13,848 14,474 14,697
Enrolled Nurse Z&C&+ 2,373 2,425 2,447 2,436 2,421
Midwife/Others BhE =+ / HAth 19 9 4 3 3
Student Nurse/Pupil Nurse / Temporary Undergraduate 437 434 653 611 625
Nursing student
AT S A B ETSE  EEEEL
Psychiatric /&5 —
Ward Manager / Nurse Specialist / Nursing Officer / 510 532 545 552 571
Advanced Practice Nurse
TREAEIE | BREET / E TR / BARERD
Registered Nurse s+ &+ 1,085 1,153 1,205 1,272 1,298
Enrolled Nurse & &0+ 578 614 613 576 550
Student Nurse / Pupil Nurse sEfi 24 / EiE L 24 0 0 0 0 0
Nursing Total: 21,816 22,759 23,791 24,587 24,980
EEABEE

212



Hospital Authority Annual Report Bz EE FFHKR 2016-2017 {

Appendix 11(b)

K% 11 (b)

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff 2012-13 - 2016-17 °

ZEEZBMASHA’

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Allied Health ;%5
Audiology Technician 55 1 25 i1 & 7 6 6 6 6
Clinical Psychologist &R D IEE5R 134 139 155 163 171
Dietitian &AM 118 128 141 148 160
Dispenser fid % 5 1,055 1,129 1,186 1,249 1,289
Medical Technologist / Medical Laboratory Technician 1,270 1,310 1,347 1,406 1,457
B LA BBLERE
Mould Technologist / Mould Laboratory Technician 27 26 26 26 26
SR ER =R / R ERERIE
Optometrist 18 S 61 67 67 67 70
Orthoptist 17 Z 45 IERD 14 14 15 14 14
Occupational Therapist B 356 & Al 673 698 731 772 815
Pharmacist %75 488 522 574 609 635
Physicist #7132 228 68 71 73 75 76
Physiotherapist #7324 Rl 846 869 886 969 1,028
Podiatrist 2 /& 42D 35 35 39 41 47
Prosthetist-Orthotist 2 f% & 26T 123 126 135 141 144
Diagnostic Radiographer / Radiation Therapist 947 1,002 1,017 1,054 1,102
FRATED / BRETR A
Scientific Officer (Medical) 23 = T (8875) 76 82 82 87 89
Speech Therapist = &4 BAl 77 82 91 105 110
Medical Social Worker B&#54- T 282 301 315 333 330
Dental Technician ZF&HE1iT & 2 3 3 3 3
Allied Health Total: 6,302 6,609 6,888 7,268 7,572
ERERASSEG
Care-related Support Staff EE X &
Health Care Assistant & FAR7S BH IR 2,630 2,395 2,179 1,932 1,676
Ward Attendant % /= iR & 342 295 247 222 191
Patient Care Assistant & Other Care-related Support Staff 8,076 9,447 11,290 12,116 12,831
TRARRTSENIE R IR TR A B
Care-related Support Staff Total: 11,048 12,137 13,716 14,270 14,698
BEXEASHEG
Direct Patient Care Total: 44,713 47,200 50,278 52,165 53,415

HiEmABEAFAG :
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Appendix 11(b)
BtEE 11 (b)

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff 2012-13 - 2016-17 °
ZERIZHBAEHE'

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Others E b

Chief Executive / Director / Deputy Director / Head 7 7 7 7 7

TTIRAREL | BB | BIBES | £%F

Cluster Chief Executive / Hospital Chief Executive 26 26 26 24 24

EbH AR / Bl TR RS

Chief Manager / Senior Manager / Cluster General Manager / 92 95 94 100 102
General Manager

RITIUSIR | SR TIHASTR / B s TR / RS T8

Other Professionals / Administrator, System Manager, 1,984 2,099 2,297 2,405 2,555
Analyst Programmer etc

HEMEXE/THRAER « ZHLE - ZREFAITHREEES
Other Supporting Staff — Clerical, Secretarial, Workman, 17,392 18,180 17,591 18,184 18,771
Operation Assistant, Executive Assistant etc

HhIEABR —XE - WE - TA - BEBE - TS

Non-direct Patient Care Total: 19,501 20,407 20,015 20,720 21,459

FEERABEAFE

HA Total: 64,213 67,607 70,293 72,885 74,874

BERBAFH:

Note: At

1. Manpower on full-time equivalent (FTE) includes all full-time & part- 1. AFR[ZR2ZBAE 5 BEBERMESR
time staff in HA's workforce i.e. permanent, contract and temporary. BEFRBHTE  SORGRREE - ARMNE
Individual figures may not add up to the total due to rounding. TARBR - ZIREFHEINE AT RN EREE -
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Appendix 12(a)
BigE 12 (a)

Operating Expenditure' in 2016-17

2016-17 EERER L'

Cluster 2016-17 (HK$Mn)
k] 2016-17 £E (B BET)
Hong Kong East Cluster 7 & 5 B8 pr B 48 5,956
Hong Kong West Cluster 7 & it 22 b B 49 6,491
Kowloon Central Cluster? J, 58 1 B2 B 492 7,449
Kowloon East Cluster j1.3E58 B8P Bt AR 5,929
Kowloon West Cluster® 1,58 78 52F B 48> 12,587
New Territories East Cluster 37575 5 B 48 9,114
New Territories West Cluster 3757 7 && B Bt 43 7,544
Hospital Authority Head Office, and Others® 22Fx B8 B SR © K EAD> 2,544
Total #25t 57,614
Notes: 5

1. Operating expenditure refers to the expenditure to run HA's day-to-day services. It 1. BEMNXEEBERAREAERBAFERMS - &F

covers manpower, drug, consumables and daily maintenance of equipment and
facilities, etc. but is separated from expenditure for capital works projects, major
equipment acquisition, corporate-wide Information Technology development and

transaction of self-financed items paid by patients.
HA's day-to-day services can be grouped under:

(i) “core hospital services” that are generally available in all Clusters

(i) specialised services that are only available in designated hospitals to
serve the entire population of Hong Kong, i.e. “designated services”
(e.g. liver transplantation, allogeneic bone marrow transplantation, heart
transplantation and lung transplantation services in Hong Kong West
Cluster), where the scale of designated services varies across Clusters and

BEATF - Y HELMN B BB R R R R 4

BRES - BEATIENE  BEARBERIHERE

FEARBRERNFZRIN T TEBEREABBRER

HENR SRR °

BEERNBEEREANAE

(i) PAEA—MRERE [Tz B RS

(ii) M 51 B& B i "% &Y [ 48 52 AR 755 | (1711 4n 7% & 78 B8 e e
MEmaETREENOFEZE E8EHEBE -
DIRBEMBERTY) ¢ MR E RIS RIE
BETE  (HEEELERXNLAHBERS

its contribution to a Cluster’s operating expenditure can range from a few

percent to up to 10-20%

(iii) to a lesser extent “private services” that are mostly confined to the two

teaching hospitals

Data also shows that a Cluster's provision of core services is not restricted to
population residing in its vicinity but may also serve patients residing in other
localities who for various reasons choose to attend hospitals further from
their residence. The impact of such “cross-cluster patient movement” varies

considerably from Cluster to Cluster.

In view of the wide variation in the contribution of “designated services”,
“private services” and “cross-cluster patient movement” to a Cluster’s operating
expenditure, the overall Cluster operating expenditure cannot be used to compare
Cluster resources without first delineating and dissecting out the impact of the

above confounding factors.

(i) = Z M EH BB R e/ N8 [A R IR

FETBR - SBENZL R ER RN EEER
EHREAD - EREAMMEERE AL AEEEE
BB EATBCEMBE KD - WS [BRRZ ] BR
IR ZER X

BN AR HEEIRS ] - [ALKRTES | e [BS4ske
MRS A EBASERLPIBRTR - FitERE
2 RRR PA Pt ORI RF AT - T AR R
BRI SOR BB BRI ©

2. Wong Tai Sin District and Mong Kok area have been re-delineated from Kowloon 2. RENNEARBREBENEXNINEAR - 2702016

West Cluster (KWC) to Kowloon Central Cluster (KCC) since 1 December 2016.
The service units in the concerned communities have therefore been re-delineated
from KWC to KCC to support the new KCC catchment districts with effect from
the same date. As a transitional arrangement, reports on services / manpower
statistics and financial information continued to be based on the previous
clustering arrangement (i.e. concerned service units still under KWC) until
31 March 2017. Reports in accordance with the new clustering arrangement
(i.e. concerned service units grouped under KCC) start from 1 April 2017.

F12 A1 BEASIANFEH BEEE - 1HRtR AR
BELIINERRF B AR ASBE T EEBTHAAE - B Z
RN SREARNRGEEHE (EREEERYE
BRART /| AT T BT R B AR E RS ARER
SRR ST B 48 SR Ax (BIAR RE AR TS BE AL ()88 L B P e e gt
W) BB EE2017F3A31 B RLE - HEHFA
2017 4 A1 BB RIR A0 EE A8 S AR (BNARRAARTS B AL
AT BE BB A8 ) FESR -

3. Includes corporate-wide expenditures processed by Head Office (such as 3 DREKBHEEEENCERT (NRBRER =&

insurance premium, legal costs, claims paid and salary of medical interns) and on
information technology, as well as resources for supporting the Government's

electronic health initiatives.

BR REXH BEERLFNS) MEBERENE
ARHR - AR SORBUTHETT & F 2B A2 8k 0 A
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Appendix 12(b)
B8 12 (b)

Training and Development Expenditure’

2016-17 FEBEEIIRBEHAX'

in 2016-17

Cluster

B

2016-17 (HK$Mn)
2016-17 EE B EET)

Hong Kong East Cluster 7 & 58 28 F Bt 48 13.4
Hong Kong West Cluster 7 & it 22 B B 49 7.1
Kowloon Central Cluster? J1.88 7 2B B 492 13.1
Kowloon East Cluster J1.38 5 BB Bt 48 5.1
Kowloon West Cluster? J1.5 7 &8 Fe Bt 48 9.2
New Territories East Cluster 3 5758 B&F5 B 49 14.7
New Territories West Cluster 37 5 75 &8 b B 49 8.5
Hospital Authority Head Office® 528 & 18 B 4@ 5= > 72.9
Total 425t 144.0
Notes: o
1. Expenditure in providing training and development for HA workforce 1. REERBMERHEEIIRERNFAS - BFES
with items including course / conference fees, passages and travel, &/ =2HRER  KEERA % ﬁm% BEEE
scholarships, subsistence allowances, teaching aids and devices, Bh - M MEEE - TY) - ERIER - REEZH

publications, trainer fees, refund of examination fee and other relevant
charges.
2. Wong Tai Sin District and Mong Kok area have been re-delineated from
Kowloon West Cluster (KWC) to Kowloon Central Cluster (KCC) since
1 December 2016. The service units in the concerned communities
have therefore been re-delineated from KWC to KCC to support the
new KCC catchment districts with effect from the same date. As a
transitional arrangement, reports on services / manpower statistics and
financial information continued to be based on the previous clustering
arrangement (i.e. concerned service units still under KWC) until 31 March
2017. Reports in accordance with the new clustering arrangement (i.e.
concerned service units grouped under KCC) start from 1 April 2017.
. Expenditure includes a number of corporate-wide training programmes
and initiatives centrally coordinated by Hospital Authority Head Office.
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Appendix 13
Biygz 13
Five-Year Financial Highlights
BEAFHWHBEE
Financial Results (for the Year ended 31 March)
BEER(BE8E3H31H)
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn
BEEERT BYEERT ABA¥BEEBEx BE¥BER BYHEER
Income KA
Government subvention (recurrent and capital) 55,728 53,772 50,531 45,869 43,159
BB (T M REARM)
Medical fee income (net of waivers) 3,818 3,598 3,423 3,182 2,951
BEERAWA (NkREe)
Non-medical fee income FEEEE UL A 935 1,014 936 892 775
Designated donations 57 18 i 171 146 230 183 149
Capital donations & 784 162 114 110 128 120
60,814 58,644 55,230 50,254 47,154
Expenditure X i
Staff costs B TA(A (43,084) (40,299) (37,235) (34,459) (32,290)
Drugs %) (6,156) (5,710) (5,328) (4,941) (4,479)
Medical supplies and equipment E&8#) 5 & 3% (2,691) (2,558) (2,326) (2,118) (1,999)
Other operating expenses (include depreciation (10,402) (9,927) (8,964) (8,071) (7,288)

and amortisation)

H& B (BETEREH)

(62,333) (58,494) (53,853) (49,589) (46,056)
(Deficit) / surplus for the year FE (&18) / Btk (1,519) 150 1,377 665 1,098

Income by Source (in % of Total Income)
BEHEBARR EHRBABDL)

100%

90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30% g;‘g“
20% m Medical fee income
EEEARA
10% )
m Government subvention
0% eGSR

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
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Appendix 13

Bifé% 13

Key Financial Indicators (for the Year ended 31 March)
FEHBREE(BESF3A310)

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn
BYEET A¥EER BA¥EER A¥EER BY¥BEER
Medical fee income (Note 1) BEEE AW A (5£1)
Inpatient fees (£ & 1,048 998 993 943 939
Outpatient fees P2 U E 1,354 1,312 1,285 1,258 1,218
ltemised charges 7 JBUL & 1,890 1,742 1,595 1,420 1,231
Other medical fees Hfih B8 # U & 99 94 88 88 81
4,391 4,146 3,961 3,709 3,469
Less: Waivers (Note 2) B : 8% (3%2) (573) (548) (538) (527) (518)
Medical fee income (net of waivers) 3,818 3,598 3,423 3,182 2,951
EBEERHRA (MRER)
Additional provision for doubtful debts charged 61 58 52 45 45

to the Statement of Income and Expenditure

(Note 3)
EWZEERAE K RRRE (F3)

Expenditure by Category (in % of Total Expenditure)
BEEXH (ERZHBEDLE)

1
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Notes:
1. Medical fee income

Fees for hospital services are governed by the HA Ordinance. There
are 3 categories of charges: (i) public charges for Eligible Persons (EP);
(ii) public charges for Non-eligible Persons (NEP); and (iii) private charges.
The definition of EP and NEP can be found in HA website whilst the fees
and charges schedules are listed in the Gazette and HA website.

. Waivers

Under the Government policy, recipients of Comprehensive Social
Security Assistance (CSSA) or Level O Voucher Holders of the Pilot
Scheme on Residential Care Service Voucher for the Elderly (with effect
from March 2017) can obtain free medical treatment at HA's hospitals
and clinics. Other persons with financial difficulties in paying the medical
fees and charges can apply for medical fee waivers through Medical
Social Workers. The granting of waivers is subject to meeting the criteria
under established waiving mechanism.

The waivers granted to EP and NEP for the year ended 31 March 2017 are
HK$459,000,000 and HK$114,000,000 respectively (for the year ended
31 March 2016 are HK$458,000,000 and HK$90,000,000 respectively).

. Additional provision for doubtful debts charged to the Statement
of Income and Expenditure

Each year, HA would make assessment on the collectability of
outstanding hospital fees and charges (accounts receivable). As a result
of the assessment, additional provision (or reversal of provision) would
be charged to the Statement of Income and Expenditure for the year.

Appendix 13
By 13

i

1.

3.

BEERWA
BERNBERBEUERBREERKIIR
B BRKENOATI=E : (DFAERA
ITHRARKE : (i) FFEEBALTHAIRK
B AGDRAREE A HaERALIR
[RFEERALI ZER AREBRERS
H-FARET2HERLBEEREA -

. B

ERRORET - AN At SREE (5
) A Lol R B2 R MR SRR R
BAOREHRA A (R2017F3 A 2) TER
S ATBERBRE Lo A TEBEHEE
THERBH TS BRAAL - ABRAAL
2R B IRIEEE B A ) 2 A f
ik o

B E017TFIAZMB RIEHRTEERA
TMIEFEERALTNERR R DI REE
459,000,000 K 7% % 114,000,000 (& £ 2016 5
SABBE Rtz EBER#BRIA A ER
458,000,000 K2 # 90,000,000) °

EWXZEERAEERRERE
BERSFENHBRERKAKRKLA AT
1 (AR - &RRFE1& - T 0 (RBEE) &
RER B EEZFONCEETRA -
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Appendix 13
Bt % 13

Financial Position (at 31 March)
BEHRR (AEF3H31H)

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HKS$Mn HK$Mn
BERERT B¥PEx BY¥PEx BYEER BYEER
Non-current assets JEREIEE 29,369 20,460 20,107 10,615 10,391
Current assets &) & &= 23,828 33,783 23,930 30,508 14,206
Current liabilities R & (& (12,008) (11,349) (11,227) (9,607) (6,918)
Net current assets R B EEFE 11,820 22,434 12,703 20,901 7,288
Non-current liabilities FEF B & & (28,036) (28,742) (18,994) (19,609) (6,686)
Net assets E & F{E 13,153 14,152 13,816 11,907 10,993
Capital subventions and capital donations 5,817 5,317 5,153 4,610 4,383
BRI REREE
Designated fund #57& &% 5,077 5,077 5,077 5,077 5,077
Revenue reserve U A 6 2,259 3,758 3,586 2,220 1,533
13,153 14,152 13,816 11,907 10,993
1 4= apys
Total Assets’ (in HKS$ millions)
~. 1 : —
wEE (BEEET)
50,000
45,000
40,000
35,000
30,000
Placements with the Exchange Fund
25,000 INEESTFR
m Cash & bank
20,000 B e RIRITA R
m Fixed income instruments
15,000 BEEAETA
Receivables, deposits & prepayments
10,000 FEUGK - =& RIAN IR
Inventories
5,000 e
. m Fixed & intangible assets
0 [E7E M SR & B
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Note: 1. Exclude the placement with the Exchange Fund of HK$7,221,000,000 (2016: HK$7,000,000,000) as HA is acting as a custodian for the Samaritan Fund.
i 1L P EEREREAHIBEESINEESTRIRE ATFHRINEE S 7,221,000,000 SLHIFRIE (2016 : 7 7,000,000,0007T)
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Appendix 13
Bifg% 13
Key Financial Indicators (at 31 March)
FEHBEE(REF3A310)
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn

BYREHET BYEER A¥EER A¥EER ABE¥EER

Inventories 78

Drugs &%) 1,073 1,054 1,087 1,151 1,043
Other medical and general consumables 223 213 227 218 209
H e &k — M HFEm
1,296 1,267 1,314 1,369 1,252
Average stock holding period (weeks)
FHEEFERRE (E8)
Drugs &%) 9.0 9.6 10.5 12.0 12.0
Other medical and general consumables 8.2 8.6 8.1 8.6 8.7

HAE BN —ROBREm
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The Hospital Authority is committed to environmental protection.
You may access this Report on our website www.ha.org.hk

BREER

BERNETEEH147TB BREERXE
Hospital Authority

Hospital Authority Building

1478 Argyle Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BFF Tel  : (852) 2300 6555
fBE Fax : (852)2890 7726
ZE & Email : enquiry@ha.org.hk
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